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BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, “Exchange Plaza”,

Dalal Street, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E).
MUMBAI — 400 001 MUMBAI — 400 051

Sub: Notice convening 19t Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Shareholders of the Company,
along with Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25

Ref: Disclosure under Regulation 53 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (Listing Regulations)

Dear Sirs/Madam,

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), we wish to inform that Notice of the
19™ Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company, scheduled to be held on
Monday, September 29, 2025 at 09:30 A.M. (IST) (“AGM”), along with Annual Report for the
Financial Year 2024-25 (“Annual Report”) are being mailed to the Shareholders, holding equity
shares of the Company, in compliance with applicable Listing Regulations, MCA and SEBI
Circulars (“Circulars”).

Notice of 19" AGM and Annual Report are also uploaded on the website of the Company viz
https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/annualreport.php (Copy of the Notice and Annual Report
are attached).

Further, pursuant to the applicable Listing Regulations and Circulars, the Company’s Annual
Report is also being sent to Debenture Holders, holding Debentures of the Company only in
electronic mode, whose e-mail addresses are registered with Company/Depository
Participant(s)/ Depository.

This is for your information and record.
Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,
For Sammaan Finserve Limited
(Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

Digitally signed by AJIT
AJIT KUMAR KUMAR SINGH

Date: 2025.09.06 17:39:23
SINGH 105730

Ajit Kumar Singh
Company Secretary

Encl.:a/a

Sammaan Finserve Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited) (CIN: U65923DL2006PLC150632)
Corp. Off. Ground Floor, Tower 3A, DLF Corporate Greens, Sector-74A, Gurgaon, Narsinghpur, Haryana — 122 004, India. T. +91 1246093560; F. +91 1246093561
Reg. Off. 2nd Floor, Plot NO-3, Block-A, Pocket-2, Sector-17, Dwarka Residential Scheme, Dwarka, New Delhi — 110075, India. T. +91 1145571048 & +91 1145571061
Email. lap@sammaancapital.com Web. www.sammaanfinserve.com


https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/annualreport.php

n SAMMAAN
4A"FINSERVE
SAMMAAN FINSERVE LIMITED
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Email: lap@sammaancapital.com, Tel: +91 1145571048 & +91 1145571061
Website: https:/www.sammaanfinserve.com/

NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the NINETEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of
SAMMAAN FINSERVE LIMITED will be held on Monday, September 29, 2025 at 9:30 A.M. (IST) (“AGM”)
at the registered office of the Company situated at 2nd Floor Plot No-3 Block-A, Pocket-2, Sector-17 Dwarka
Residential Scheme, District Court Complex Dwarka, South West Delhi, India — 110075, to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

L.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025, and Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajiv Gandhi (DIN: 09063985), Managing Director and CEO, who retires
by rotation as a director and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. To appoint M/s. Anshul Chhabra & Associates, (CP No.:13935) as the Secretarial Auditors of the

Company and to fix their remuneration and in this regard, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’)
including circulars and notifications issued thereunder and in accordance with Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the ‘Act) read with rules made thereunder (including any statutory amendment(s) or modification(s)
or enactment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereto), consent of the members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded
to appoint M/s Anshul Chhabra & Associates, Company Secretary(ies) in Practice (CP No.:13935) having a
valid Peer Review Certificate, who have confirmed their eligibility as per requirements of Regulation 24A of
the SEBI Listing Regulations, as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, for a period of 5 (five) consecutive
financial years commencing from April 1, 2025 till March 31, 2030, to undertake secretarial audit as required
under the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations and issue the necessary secretarial audit report for the aforesaid
period, at a fee of Rs. 1,00,000/- plus applicable taxes for the FY 2025-26 and 10% increment on annual basis
and out of pocket expenses, taxes and certification fees, if any, incurred/issued during the course of Audit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Executive Directors and Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Company severally authorized to decide and finalise the terms and conditions of appointment,
including the remuneration of the Secretarial Auditor and to do all other act(s), matter(s), deed(s) and thing(s)
as may be deemed necessary or expedient to give effect to this resolution and for the matters connected therewith
or incidental thereto.”
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4. To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution, for issue of Non-
Convertible Debentures and/or Bonds, of the Company, on private placement basis:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 42, Section 71 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’) read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (the
‘Rules’) and in accordance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (‘SEBI Debt Regulations’) read with Master Circular for issue
and listing of Non-convertible Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal Debt
Securities and Commercial Paper, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) read with Master Circular for listing obligations
and disclosure requirements for Non-convertible Securities, Securitized Debt Instruments and/ or Commercial
Paper, as may be amended from time to time and the directions, guidelines, circulars and notifications issued by
the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’), (including any statutory amendment(s) or modification(s) or enactment(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereto), as applicable to the Non-Banking Financial Companies (‘NBFC’) from time to time,
and such other laws, regulations, circulars, notifications and guidelines, as may be applicable to the Company, the
consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’ which term shall include Management Committee or any other committee
constituted/ to be constituted by the Board) to make offer(s), invitation(s) to subscribe and issue redeemable non-
convertible debentures, subordinated debentures, bonds, secured or unsecured (‘NCDs’) (issuance of NCDs shall
not be in the nature of equity shares) (hereinafter referred to as ‘Debentures’) at such face value as may be
permissible under the Act, SEBI Regulations, and RBI directions on private placement basis at par, discount or
premium, in one or more tranches during the period of one year from the date of passing of this resolution for a
sum not exceeding ¥5,000 Crores (Rupees Five Thousand Crores only) within the overall borrowing limits of the
Company as approved by the Members of the Company under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, to any category of
investors (including qualified institutional buyers, foreign institutional investors/foreign portfolio investors,
banks, financial institutions, multilateral financial institutions, regional financial institutions, mutual funds,
pension fund, provident fund and gratuity funds, corporates, insurance companies, trusts, High Net-worth
Individuals (HNIs) and such other entities/persons eligible to subscribe the Debentures) on such terms and
conditions including the rate of interest/coupon, tenure, repayment and security cover thereof etc. as may be
finalized by the Board.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to determine the terms of the Issue,
including the class of investors to whom the Debentures are to be offered and allotted, the numbers of Debentures
to be offered and allotted in each tranche, issue price, tenor, interest rate, premium/discount to the then prevailing
market price, amount of issue, discount to issue price to a class of debenture holders, listing, issuing any
declaration/ undertaking, etc. required to be included in the Private Placement Offer Letter and any other
regulatory requirement for the time being in force and to execute all such deeds, documents, instruments and
writings as it may in its sole and absolute discretion deem necessary in relation thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby
authorized to do all such act(s), deed(s), matter(s) and thing(s) and to take all such steps as may be required or
considered necessary or incidental thereto for giving effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers
herein conferred to any director(s), key managerial person(s) and/or officer(s) of the Company, to give effect to
the resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Sammaan Finserve Limited

(Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

Sd/-

Ajit Kumar Singh

Date: September 05, 2025 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: A20840



NOTES:

0.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND ON A POLL TO VOTE INSTEAD OF
HIMSELF AND THAT A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. THE PROXY FORM TO BE VALID
AND EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE LODGED WITH THE COMPANY AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE,
DULY COMPLETED AND SIGNED, NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT
OF THE AGM.

A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. A person appointed as Proxy shall act on behalf of not more
than 50 (fifty) Members and holding not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. However, a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single person as Proxy and such person shall not act as Proxy for any other person
or Member.

A Proxy shall not have a right to speak at the AGM and shall not be entitled to vote except on a poll.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, in respect of the Special business
as set out in the AGM Notice is annexed hereto.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the AGM are requested to
send to the Company, a certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their representative to attend and
vote on their behalf at the AGM.

All documents referred in this Notice and other statutory registers are open for inspection by the Members on
the date of the AGM at the venue of the meeting and also at the Registered Office of the Company between
10:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and national holidays, from the date
hereof up to the date of the AGM.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in order of names will be
entitled to vote.

Members desiring any information relating to the financial statement of the Company are requested to write
to the Company at the earliest, so as to enable the Board of Directors to keep the information ready at the
AGM.

Members/Proxies are requested to bring their duly filled attendance slip sent herewith at the Meeting.

10. The route map showing direction to reach the venue of Extra-ordinary General Meeting is annexed.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESSES PURSUANT TO
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

As required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the following statement sets out all material facts
relating to the special business mentioned under Resolution No. 3 and 4 of this Notice.

ITEM NO. 3

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Act, read with rules framed thereunder, every listed company is required
to annex with its Board’s Report, a secretarial audit report, issued by a Practicing Company Secretary. In this regard,
the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company at its meeting held on February 11, 2025, had appointed M/s Anshul
Chhabra & Associates, Company Secretary(ies) in Practice (CP No.:13935), as Secretarial Auditor of the Company
for the Financial Year 2024-25.

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third
Amendment) Regulations, 2024, effective from December 13, 2024, SEBI amended the provisions of Regulation 24A
— ‘Secretarial Audit and Secretarial Compliance Report’, of the SEBI Listing Regulations, and stipulated that the
appointment/ re-appointment of an individual as a secretarial auditor cannot be for more than one term of 5 (five)
consecutive years and in case the secretarial auditor is a secretarial audit firm, it cannot be for more than two terms of
5 (five) consecutive years and such an appointment/re-appointment is required to be approved by the members of the
company at its annual general meeting, basis recommendation of the board of directors and also stipulated that any
association of the individual or the firm as the secretarial auditor of the listed entity before March 31, 2025, is not
required to be considered for the purpose of calculating the tenure of the secretarial auditor. Further, Frequently Asked
Question (FAQ) on the aforesaid amendment, has clarified that ‘the tenure of appointment of Secretarial Auditor cannot
be for a period less than five years’.

In view of the aforesaid amended requirement, basis on recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board at its
meeting held on September 05, 2025, has recommended the appointment of M/s Anshul Chhabra & Associates,
Company Secretary(ies) in Practice (CP No.:13935), (who is present Secretarial Auditor of the Company and also well
aware with the business and functioning of the Company), as the Secretarial Auditor, for a period of 5 (five) consecutive
financial years commencing from April 01, 2025 to March 31, 2030, to undertake secretarial audit and issue the
necessary secretarial audit report for the aforesaid period, at a fee of Rs. 1,00,000/- plus applicable taxes for the FY
2025-26 and 10% increment on annual basis and out of pocket expenses, taxes and certification fees, if any,
incurred/issued during the course of Audit.

M/s. Anshul Chhabra & Associates adhere to the highest level of professional ethics with excellent, responsive and
timely services to its clients. The firm aspires to build long-term relationship with the clients, and follow the principles
of integrity, honesty, accountability and consistency. M/s. Anshul Chhabra & Associates is transparent in its working
and commit itself to time bound and cost effective services that protect its client's interests every time. M/s. Anshul
Chhabra & Associates is a peer reviewed and quality reviewed firm in terms of the guidelines issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India.

M/s Anshul Chhabra & Associates, has provided their written consent to act as Secretarial Auditors of the Company
and submitted necessary peer review certificate and other requisite disclosures/declarations in accordance with
provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, and Section 204 of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

The services to be rendered by M/s Anshul Chhabra & Associates, Secretarial Auditors, is within the purview of the
said Regulation read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFDPoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of the
Members by way of an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Promoter, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company or any relatives of such
Promoter, Directors or KMPs, are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set
out at Item No. 3 of this Notice.



ITEM NO. 4

The shareholders of the Company in their 18" Annual General Meeting held on September 27, 2024, had authorized
the Company to issue Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) and Bonds (not in the nature of equity shares), up to a
limit of ¥ 5,000 Crores.

However, in accordance with Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Rule 14 of the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (‘the Rules’); the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible
Securities) 2021; and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, as amended
from time to time; the aforesaid authorization is valid for a period of one year from the date of approval i.e. up to
September 26, 2025. Accordinlgy, in order to extend the validity, the approval of Members is being sought upto
5,000 Crores, for issue of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) and/or Bonds (issuance of NCDs and/or Bonds shall
not be in the nature of equity shares), till one year post receipt of shareholders’ approval in the AGM.

The Board is of the view that a limit of ¥ 5,000 Crores for issue of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) and Bonds
(issuance of NCDs and/or Bonds shall not be in the nature of equity shares), is adequate for the next one year,

commencing from the date of this AGM.

The Board accordingly recommends, passing of the Special Resolution, as set out at Item No. 4 of this Notice, for the
approval of the Members of the Company.

None of the Promoter, Directors and KMPs of the Company or any relatives of such Promoter, Directors or KMPs,
are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of this Notice.

Further explanatory statement pertaining to resolution 2:

Details of the Director seeking re-appointment at the 19" Annual General Meeting in terms of paragraph 1.2.5
of the Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings, is given below:

Resolution No. 2

Name of the Director Mr. Rajiv Gandhi

DIN 09063985

Date of Birth and Age July 21, 1965 and 60 Years

Nationality Indian

Date of first appointment on the February 15, 2021

Board

Qualification/ Brief Profile and Mr. Rajiv Gandhi holds Master’s degree in Business Administration
experience from the Faculty of Management Studies, Mohnalal Sukhadia

University, Udaipur. He has over 30 years of work experience
accumulated across the industry. He is a founder member of our
Company. Prior to joining Sammaan Group, he was associated with
Nicholas Piramal India Limited, Birla Home Finance Limited and
Birla Sunlife Insurance Limited.

Relationship with other Directors, None
Manager and Key Managerial

Personnel

Terms and  conditions of Managing Director & CEOQ liable to retire by rotation
Appointment/re-appointment

Remuneration sought to be paid Nil

Last drawn Remuneration 3 4.98 Crore*
Directorships held in other Nil
companies

List of the Committees of Board of Nil**
Directors (across all companies) in

which Chairmanship/

Membership is held

No. of shares held in the Company, Nil

(including shareholding as a




beneficial owner)

Number of Board Meetings 7 (Seven)
attended during the financial year

(2024-25)

**Excluding and perquisite value as per Income Tax Act, 1961, paid to him during FY 2025.
**includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sammaan Finserv Limited
(formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

Sd/-

Ajit Kumar Singh

Date: September 05, 2025 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: A20840
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Website: https:/www.sammaanfinserve.com/

FORM NO.MGT 11
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member (s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id: Folio No./DPID Client ID:

1/ We, being the member(s) of Equity Shares of the above named Company, hereby
appoint:

1. Name:

Address: E-mail Id:
Signature: , or failing him / her
2. Name:

Address: E-mail Id:
Signature: , or failing him / her
3. Name:

Address: E-mail Id:
Signature:

as my / our proxy(ies) to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 19" Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, September 29, 2025 at 09:30 A.M. (IST) at 2nd
Floor Plot No-3 Block-A, Pocket-2, Sector-17 Dwarka Residential Scheme, District Court Complex Dwarka,
South West Delhi, India — 110075, and at any adjournment thereof, in respect of such resolutions set out in the
Notice convening the meeting, as are indicated below:

Resolution Brief Details of the Resolutions
No.
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial

year ended March 31, 2025, and Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajiv Gandhi (DIN: 09063985), Non-Executive Director,
who retires by rotation as a director and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
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SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To consider and pass the resolution as an Ordinary Resolution, for the appointment of M/s.
\Anshul Chhabra & Associates, (CP No.:13935) as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company and
to fix their remuneration

4, To consider and pass the resolution as a Special Resolution, for issue of Non-Convertible
Debentures (NCDs) and Bonds (not in the nature of equity shares), on private placement basis,
up to a limit of 5,000 Crores.

Signed this day of 2025 Signature of Shareholder:
Affix
Revenue
Stamp of
Signature of Proxy Holder(s): RV/-
Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. A person appointed as Proxy shall act on behalf of not
more than 50 (fifty) Members and holding not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights. However, a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as Proxy and such person shall not act as
Proxy for any other person or Member.
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(Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)
(CIN: U65923DL2006PLC150632)

Registered Office: 2nd Floor Plot No-3 Block-A, Pocket-2, Sector-17 Dwarka Residential
Scheme, District Court Complex Dwarka, South West Delhi, India — 110075
Email: lap@sammaancapital.com, Tel: +91 1145571048 & +91 1145571061

Website: https:/www.sammaanfinserve.com/

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Folio No./DPID Client ID: No. of Shares:

Members or their Proxies are requested to present this Slip in accordance with the Specimen
Signatures registered with the Company, at the entrance of the Meeting Hall, for admission.

Name of the attending Member / Proxy (in BLOCK
LETTERS):

I hereby record my presence at the NINETEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company
held on Monday, September 29, 2025 at 09:30 A.M. (IST) at 2nd Floor Plot No-3 Block-A, Pocket-2,
Sector-17 Dwarka Residential Scheme, District Court Complex Dwarka, South West Delhi, India —
110075.

Member’s Signatures Proxy’s Signatures

Notes: - Sharcholders/Proxies are requested to bring Attendance Slip with them when they come to the
Meeting and hand them over at the entrance after affixing their signatures on them.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 19" Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements for the Financial Year (“FY”’) ended March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Summary of the Financial Results for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 are as under:

(Amount in Z Crores
For the Year | For the Year
Particulars Ended 31| Ended  31%
March, 2025 | March, 2024
Total Revenue 1269.22 1,495.65
Total Expenses 4891.71 951.71
Profit before Tax (3622.49) 543.94
Less: Provision for Current Tax 1.90 120.54
Add: Deferred Tax charge / (credit) (906.47) 10.40
(Loss) / Profit After Tax (2717.92) 413.00
Balance of Profit brought forward* 1,139.34 994.39
Amount available for appropriation (1,578.58) 1,407.39
Less: Appropriations: -
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - -
Transfer to Reserve Fund (u/s 45 IC of the RBI Act 1934) - 82.60
Dividend on equity shares - 153.64

Transfer to Special reserve fund u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax
Act,1961

Balance of (Loss) / Profit carried forward (1,578.58) 1,141.77

Earnings per Equity Share (43.47) 3.33

“After adjusting Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) on Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan (net of tax) to
retained earnings.

- 29.38

To reposition the Company as retail focused affordable housing lender, in September 2024, the company
had sold its wholesale loan business and created one-time provisions of Rs. 4,050 Crores, in consistent
with fair market value. This provisioning has resulted in a loss of Rs. 2,717.92 Crores for Fiscal Year
2024-25. Accordingly, during the FY ended March 31, 2025, the Board has not proposed to transfer any
amount to any reserve(s) except as specified in summary above.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The revenue from the operations of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 stood at X 1267.33 Crores
and loss of the Company was X 2,717.92 Crores. The profitability of the Company is expected to grow in
the coming years.

The Company’s Total Capital Adequacy [Standalone] stood at 38.32% with a Tier 1 of 34.80% against
regulatory requirement of 15% and 10% respectively.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Your Company is a non-deposit taking NBFC registered with the RBI and operates as a wholly owned
(100%) subsidiary of Sammaan Capital Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Housing Finance
Limited), a company engaged in providing financial services. The Company was granted Certificate of
Registration (“CoR”) bearing reference no. N-14.03136 dated October 14, 2024, to commence & carry on
the business of non-banking financial company without accepting public deposits by RBI in accordance
with Section 451A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Your Company focuses primarily on long-term secured mortgage-backed loans and offer loans against
property to the target client base of salaried and self-employed individuals and small and medium sized
enterprises. During the year under review, the Company has repositioned itself as Affordable Housing
lender and sold its entire wholesale loans business such that the residual in loan book of SFL is entirely
retail. This will then serve as a foundation to build up the Affordable Housing Finance business in SFL.

During the financial year under review, the Company has entered into Business Transfer Agreement
for the sale of wholesale loans’ business to “Sammaan Capital Limited” (SCL) [formerly known as
Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited, holding company of the Company.

W.e.f. March 1, 2025, Registered Office of the Company shifted from “5" Floor, Building No. 27, KG
Marg, Connaught Place, New Delhi — 110 001” to “2"™ Floor, Plot No.-3, Block-A, Pocket-2, Sector-17,
Dwarka Residential Scheme, Dwarka, New Delhi- 110075” and one of the Corporate Office of the
Company also shifted from ‘4th Floor, Augusta Point, Golf Course Road, DLF Phase-5, Sector-53,
Gurugram, Haryana — 122 002’ to ‘Ground Floor, Tower 3A, DLF Corporate Greens, Sector-74A,
Gurgaon, Narsinghpur, Haryana — 122 004°.

DIVIDEND

Due to loss in the FY 2024-25, the Board of Directors of the Company has not declared any dividend for
the said Financial Year 2024-25.

COMPLIANCES

During the year under review, your Company has predominantly adhered to the provisions of all
applicable Act(s), Rule(s), Regulation(s), Direction(s), Guideline(s) issued by of the Reserve Bank of
India or other concerned Statutory / Regulatory Authority(ies). As per Master Direction — NBFC-
Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (Updated as on February 27, 2025), the
Directors hereby report that the Company did not accept any public deposits during the year and did not
have any public deposits outstanding at the end of the year.

The RBI vide its notification dated October 22, 2021, introduced an integrated regulatory framework for
NBFCs under Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs which was
followed by Master Direction- RBI (NBFC- Scale Based Regulation) Direction 2023. Under Scale Based
Regulation, NBFCs are divided into four layers viz., top layer, upper layer, middle layer and base layer
based on the size, activity, and perceived riskiness. Under extant Regulations, the Company classifies as
NBFC-Middle Layer. Further, the Company remains committed to maintaining the highest standards of




regulatory compliance & governance in line with evolving framework laid down by RBI & other statutory
authorities from time to time.

The Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures and Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible
Subordinated Debentures (NCDs) issued by the Company by way of public issue and/or private
placement basis are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited, hence the
Company is classified as listed company.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has made Regulations 15 to 27 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, (“SEBI Listing Regulations”)
applicable to the Debt Listed Companies having an outstanding value of listed Non-Convertible debt
securities of X 1,000 Crore and above i.e. High Value Debt Listed Entity (“HVDLE”).

In terms of these Regulations the Company has been classified as a HYDLE and is in compliance with all
the applicable Regulations of SEBI Listing Regulations.

REGULATORY GUIDELINES

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) is the regulator for Non-Banking Financial Companies. In accordance with
this, the Company is predominantly in compliance with all regulations pertaining to Accounting
Standards, Prudential norms for asset classification, income recognition, provisioning, capital adequacy
and credit ratings.

APPROPRIATIONS

Since the Company has incurred the loss in the FY 2024-25, the Company has not transferred any amount
to the Special Reserve u/s 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. However, the Company had
transferred the X 82.60 Crores in the previous year.

RBI REGISTRATION

Formerly, the Company holds the license of Non-Deposit Non-Banking Financial Company from Reserve
Bank of India (“RBI”). Pursuant to the change in the name, the Company has received a CoR of Non-
Banking Financial Company (“NBFC”) registered with RBI, bearing reference number N-14.03136 dated
October 14, 2024.

STATUTORY DISCLAIMER

RBI does not accept any responsibility or guarantee about the present position as to the financial
soundness of the Company or for the correctness of any of the statements or representations made or
opinions expressed by the Company and discharge of liabilities by the Company.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, the composition of the Board was in compliance with the requirements
under the Companies Act, 2013, and SEBI Listing Regulations, to the extent applicable on the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Director,
Non-Executive Directors, Woman Director and Independent Directors.

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, appointed Mr. Naveen Uppal (DIN: 10813991) as an Additional Non-
Executive / Non- Independent Director of the Company, subsequently the shareholders at the
Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on November 13, 2024, regularized the appointment of Mr.
Naveen Uppal as Non-Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. November 12, 2024. Further Mr. Anil
Malhan (DIN: 01542646) was resigned from his office of Non-Executive Director w.e.f. November 12,
2024.




In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Rajiv Gandhi (DIN:
09063985), Managing Director & CEO of the Company, retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

All the present Independent Directors of the Company have given declaration that they meet the criteria
of independence laid down under Section 149(6) of the of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, they
have also confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be
reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite
qualifications, experience and expertise and that they hold the highest standards of integrity. In terms of
Section 150 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
the Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the data bank of Independent
Directors created and maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, Manesar.

As on March 31, 2025, Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Ashish Kumar Jain, Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) and Mr. Ajit Kumar Singh, Company Secretary (CS), are the KMPs of the
Company.

BORROWINGS

The Company primarily sources funds through Term Loans, Cash Credit, Non—Convertible Debentures
(NCDs), Subordinate Debt. The outstanding debt as on March 31, 2025, was %3,297.20 Crore as
compared to X7,505.82 Crore as on March 31, 2024.

ISSUANCE OF SECURED AND UNSECURED NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDS)
During the year under review, the Company has raised ¥175.85 Crore by issuing Secured, Redeemable,

Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) of face value of 1,00,000/- each through private placement
basis. As on March 31, 2025 total outstanding NCDs were amounting to 31,421.76 Crore.

The Company has been regular in repayment of its principal and payment of interest thereon.

There are no NCD’s which have not been claimed by the investors or not paid by the Company after the
date on which the NCD became due for redemption.

RATING UPDATES

Sammaan Finserve Limited, a 100% subsidiary of Sammaan Capital Limited (Formerly known as
Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited) continues to enjoy the long term credit rating of AA from CRISIL (a
Standard & Poor’s Company), ICRA (a Moody's Investor Services Company), AA- by CARE and AA+
from Brickwork Ratings.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up equity share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2025, stood at X 247,79,93,240/-
comprising of 1,23,89,96,620 equity shares of X 2/- each.

During the financial year 2024-25, the Shareholders of the Company at its Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting held on November 13, 2024, approved (a)sub-dividing/ splitting the equity and preference
shares of the Company, such that each fully paid-up equity share and fully paid-up preference shares
having face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, respectively, be sub-divided into 5 (five) fully
paid-up equity and preference shares having face value of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two only) each; (b) increase
in Authorized Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 272,50,00,000 (Rupees Two Hundred Seventy
Two Crore Fifty Lakh only) divided into 25,00,00,000 (Twenty Five Crores) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-




(Rupees Ten only) each, and 2,25,00,000 (Two Crores Twenty Five Lacs) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-
(Rupees Ten only) each to Rs. 397,50,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred Ninety Seven Crore Fifty Lakh
only) divided into 187,50,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Eighty Seven Crore Fifty Lakh Only) Equity
Shares of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two only) each, and 11,25,00,000 (Eleven Crore Twenty Five Lakh)
Preference Shares of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two only); and (¢) ‘“Sammaan Finserve Limited - Employee Stock
Benefit Scheme 2024°° and authorized to create, offer, issue, and grant 21,00,00,000 (Twenty One
Crores) employee stock options (“ESOPSs”), convertible into 21,00,00,000 (Twenty One Crores) fully
paid-up equity shares of the Company (“Shares”).

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES
As on March 31, 2025, 99.99% of the shareholding of the Company is in Demat mode.
ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

(i) Registered Office:

2" Floor, Plot No. 3 Block-A, Pocket-2, Sector-17 Dwarka Residential Scheme,
District Court Complex Dwarka, South West Delhi, India, 110075

Email: lap@sammaancapital.com

Tel: +91 1145571048 & +91 1145571061

Website: https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/

(i1) Corporate Office:

(a) Ground Floor, Tower 3A,

DLF Corporate Greens, Sector-74A,
Gurgaon, Narsinghpur, Haryana — 122 004
Tel: +91 1246093560, Fax: +91 1246093561

(b) One International Centre,18™ Floor, Tower 1,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road,
Mumbai — 400 013, Maharashtra

DEBENTURE TRUSTEES

1. IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited

Contact Person: Mr. Ashish Naik

Address: Universal Insurance Building, Ground Floor,
Sir P.M. Road, Fort, Mumbai — 400001

Tel: (022) 40807073;

Fax: (022) 66311776

Website: https://idbitrustee.com/

2. Beacon Trusteeship Limited

Contact Person: Mr. Kaustubh Kulkarni
Address: 5W, 5th Floor, The Metropolitan,
E Block, Bandra Kurla Complex (BKC),
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

Tel: 022-4606 0278

Website: https://beacontrustee.co.in/

3. Axis Trustee Services Limited

Contact Person: Mr. Anil Grover

Address: The Ruby, 2" Floor, SW, 29 Senapati Bapat Marg,
Dadar West, Mumbai — 400 028 (Maharashtra)

Tel: +91- 22 6230 0451

Website: www.axistrustee.in
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REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT

KFin Technologies Limited

Unit: Sammaan Finserve Limited ,
Selenium Tower B, Plot N0.31-32,
Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Hyderabad

Rangareddi — 500 032, Telangana

Tel : 040-6716-2222, Fax: 040-23001153
Website: https://www.kfintech.com/

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company being a Non Deposit taking Non — Banking Financial Company, has not accepted any
deposits from the public under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year under review.

AUDITORS

(a) Statutory Auditors

During the period under review the Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company Messrs Rao & Emmar, Chartered
Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 003084S) and Messrs Hem Sandeep & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI
Firm Registration No. 009907N) had completed their term as a Joint Statutory Auditors after conclusion of 18t
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on September 27, 2024.

The Report of Statutory Auditor for the FY 2024-25, forms part of this Report. The Auditors’ Report does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

The Notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditors” Report are self - explanatory and therefore do not call for any
further explanation. No frauds have been reported by the Statutory Auditors of the Company in terms of Section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, pursuant to the RBI Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCASs)/ Statutory Auditors
(SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding Regional Rural Banks), Primary (Urban) Co-operative Banks and Non-
Banking Finance Companies (“NBFCs”) (including Housing Finance Companies) dated April 27, 2021 (“RBI
Guidelines”) and on the basis of recommendation of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors, the Shareholders
of the Company in their 18" AGM, approved the appointment of M/s. PARY & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 007288C issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India), as Statutory Auditors of the
Company, in place of retiring Joint Statutory Auditors whose tenure expired at the conclusion of the 18" AGM, to
hold office from conclusion of the 18™ AGM till the conclusion of 21t AGM of the Company to conduct the audit of
accounts of the Company for the financial years ending March 31, 2025, March 31, 2026 and March 31, 2027.

During the financial year 2024-25, the total remuneration paid by the Company (excluding Certification
Fee, applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with
the audit of the accounts of the Company) to Messrs Rao & Emmar, Messrs Hem Sandeep & Co., and
M/s PARY & Co. was %4,12,500, %5,50,000 and X 28,00,000, respectively.

(b) Secretarial Auditors & Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
thereunder, during the financial year under review, the Company has appointed M/s Anshul Chhabra &
Associates, Company Secretaries in practice as its Secretarial Auditors, to conduct the Secretarial Audit
of the Company, for the Financial Year 2024-2025. The Company has provided all assistance, facilities,
documents, records and clarifications etc. to the Secretarial Auditors for conducting their audit.

The Report of Secretarial Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25, is annexed herewith as “Annexure -
17, forming part of this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification,
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reservation or adverse remark.

The Secretarial Compliance Report as prescribed by SEBI is annexed herewith as “Annexure - 27,
forming part of this Report.

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024, effective from December 13, 2024, SEBI
amended the provisions of Regulation 24A — ‘Secretarial Audit and Secretarial Compliance Report’, of
the SEBI Listing Regulations, and stipulated that the appointment/ re-appointment of an individual as a
secretarial auditor cannot be for more than one term of 5 (five) consecutive years and in case the
secretarial auditor is a secretarial audit firm, it cannot be for more than two terms of 5 (five) consecutive
years and such an appointment/re-appointment is required to be approved by the members of the company
at its annual general meeting, basis recommendation of the board of directors and also stipulated that any
association of the individual or the firm as the secretarial auditor of the listed entity before March 31,
2025, is not required to be considered for the purpose of calculating the tenure of the secretarial auditor.

SEBI vide its Frequently Asked Question (FAQ) on the aforesaid amendment, has clarified that ‘the
tenure of appointment of Secretarial Auditor cannot be for a period less than five years’.

In view of the aforesaid amended requirement, basis the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Board at its meeting held on September 5, 2025, has recommended the appointment of M/s Anshul
Chhabra & Associates (CP No.:13935), (who is present Secretarial Auditors of the Company and also
well aware with the business and functioning of the Company), as the Secretarial Auditor, for a period of
5 (five) consecutive financial years commencing from April 01, 2025 to March 31, 2030, to undertake
secretarial audit and issue the necessary secretarial audit report for the aforesaid period.

M/s Anshul Chhabra & Associates (CP No.:13935) have confirmed that their appointment, if made, will
comply with the eligibility criteria in terms of SEBI Listing Regulations. Further, the Secretarial Auditor
has confirmed that they have subjected themselves to Peer Review process by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) and hold valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of ICSI.

(c) Cost Records

The Company is not required to prepare and maintain cost records pursuant to Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, which
has occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2025 and the date of
this Report.

Further, no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals, impacting
the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

Further during the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company had not paid any penalty.
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by
them, your Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been
selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that are
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reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company,
as at March 31, 2025 and the profit and loss of the company for the year ended on that date;

that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

that proper internal financial controls were in place and that such financial controls were
adequate and were operating effectively; and

that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and
were adequate and operating effectively.

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 134 AND SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE RELEVANT RULES

The information required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 134 and Section 197 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with the relevant rules (to the extent applicable), not elsewhere mentioned in this Report, are
as under:

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Annual
Return as on March 31, 2025 is available on the Company’s website on
https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/annualreport.php

BOARD MEETINGS

During the Financial Year 2024-25, 8 (Eight) Board Meetings were convened by the Board of Directors
of the Company. The details of such meetings are given in Corporate Governance Report forming part of
this Annual Report.

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the FY 2024-25, in terms of the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company did not make any investments through more than two layers of Investment Companies. Further,
the Company, being a Non — Banking Finance Company and registered with the Reserve Bank of India,
loans given, guarantees provided and investments made by it, were not covered under the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As required under Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a
‘Policy on Related Party Transactions’ for proper conduct and documentation of all related party
transactions. The same is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/dir/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf

Further, the Company also has in place a Framework on Related Party Transactions for the purpose of
identification, monitoring and approving of such transactions as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

During the year, no materially significant related party transaction was entered by the Company with its
Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have potential conflict with
the interest of the Company at large. All the related party transactions, entered into by the Company,
during the financial year, were in its ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis.

Further, Your Directors wish to draw attention of the members to Notes to the financial statement which
sets out related party disclosures.

Further, there were no transaction requiring disclosure under section 134(3)(h) of the Act. Hence, the
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prescribed Form AOC-2 does not form a part of this report.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an elaborate system of internal controls commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations; it also covers areas like financial reporting, fraud control, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations etc., Regular internal audits are conducted to check and to ensure that
responsibilities are discharged effectively.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company is not required to use much of energy and
technology absorption, however in compliance of Section 134(3) read with Rule — 8 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the necessary reporting with regard to conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, is as under:

A. Conservation of Energy

The Company operations do not account for substantial energy consumption. However, the Company is
taking all possible measures to conserve energy. As an ongoing process, the followings are (i) the steps
taken or impact on conservation of energy; (ii) the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate
sources of energy; and (iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment.

Consumption of electricity and its efficient utilization is an important area of EMS and the Company has
taken many steps to reduce its carbon footprint on this front. The Company has been able to reduce
energy consumption by using star rated appliances where possible and also through the replacement of
CFL lights with LED lights. Monitoring resource usage, improved process efficiency, reduced waste
generation and disposal costs have also supported the cause.

B. Technology Absorption

The Company is investing in cutting edge technologies to upgrade its infrastructure set up and innovative
technical solutions, thereby increasing customer delight & employee efficiency. Next Generation
Business Intelligence & analytics tool have been implemented to ensure that while data continues to
grow, decision makers gets answers faster than ever for timely & critical level decision making. The
Company has implemented best of the breed applications to manage and automate its business processes
to achieve higher efficiency, data integrity and data security. It has helped it in implementing best
business practices and shorter time to market new schemes, products and customer services. The
Company has taken major initiatives for improved employee experience, by implementing innovative
solutions and empowering them by providing mobile platform to manage their work while on the go.

The Company’s investment in technology has improved customer services, reduced operational cost and
development of new business opportunities. No technology was imported by the Company during the last
three financial years including FY 2024-25.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

During the year under review, your Company had no foreign exchange earnings and there was no Foreign
exchange expenditure outgo.

Risk Management Framework

With the challenging macroeconomic conditions and uncertainties, there are heightened risks faced by the
Company which can be inherent or market - related risks. There has been a continuous focus on
identifying, measuring and mitigating risks by the Company. As a non-bank mortgage lender, the
Company is exposed to various risks like credit risk, market risk (interest rate and currency risk), liquidity
risk and operational risk (technology, employee, transaction and reputation risk). A key risk in the
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competitive home loans, and mortgage - backed funding in general, is losing customers that transfer out
their loans for small gains in interest rates, this represents significant loss of opportunity to the Company
given the long - term nature of mortgage loans.

The Board of Directors has adopted a Risk Management Policy for the Company which provides for
identification of key events/risks impacting the business objectives of the Company and attempts to
develop risk policies and strategies to ensure timely evaluation, reporting and monitoring of key business
risks. The Company has a Risk Management Committee (RMC) in place that comprises of its Directors
and Members of its Senior Management team, who have rich industry experience across domains. The
RMC met multiple times during the year and kept an active watch on the emergent risks the Company
was exposed to. The Company’s Chief Risk Officer (CRO) oversees the process of identification,
measurement and mitigation of risks. The CRO reports directly to the Board and meets them multiple
times, and at least once in a quarter, to discuss the risks faced by the Company and policies to mitigate
them.

The Company’s Credit and Investment Committee supports the RMC by identifying and mitigating credit
risks to the Company by formulating policies on limits on large credit exposures, asset concentrations,
standards for loan collateral, loan review mechanism, pricing of loans etc. The Credit and Investment
Committee is also responsible to frame approach and policies for customer retention, especially those
customers that seek to transfer their loans out during interest rate cycles when the Company’s interest
rates may be misaligned higher than the best rates available from other lenders.

The Company has established a robust Business Risk Management framework supported by Board-
approved policies to identify and evaluate business risks and opportunities. This framework aims to
promote transparency, safeguard assets, achieve business objectives, and strengthen the Company’s
competitive advantage. It outline the risk management approach adopted across the Company and its
subsidiaries, covering all levels of operations, including documentation and reporting. At present, the
Company has not identified any element of risk that may threaten its existence.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 21 of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, the Company has in place a Board constituted Risk Management Committee. Details of the
Committee and its terms of reference are set out in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this
report.

The Company has established a robust Business Risk Management framework supported by Board-
approved policies to identify and evaluate business risks and opportunities. This framework aims to
promote transparency, safeguard assets, achieve business objectives, and strengthen the Company’s
competitive advantage. It outline the risk management approach adopted across the Company and its
subsidiaries, covering all levels of operations, including documentation and reporting. At present, the
Company has not identified any element of risk that may threaten its existence.

The Company has appointed Chief Risk Officer (CRO) as per the regulatory guidelines, who is, inter alia
responsible for identifying, monitoring and overseeing risks, including potential risks to the Company and
reporting of the same to the Board. Necessary measures have been put in place by the Board to safeguard
the independence of the CRO, who interacts with all the Directors in the Board Meeting. In accordance
with the norms set out by RBI, the CRO has vetted all credit products offered by the Company from the
perspective of inherent and control risks. The CRO did not have any reporting relationship with business
verticals of the Company or business targets.

The Company has also appointed Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) as per the regulatory guidelines, who
is, inter alia, responsible for identifying compliance risk in the organization. performing sufficient and
representative Compliance testing and reporting the same to Senior Management, ensure compliance of
regulatory / supervisory directions given by RBI and other regulators and assisting the Board and Senior
Management in overseeing implementation of Compliance Policy.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES




Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, disclosures on Managerial Remuneration are
provided in “Annexure - 3” forming part of this Report.

In terms of the provisions of Section 136(1) of the Act read with the said rules, the Boards’ Report is
being sent to all the Shareholders of the Company excluding the annexure on the names and other
particulars of Employees, required in accordance with Rule 5(2) of said rules, which is available for
inspection by the Members, subject to their specific written request, in advance, to the Company
Secretary of the Company. The inspection is to be carried out at the Company’s Registered Office at New
Delhi or at its one of the Corporate Office situated at Gurugram, during business hours on working days
(except Saturday and Sunday) of the Company up to date of ensuing AGM.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR NON - EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non - Executive Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company as
well as with the nature of industry and business model of the Company through presentations about the
Company’s strategy, business model, product and service offerings, customers & sharcholders profile,
financial details, human resources, technology, facilities, internal controls and risk management, their
roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company.

The Board is also periodically briefed on the various changes, if any, in the regulations governing the
conduct of Non — Executive Directors including independent directors. The details of the familiarization
programmes have been hosted on the website of the Company and link provided in the Report on
Corporate Governance forming part of this Report.

SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATES COMPANIES

As on March 31, 2025, the Company has no subsidiary. Further pursuant to first proviso to sub-section
(3) of section 129 of the Companies Act 2013, read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
Form AOC - 1 relating to Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary is
not applicable on the Company.

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE SUBSIDIARIES
OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the FY 2024-25, no new Company became or ceased to be Subsidiary or Joint Venture or
Associate of the Company.

COMMITTEES

The Board has constituted various Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific areas.
These includes Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Asset
Management Committee, Information Security Committee, IT Steering Committee, IT Strategy
Committee, Management Committee, Credit and Investment Committee, Fraud Review Committee,
Identification Committee, Committee of Executives and Review Committee.

The details with respect to composition, powers, roles, terms of reference, etc. of Committees constituted
under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations are given in the Corporate Governance
Report forming part of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As part of its initiatives under “Corporate Social Responsibility”, the Company has undertaken projects in
the area of development of Health Care Services, Arts and Cultural Development etc. as per its CSR
Policy and the details given in Annual Report on CSR Activities attached as “Annexure - 4”, forming part
of this Report. The project is in accordance with Schedule VI1I of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
relevant rules.




The CSR policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website
https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/uploads/CSR-Policy.pdf

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Corporate Governance Practices
followed by the Company, together with a certificate from a practicing Company Secretary confirming
compliance, is presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an annual
evaluation of its own performance and of the individual Directors as well as an evaluation of the working
of all the Committees of the Board. The Board of Directors was assisted by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”). The performance evaluation was carried out by seeking inputs from
all the Directors / Members of the Committees, as the case may be.

The Board of the Company followed the criteria as specified in the Guidance Note on the Board
Evaluation issued by SEBI for evaluating the performance of the Board as a whole, Committees of the
Board, Individual Directors and the Chairman. The criteria for evaluation of the Board as a whole, inter
alia, covered parameters such as Structure of the Board, Meetings of the Board, Functions of the Board
and Board & Management. The criteria for evaluation of Individual Directors covered parameters such as
knowledge and competency, fulfillment of functions, ability to function as a team, etc. The criteria for
evaluation of the Board Committees covered areas related to mandate and composition, effectiveness of
the committee, structure of the committee and meetings, etc.

The feedback of the Independent Directors on their review of the performance of Non-Independent
Directors and the Board as a whole, the performance of the Chairman of the Company and the assessment
of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company, the Management and
the Board was taken into consideration by the Board in carrying out the performance evaluation.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS & THEIR REMUNERATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) develops the competency requirements of the
Board based on the industry and the strategy of the Company, conducts a gap analysis and recommends
the reconstitution of the Board, as and when required. It also recommends to the Board, the appointment
of Directors having good personal and professional reputation and conducts reference checks and due
diligence of all Directors before recommending them to the Board. Besides the above, the NRC ensures
that the new Directors are familiarized.

A Board approved policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their
remuneration, is already in place. The brief of Appointment and Remuneration Policy is stated in the
Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report.

NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY, AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy on
prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder.

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee
(ICC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013. The Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received, if
any, regarding sexual harassment.




During the financial year 2024-25:-

Number of complaints of sexual harassment received
Number of complaints disposed off during the year
Number of cases pending for more than ninety days

MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961
The Company confirms that, it has complied with the provisions of Maternity Benefit Act 1961.
DETAILS OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPCY CODE, 2016

During the year under review, no applications were made or case was pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF VALUATION DONE WITH RESPECT TO LOANS TAKEN FROM BANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

During the year, the Company has not done any one time settlement and hence, there was no difference
between the amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the valuation done while
taking loan from Banks or Financial Institutions.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors state that the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards
(SS-1 and SS-2) respectively relating to Meetings of the Board, its Committees and the General Meetings
as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of its
business operations. To maintain these standards, the Company has implemented the Whistle Blower
Policy (the Policy), to provide an avenue for directors, employees and other stakeholders to report matters
without the risk of subsequent victimization, discrimination or disadvantage.

The Policy applies to all Employees working for the Company and its Subsidiaries. Pursuant to the
Policy, the whistle blowers can raise concerns relating to matters such as breach of Company’s Code of
Conduct, fraud, bribery, corruption, employee misconduct, illegality, misappropriation of Company’s
funds / assets etc. A whistle blowing or reporting mechanism, as set out in the Policy, invites all
Employees to act responsibly to uphold the reputation of the Company and its Subsidiaries.

The Policy aims to ensure that serious concerns are properly raised and addressed and are recognized as
an enabling factor in administering good governance practices. The details of the Whistle Blower Policy
are available on the website of the Company https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/policy.php.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Company has been able to operate efficiently because of the culture of professionalism, creativity,
integrity and continuous improvement in all functional areas and the efficient utilization of all its
resources for sustainable and profitable growth. Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation
of the contributions made all those who were connected with the Company, for their support during the
year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Ajit Kumar Mittal Rajiv Gandhi
Place: Mumbai Non-Executive Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Date: September 5, 2025 DIN: 02698115 DIN: 09063985
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Annexure - 1

ANS:| L CHHABRA & ASSL.IATFS
COMPANY SECRETARIES

FORM-MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Sammaan Finserve Limited

(formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

CIN: U65923DL2006PLC150632

2°d Floor Plot No-3 Block-A Pocket-2,

Sector-17 Dwarka Residential Scheme,

District Court Complex Dwarka, New Delhi - 110075

We have conducted, the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by the Sammaan Finserve Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit
Limited) (hereinafter called “the Company”/”SFL”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereupon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company, has
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 complied with various statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2025 according to the provisions (including amendments) of
the following:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder.
ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;
iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder;
iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder;
v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines, as amended from time to time, prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act,1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz.:-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) F
and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Be
Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Perio

J-338, Ground Floor, Baljeet Nagar, New Delhi — 110008

E-Mail: anshulchhabracs@gmail.com, Mob.: +91-9910844924
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e)

g)

n

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period),; and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

vi. and other applicable laws like:

The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 read with the Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued on February 17, 2021, as amended, by the
Reserve Bank of India (applicable till 28% June, 2024);

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Rules, Regulations, guidelines, circulars, directions, notifications
made thereunder applicable to Non-Banking Financial Company;

Miscellaneous Instructions and Guidelines issued for Non-Banking Financial Companies, for non-
deposit accepting companies;

Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023,

Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs and guidelines
notified thereunder;

NBFC Auditors Report Reserve Bank Directions, 2016;

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
(POSH);

Labour and Social Security Laws - Employees State Insurance Act, 1948; Payment of Wages Act,
1936; Minimum Wages Act, 1948; Industrial Disputes Act, 1947; Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972; Contract Labor (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970; Maternity
Benefit Act, 1961, The Equal Remuneration Act 1976; Employees Provident Funds and
Miscellaneous Act, 1952.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i

Secretarial Standards for Board Meetings (SS-1) and for General Meeting (SS-Z
of Company Secretaries of India;
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ii.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended.

During the period under review the Company has complied with all the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

a.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Director,
Non-Executive Directors, Woman Director and Independent Directors. Mr. Anil Malhan (DIN: 01542646),
Non-executive Director of the Company, tendered his resignation as a director of the Company w.e.f.
November 12, 2024 and Mr. Naveen Uppal (DIN: 10813991) was appointed, as Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director of the Company, with effect from November 12, 2024,

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board and its Committee Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for meetings other than those held at
shorter notice and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting(s).

All the decisions carried through unanimously with the consent of all the Directors present in the meeting
and members’ views are captured and recorded in the minutes.

We further report that based on the information provided and representations made by the Company, there were
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that, during the Audit period the Company has undertaken following specific events/ actions:

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

Issue and allotment of 3,000 Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (“"NCDs”) of the face value
of INR 1,00,000 (Rupees One lakhs only) each, aggregating to ¥30 Cr, on private placement basis on
September 06, 2024.

Issue and allotment of 5,000 Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures ("NCDs”) of the face value
of INR 1,00,000 (Rupees One lakh only) each, on private placement basis on December 13, 2024.

SFL has entered into Business Transfer Agreement for the sale of wholesale loans’ business to
“Sammaan Capital Limited” (SCL) [formerly known as Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited, holding
company of the Company.

SFL has received a fresh certificate of incorporation (*COI”) from the Registrar of Companies, New Delhi
(RoC), and a fresh Certificate of Registration (“CoR”) as an NBFC-ICC (Non-Banking Financial Company
— Investment and Credit Company) from the RBI. Upon receipt of the said COI and COR, the Company’s
name stands changed from ‘Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited’ to ‘Sammaan Finserve Limited’.

The registered office of the Company was shifted from “5th Floor, Building No. 27, KG Marg, Connaught
Place, New Delhi — 110 001” to “*2nd Floor, Plot NO-3, Block-A, Pocket-2, Sector-17, Dwarka Residential
Scheme, Dwarka, New Delhi- 110075” w.e.f. March 1, 2025.

One of the Corporate Offices of the Company was shifted from ‘4th Floor, Augusta Point, Golf Course
Road, DLF Phase-5, Sector-53, Gurugram, Haryana — 122 002’ to ‘Ground Floor, Tower 3A, DLF
Corporate Greens, Sector-74A, Gurgaon, Narsinghpur, Haryana — 122 004° w.e.f. March 1, 2025. The
Company has also commenced maintaining its books of accounts at the new addres:
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Vil.

A
V.

The Shareholders of the Company at its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on November 13, 2024,
approved (a) sub-dividing/ splitting the equity and preference share of the Company, such that each fully
paid-up equity share and fully paid-up preference shares having face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only)
each, respectively, be sub-divided into 5 (five) fully paid-up equity and preference shares having face value
of Rs.2/- (Rupees Two Only) each; (b) increase in Authorized Share Capital of the Company from Rs.
272,50,00,000 (Rupees Two Hundred Seventy Two Crore Fifty Lakh only) divided into 25,00,00,000
(Twenty Five Crores) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, and 2,25,00,000 (Two Crores
Twenty Five Lacs) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to Rs. 397,50,00,000/- (Rupees
Three Hundred Ninety Seven Crore Fifty Lakh only) divided into 187,50,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred
Eighty Seven Crore Fifty Lakh Only) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two only) each, and 11,25,00,000
(Eleven Crore Twenty Five Lakh) Preference Shares of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two only); and (¢) “‘Sammaan
Finserve Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2024’ and authorized to create, offer, issue, and
grant 21,00,00,000 (Twenty One Crores) employee stock options (“ESOPs”), convertible into 21,00,00,000
(Twenty One Crores) fully paid-up equity shares of the Company (“Shares™)

ites,

CP No.: 13935

UDIN: A037155G000811610
PR No: 1621/2021

Date: July 18, 2025

Place: New Delhi

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of
this report.
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To,

“Annexure A”

The Members

Sammaan Finserve Limited

(formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)
CIN: U65923DL2006PLC150632

2" Floor Plot No-3 Block-A Pocket-2,

Sector-17 Dwarka Residential Scheme,

District Court Complex Dwarka, New Delhi - 110075

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

2.

For
Con

Ans
M.

CP...

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
The maximum liability of our firm under the secretarial audit in respect of the aggregate of all claims shall
not exceed the fee charged by us.

5

UDIN: A0G37155G000811610
PR No: 1621/ 2021

Date: July 18, 2025

Place: New Detlhi
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Secretarial Compliance Report of M/s Sammaan Finserve Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit
Limited) (herein referred to as “SFL/ Company™) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

[Pursuant to Regulation 24A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

We, Anshul Chhabra, Proprietor of Anshul Chhabra & Associates, Company Secretaries, having office at J - 338, Ground
Floor, Baljeet Nagar, New Delhi 110008 have examined:

(@)
(b)
(©
G

all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by the Company,
the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the Stock Exchanges,
website of the listed entity,

any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this Report.

for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 (*Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of :

(a)

(b)

the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the regulations, circulars, guidelines
issued thereunder; and

the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the regulations, circulars,
guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI™);

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined, include:-

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(g)
(h)

(1)

Securities and Exchange Board of India ((Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
as amended;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not
applicable to the Company during the review period)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,
(Not applicable to the Company during the review period)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the
Company during the review period)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;
(Not applicable to the Company during the review period)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as
amended,

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 20135, as amended,

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustee) Regulations, 1993 (in relation to obligations of
Issuer Company), , as amended,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993, as amended;

and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder;
And based on the above examination and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and
Securities and Exchange Board of India, we hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(a)

The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued
thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:

S |Compliance |Regulati |Deviations| Action |Type |Detailsof |Fine Observations [ Manage Remarks
No [Requirement |on/ Taken |of Violation |[Amount |/Remarks -ment

(Regulations | Circular By action of the Response

circulars/ No. Practicing

guidelines Company

including Secretary

specific PCS)

clause)

None
20
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20220107-16 dated
January 7, 2022,
Annexure II of
Compliance Report
on
Corporate
Governance as
prescribed by SEBI
vide Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CM
D2/P/CIR/2021/567
dated May 31,
2021 is not
applicable on the
Company, being a
High Value Debt
Listed Company

Disqualification of Director(s):

None of the director(s) of the listed entity is/ are Yes None
disqualified under Section 164 of Companies
Act, 2013 as confirmed by the listed entity

Details related to subsidiaries of listed
entities have been examined w.r.t.:

(a) Identification of material subsidiary
compaiies. NA NA

(b) Disclosure requirement of material as
well as other subsidiaries.

Preservation of Documents:

The listed entity is preserving and maintaining Yes None
records as prescribed under SEBI Regulations
and disposal of records as per policy of
preservation of documents and archival policy
prescribed under SEBI LODR Regulations,
2015.

Performance Evaluation:

The listed entity has conducted performance Yes None
evaluation of the board,independent directors
and the committees at the start of every
financial year/during the financial year as
prescribed in SEBI Regulations.

Related Party Transactions:

(&) The listed entity has obtained prior Yes None
approval of audit committee for all
related party transactions;

(b) In case no prior approval obtained, the NA NA
listed entity shall provide detailed
reasons along with confirmation whether
the transactions were subsequently
approved/ratified/rejected by the audit
committee.

22
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9 . ) i Yes The Company,
’ Disclosure of events or information: being High Value
The listed entity has provided all the required Debt Listed
disclosure(s) under Regulation 30 along with Company,
Schedule IIlof SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 Regulation 30 along
within the time limits prescribed thereunder. with Schedule
111 of SEBI LODR
Regulations,
2015 is not
applicable to the
Company. Howeven
the Company
has provided all the]
required
disclosure(s) under
Regulation 51
along with Part B of
Schedule 111 of
SEBI LODR|
Regulations, 2015
within the time]
limits prescribed
thereunder
10. Prohibition of Insider Trading: Yes [None
The listed entity is in compliance with
Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.
11 Actions taken by SEBI or Stock '
Exchange(s), if any: No actions werg
taken by SEBI or
No action(s) has been taken against the listed by  the StQCk
o . e Exchanges during]
entity/ its promoters/ directors/ subsidiaries Yes ihe
either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges Review Period
(including under the Standard Operating including under
Procedures issued by SEBI through various Standard Operating]
circulars) under SEBI Regulations and Procedures
circulars/ guidelinesissued thereunder (or) issued by  SEBI
through various
circulars.
12. Resignation of statutory auditors from the NA There has been no

listed entity or its material subsidiaries:

In case of resignation of statutory auditor from
the listed entity or any of its material
subsidiaries during thefinancial year, the listed
entity and / or its material subsidiary(ies) has /
have complied with paragraph 6.1and 6.2 of
section V-D of chapter V ofthe Master Circular
on compliance with the provisions of the
L.ODR Regulations by listed entities.

resignation of
Statutory Auditors
in the FY
2024-25. Moreover,
the tenure of the
Joint Statutory
Auditors was
completed and
accordingly, the
Company in the 18"
Annual General
Meeting held on
September 27, 2024
had appointed M/s
PARY & Co.,
Chartered
Accountants, (Firm
Registration No.

007288C) as

J-338, Ground Floor, Baljeet Nagar, New Delhi — 110008
E-Mail: anshulchhabracs@gmail.com, Mob.: +91-9910844924
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Statutory Auditors
of the Company till
the conclusion of
21st Annual
General Meeting to
be held for the FY
ended March 31,
2027,

13. Additional Non-compliances, if any:

No additional non-compliances observed for
any SEBI regulation/circular/guidance note
etc. except as reported above.

NA

No non-compliance
has been
observed during the
Review Period
in respect of all
SEBI regulations,
circulars, guidance
notes etc.

Assumptions & limitation of scope and review:

BR* = ASSOCIATES
LOMPANY SECRETARIES

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information furnished, are the

responsibilities of the management of the listed entity.

2. Our responsibility is to report based upon our examination of relevant documents and information. This is neither an audit

nor an expression of opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of account of the listed entity.

4. This report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the listed entity.

3 €3,

N

{

PR No: 1621/2021
Date: 29.05.2025

Place: New Delhi

J-338, Ground Floor, Baljeet Nagar, New Delhi — 110008
E-Mail: anshulchhabracs@gmail.com, Mob.: +91-9910844924
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Annexure — 3

DISCLOSURE ON MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Details of remuneration pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employees’ remuneration, for FY 2024-25

Name & Designation Ratio of remuneration to median
Employees’ remuneration
Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, Managing Director & CEO 100:1

Percentage increase in remuneration of each director and Key Managerial Personnel, in FY

Increase in Remuneration [%6]

Name & Designation
FY 2024-25

Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, Managing Director & CEO 0%*

Mr. Ashish Kumar Jain, Chief Financial Officer 0%*

Mr. Ajit Kumar Singh, Company Secretary 30.9%

*there was no increase in the salaries of Mr. Rajiv Gandhi and Mr. Ashish Kumar Jain.

The details of Fee for attending Board meetings and other incentives, if any, paid to Independent
Directors and Non- Executive Directors have been disclosed in the Annual Return as on March 31, 2025,

which is available on the Company’s website on https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/annualreport.php

The above table has been drawn up on the remuneration of the key managerial personnel in FY2024-25.

Average percentile increase in the median remuneration of employees other than Managerial
Personnel, in FY 2024-25

The average increase in the remuneration of all the employees, other than Managerial Personnel, was
9.90%. This was determined based on the overall performance of the Company and internal
evaluation of Key Result Areas.

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company
The Company had 661 employees on its permanent rolls, as of March 31, 2025.

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.

The average percentage increase in the salaries of all employees other than the key managerial
personnel, for FY 2024-25 is around 9.90%, while the average increase in the remuneration of key
managerial personnel is around 2.91%. The rationale for exceptional increase in managerial

25



https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/annualreport.php

remuneration is as mentioned in the paragraph earlier below the table of ‘Percentage increase in
remuneration of each director and Key Managerial Personnel, in FY 2024-25.

The Company confirms that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-

Ajit Kumar Mittal Rajiv Gandhi
Place: Mumbai Non-Executive Chairman  Managing Director & CEO

Date: September 5, 2025 DIN: 02698115 DIN: 09063985




Annexure — 4

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31°T MARCH, 2025

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company focuses its CSR efforts on such areas, where it could provide maximum benefits to
the society at large. These are, improving awareness of communities towards Health care Services,
Arts and Cultural Development etc. The Company will continue to engage with stakeholders
including experts, NGOs, professional bodies / forums and the government and would take up such
CSR activities in line with the government’s intent, which are important for the society at large.
The Company may also undertake such other CSR projects, where societal needs are high or in
special situations (natural disasters etc.). The Company’s CSR Policy is available at Web-link:
https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/uploads/CSR-Policy.pdf

Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl Name of Designation/ | Number of meetings of [Number of meetings of CSR
Director Nature of CSR Committee held Committee attended
Directorship during the year during the year

Mr. Rajiv* Chairman 3 2
Gandhi
Mr. Satish Member
Chand Mathur
Mr. Member
Dinabandhu
Mohapatra

Mr. Anil Chairman
Malhan**

* Mr. Rajiv Gandhi was appointed as Chairman w.e.f December 23, 2024.
**Resigned from Directorship w.e.f. November 12, 2024.

3. Web - link consisting Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects as
approved by the Board as disclosed on the website of the Company.

Composition of the CSR committee shared in above point and is available on the Company’s
website https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/boardofdirectors.php and Policy of the Company is
available at https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/uploads/CSR-Policy.pdf

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:

There are no projects undertaken or completed as on March 31, 2025, for which the impact
assessment report is applicable in FY 2025. The projects are being under taken on an ongoing
basis.

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): % 362,88,06,167/-
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): X 7,25,77,000/-
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(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b + ¢ - d): X 7,25,77,000/-

6. (&) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):
% 7,25,77,000/-

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: X 7,25,77,000/-

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in )

Spent for theTotal Amount transferred | Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Financial Year to Unspent CSR Account as | Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub-section
2024-25 per subsection (6) of section | (5) of section 135.
(in%) 135

Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of transfer
transfer Fund
7,25,77,000 NA NA

NA

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. | Particular Amount (in%)

No.
1) (2) ®3)

(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of | 7,25,77,000
section 135

(ii) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year 7,25,77,000

(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0

(iv) [Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 0
previous financial years, if any

(v) |Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 0

Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years: Not Applicable

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Preceding Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferred | Amount Deficiency
Financial |transferredto| Amountin | Spentin to a Fund remaining to | if any
Year(s) Unspent CSR Unspent the as specified under |be spentin
Account under CSR Financial Schedule succeeding

sub- section Account Year VIl as per second  [Financial
(6) of section under (in%) proviso to Years
135(@n3) | sub-section sub- section (5) of  (in 3)
(6) of section section
135, if any




135(in %) Amount | Date of
(in%) |Transfer
Not Applicable

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

Yes v No
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: Not Applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

Short Pincode Date of | Amount | Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of
particulars of creation | of CSR the

of the amount registered owner

the property spent
property or
or asset(s) asset(s)
[including
complete
address
and
location of
the

property]
&)

CSR Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable
| N.A. | NA | NA N.A. N.A. N.A.

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no,
Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the
area of the immovable property as well as boundaries).

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per sub-section (5) of section 135: N.A.

For Sammaan Finserve Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Dinabandhu Mohapatra Rajiv Gandhi

Place: Mumbai Member — CSR Committee Chairman — CSR Committee
Date: September 5, 2025 Independent Director Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 07488705) (DIN: 09063985)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Sammaan Finserv Limited (“the Company”/ SFL) (formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit
Limited) is committed towards achieving the highest standards of Corporate Governance by staying true
to its core values of Customer First, Transparency, Integrity and Professionalism. The Company
continually works towards implementing robust, resilient and best-in-class corporate practices in every
facet of its operations, and in all spheres of its activities, thereby generating higher returns and
maximizing Shareholder value. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance is to adopt changes on
corporate level in such a transparent manner that focuses on long term value creation of the Company and
its stakeholders in a sustainable manner.

Your Company focuses primarily on long-term secured mortgage-backed loans and offer loans against
property to the target client base of salaried and self-employed Individuals and small and medium-sized
enterprises. It also offer mortgage loans to real estate developers in India in the form of lease rental
discounting for commercial premises and construction finance for the construction of residential
premises.

SFL, along with its parent Company i.e. Sammaan Capital Limited (SCL), has strong expertise in
mortgage based financing. SME loans, that SFL and SCL underwrite are in the lowest risk segment where
loans are given out to small businesses. SFL emphasizes on self-occupied, self-used properties for
collateral, appraising loans which are verified as per cash-flow; and importantly, the loans meant for
productive business deployment which has to be demonstrated at the time of loan appraisal - all of which
is aimed to help small business owners further their business plans.

The Company has undergone rebranding activity and changed its name from Indiabulls Commercial Credit
Limited to Sammaan Finserve Limited. The Company has received a fresh certificate of incorporation
(“COTI”) from the Registrar of Companies, New Delhi (RoC), and a fresh Certificate of Registration
(“CoR”) as an NBFC-ICC (Non-Banking Financial Company — Investment and Credit Company) from the
RBIL Upon receipt of the said COI and COR, the Company’s name stands changed from ‘Indiabulls
Commercial Credit Limited’ to ‘Sammaan Finserve Limited’.

The Company believes that success requires the highest standards of corporate behavior and engagement
with all of its Stakeholders. This is the path to consistent, competitive, profitable and responsible growth,
and for creating long-term value for its Shareholders, its Employees and Business Partners. The Board of
Directors (“the Board”) is responsible for and is committed to sound principles of Corporate Governance
of the Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the management serves the short and
long-term interests of Shareholders and other Stakeholders. This belief is reflected in its governance
practices, under which it strives to maintain an effective, informed and independent Board. The Company
keeps its governance practices under continuous review and benchmark itself to best practices.

The Company is in compliance with the RBI’s, Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company —
Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“RBI
NBFC Direction”) and the applicable SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations™).

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(A) Composition and size of the Board

Presently, as on the date of this report, the Board consists of Seven Directors, two of whom including the
Chairman, are Non-Executive Directors and out of the remaining Five Directors, Mr. Dinabandhu
Mohapatra, Mr. Satish Chand Mathur, Mr. Gorinka Jaganmohan Rao and Ms. Nikita Sureshchand
Tulsian, are Non-Executive Independent Directors. Mr. Rajiv Gandhi is the Managing Director & CEO of
the Company. The Chairman, Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal, being a Non-Executive Director, the number of
Independent Non-Executive Directors on the Board is more than one third of the total Board strength.




No Director is related to any other Director on the Board. The Board comprises of the Directors that bring
a wide range of skills, expertise and experience which enhance overall Board effectiveness.

The Board has identified skills and domain expertize required by the Directors of the Company which
includes Banking & Finance, Business Strategy, Corporate Governance, Corporate Social Responsibility,
Foreign Exchange, Human Resources, Customer Services, Legal, Marketing, Operations and Process
Optimization, Policy Making, Recovery, Regulatory Compliances, Risk Management, Stakeholder
Management, Treasury and Value Creation. The Directors of the Company have mapped their skills
based on the Board skill matrix.

Details of Directors, directorship in Listed Companies, number of directorships held by them in other
Companies and also the number of their Memberships and Chairmanships on various Board Committees,
including skill sets/ expertise/competencies/practical knowledge, as on March 31, 2025, are as under:

SI. | Name of the | Nature of | Special Knowledge/| Names of the other Category of No. of Directorships No. of Memberships/
No Director Office Practical listed entities where the | directorship Chairmanships in Board
Experience/ Skills/ | person is a director in other Committees of various
Expertise/ listed entities companies (including this
Competencies where the Company)**

personisa | in other Listed Inother  |Memberships|Chairmanships
director Companies Companies*
(excluding Debt
listed Company)
Mr. Ajit Non- Taxation, Regulatory NIL
Kumar Mittal | Executive Compliances,
(DIN: Chairman Business Strategy,
02698115) Regulatory / legal &
Risk Management,
Marketing,
Corporate
Governance,
Corporate Social
Responsibility,
Stakeholder
Management,
Operations and
Process Optimization

Mr. Rajiv Managing | Leadership, Banking
Gandhi Director & and Finance,
(DIN: CEO Business Strategy,
09063985) Regulatory / legal &
Risk Management,
Treasury, Foreign
Exchange, Recovery,
Marketing,
Corporate
Governance,
Corporate Social
Responsibility,
Stakeholder
Management,
Operations and
Process Optimization

Mr. Naveen Non- Facility
Uppal*** Executive management,
(DIN: Director Property
10813991) management,
Administrative
skills, Leadership
skills, Expertise in
service industry and
projects execution,
Regulatory
compliances, Human
Resources and
Finance Management|

Ms. Nikita Non- Business Strategy,
Sureshchand | Executive |Regulatory / legal &
Tulsian Director |Risk Management,
(DIN: Recovery,
08628087) Marketing,
Corporate
Governance,
Corporate Social
Responsibility,
Stakeholder
Management and
Process Optimization




Mr. Satish
Chand Mathur
(DIN:
03641285)

Non-
Executive/
Independent
Director

Industry Knowledge
& Experience,
Financial, Regulatory
/ legal & Risk
Management,
Corporate
Governance,
Operations and
Process Optimization

Tilaknagar Industries
Limited

Kesar Petroproducts
Limited

Non-
Executive-
Independent
Director

Non-
Executive-
Independent
Director

Mr.
Dinabandhu
Mohapatra
(DIN:

Non-
Executive/
Independent
Director

Industry Knowledge
& Experience,
Financial, Regulatory
/ legal & Risk

Sammaan Capital Limited

(Formerly known as
Indiabulls Housing
Finance Limited)

Non-
Executive-
Independent
Director

07488705) Management,
Corporate
Governance,
Operations and
Process Optimization,
Banking and Finance

Mr. Gorinka Non- Industry Knowledge | Viceroy Hotels Limited Non-
Jaganmohan | Executive/ & Experience, Executive-
Rao Independent |Financial, Regulatory| SG Finserve Limited Independent
(DIN: Director / legal & Risk Director
06743140) Management,
Exchange control,
customer services
Corporate
Governance,
Operations and
Process Optimization

*Excludes directorship(s) held in foreign companies & private limited companies and Companies under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Partnership Firms, LLP, HUF, Sole Proprietorships and Association of Individuals (Trust, Society etc.).

**Only chairmanship and memberships of the Audit Committee / Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in public limited companies whether
listed or not, including this listed company shall be considered, as per Regulation 26 of Listing Regulations. The Company being ‘High Value
Debt Listed Entity’, the membership and chairmanship of Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee in the Company have not
been considered, in terms of Regulation 26(1) of Listing Regulations.

***Mr Naveen Uppal was appointed as Non-Executive Director w.e.f. November 12, 2024.

The Board do hereby confirms that all the present Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the
conditions specified in the SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent of the management of the
Company and none of them have resigned before the expiry of their respective tenure(s). During the
Financial Year under review, Mr. Naveen Uppal (DIN: 10813991) was appointed as an Additional Non-
Executive Non- Independent Director of the Company, subsequently the shareholders at the
Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on November 13, 2024, regularize the appointment of Mr.
Naveen Uppal as Non-Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. November 12, 2024.

The Board had accepted all recommendations of Committees of the Board which are mandatorily
required, during the financial year 2024-25.

As on March 31, 2025, none of the Non-Executive Directors held any Equity Share and/or Convertible
Security of the Company.

The Company has familiarization programme for Independent Directors with regard to their roles,
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the business
model of the Company etc. The familiarization programme along with details of the same imparted to
the Independent Directors during the year are available on the website of the Company
https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/
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(B) Number and Dates of Board Meetings held, attendance of Directors thereat and at the last
AGM held

The Board Meetings of the Company are held in a highly professional manner, after giving proper
notice, Board papers, agenda and other explanatory notes / relevant information to each of the Directors
of the Company, well in advance. At least one meeting is held in every quarter, to review the quarterly
performance and the financial results of the Company.

Senior Management including the CFO and CRO are invited to attend the Board Meetings so as to
provide additional inputs on the items being discussed by the Board. At the Board Meetings, the
Executive Directors and Senior Management make presentations on various matters including the
financial results, operations related issues, risk management, the economic and regulatory environment,
compliance, investors’ perceptions etc.

During the year under review, 8 (Eight) Board Meetings were held and the gap between two meetings
did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said meetings were held on May 24, 2024, August 13,
2024, August 29, 2024, September 30, 2024, November 12, 2024, November 14, 2024, December
23, 2024 and February 11, 2025. The necessary quorum was present in all the meetings. During FY
2024-25, 1 (one) meeting of the Independent Directors was held on March 25, 2025 where in all the
Independent Directors attended the meeting. The Independent Directors, inter-alia, reviewed the
performance of the Non-Independent Directors, Board as a whole, the quality, quantity and timeliness of
the flow of information between the Company’s management and the Board and the performance of the
Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive Director and Non-Executive
Directors.

The last Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on September 27, 2024.

Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the FY 2024-25 and at the last Annual
General Meeting are as under:

Sr. No.  |[Name of the Director No. of Board meetings | Attendance at the last
attended AGM

Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal (DIN 02698115) 7 No
Mr. Rajiv Gandhi (DIN: 09063985) No
Mr. Anil Malhan (DIN: 01542646)* Yes
Mr.Naveen Uppal (DIN: 10813991)** NA
Mr. Satish Chand Mathur (DIN: 03641285) No
Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra (DIN: 07488705) Yes
Mr. Gorinka Jaganmohan Rao (DIN: 06743140) No
Ms. Nikita Sureshchand Tulsian (DIN: 08628087) No

B[N[O[OS[®[N[F

* Mr. Anil Malhan (DIN: 01542646), resigned from Directorship of the Company w.e.f. November 12, 2024 and hence did
not attend Board meetings thereafter.
** Mr. Naveen Uppal appointed as Non-Executive Director w.e.f. November 12, 2024.

2. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has constituted various Committees to take informed decisions in the best interest of the
Company. These Committees monitor the activities falling within their terms of reference. Further, terms
of reference were revised to align with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations
and RBI Act. The number of Directorships held by all Directors as well as their Membership /
Chairmanship in Committees is within the prescribed limits under the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations.

The role and the composition of these Committees including number of meetings held during the financial
year and participation of the members at the meetings of the committees, during the year are as under:




(A) Audit Committee
Composition

The Audit Committee comprises of three members, namely, Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra, Independent
Director as the Chairman, Mr. Satish Chand Mathur and Mr. Gorinka Jaganmohan Rao, Independent
Directors, as other two members.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter-alia, include:

To oversee the financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information;

To review with management, quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements and ensure their
accuracy and correctness before submission to the Board;

To review with management and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems,
approving the internal audit plans/ reports and reviewing the efficacy of their function, discussion
and review of periodic audit reports including findings of internal investigations;

To recommend the appointment of the internal and statutory auditors and their remuneration;

To review and approve required provisions to be maintained as per IRAC norms and write off
decisions;

To hold discussions with the Statutory and Internal Auditors;

Review and monitoring of the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

Examination of the auditors’ report on financial statements of the Company (in addition to the
financial statements) before submission to the Board;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Review of Credit Concurrent Audit Report/ Concurrent Audit Report of Treasury;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters as and when such
funds are raised and also reviewing with the management the utilisation of the funds so raised, for
purposes other than those stated in the relevant offer document, if any and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board in this regard;

Evaluation of the risk management systems (in addition to the internal control systems);

Review and monitoring of the performance of the statutory auditors and effectiveness of the audit
process;

To hold post audit discussions with the auditors to ascertain any area of concern;

To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

Approval to the appointment of the CFO after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background etc. of the candidate;

Approval of Bad Debt Write Off in terms of the Policy;

Review of information system audit of the internal systems and processes to assess the operational
risks faced by the Company and also ensures that the information system audit of internal systems
and processes is conducted periodically; and

Reviewing the utilisation of loans and/or advances and/or investment by the Company to its
subsidiary companies, exceeding X 100 crores or 10% of the assets side of the respective subsidiary
companies, whichever is lower, including existing loans / advances / investment existing as on
April 01, 20109.

Meetings and Attendance during the year




During the financial year ended March 31, 2025 the Committee met seven times. The dates of the
meetings being May 23, 2024, August 12, 2024, August 29, 2024, November 14, 2024, December 20,
2024, February 11, 2025 and March 29, 2025

The attendance of Committee members in these meetings are as under:

Name of the Member(s) Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra Non- Executive Independent Director 7 7

Mr. Satish Chand Mathur Non- Executive Independent Director

7 6
Mr. Gorinka Jaganmohan Rao* |Non- Executive Independent Director 7 2
Mr. Anil Malhan** Non-Executive Director 7 1

* Mr. Gorinka Jaganmohan Rao was appointed as member w.e.f. December 23, 2024
** Mr. Anil Malhan has resigned from Directorship of the Company w.e.f. November 12, 2024

(B)

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Composition

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of three members, namely, Mr. Dinabandhu
Mohapatra, Independent Director as the Chairman, Mr. Satish Chand Mathur, Independent Director and
Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal, Non-Executive Director, as other two members.

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, include:

Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the board of
directors;

Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors
their appointment and removal,

Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of
the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors;

To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed/ existing directors;

To recommend to the Board all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Directors, KMPs and
senior management;

Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025 the Committee met three times. The dates of the
meetings being April 20, 2024, November 12, 2024 and February 10, 2025.

The attendance of Committee members in these meetings is as under:

Name of the Member(s) Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra Non- Executive Independent Director 3 3

Mr. Satish Chand Mathur Non- Executive Independent Director

3 3
Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal* Non-Executive Director 3 1
Mr. Anil Malhan** Non-Executive Director 3 1

* Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal was appointed as member w.e.f. December 23, 2024
** Mr. Anil Malhan has resigned from Directorship of the Company w.e.f. November 12, 2024




Policy for selection and appointment of Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (N&R Committee) has adopted a charter which, inter alia,
deals with the manner of selection of the Board of Directors, Senior Management and their compensation.
This Policy is accordingly derived from the said Charter.

a. The incumbent for the positions of Directors and/or at Senior Management, shall be the persons
of high integrity, possesses relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities, required for
the position.

The Directors shall be of high integrity, with relevant expertise and experience so as to have the
diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of finance, banking, regulatory,
taxation, law, governance and general management.

In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the independent nature of the proposed
appointee vis-a-vis the Company, shall be ensured.

The N&R Committee shall consider qualification, experience, expertise of the incumbent, and
shall also ensure that such other criteria with regard to age and other qualification etc., as laid
down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws are fulfilled, before recommending
to the Board, for their appointment as Directors.

In case of re-appointment, the Board shall take into consideration, the performance evaluation of
the Director and his engagement level.

Evaluation of the Board and Directors

The Independent Directors play a key role in the decision-making process of the Board as they approve
the overall strategy of the Company and oversee performance of the management. The Independent
Directors are committed to act in the best interest of the Company and its stakeholders. The Independent
Directors bring a wide range of experience, knowledge and judgment. Their wide knowledge of both,
their field of expertise and boardroom practices brings in varied, unbiased, independent and experienced
outlook. All Independent Directors have committed and allocated sufficient time to perform their duties
effectively. All the Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they have registered
themselves in the databank created for Independent Directors, well within the stipulated time frame.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board reassessed the framework,
methodology and criteria for evaluating the performance of the Board as a whole, including Board
Committee(s), as well as performance of each Director(s)/Chairman. The existing parameters includes
effectiveness of the Board and its Committees, decision making process, Directors/Members
participation, governance, independence, quality and content of agenda papers, team work, frequency of
meetings, discussions at meetings, corporate culture, contribution, role of the Chairman and management
of conflict of interest.

Basis these parameters, the NRC had reviewed at length the performance of each Director individually
and expressed satisfaction on the process of evaluation and the performance of each Director. The
performance evaluation of the Board as a whole and its Committees namely Audit Committee,
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee as well as the
performance of each Director individually, including the Chairman was carried out by the entire Board of
Directors.

During FY 2024-25, 1 (one) meeting of the Independent Directors was held on March 25, 2025 where in
all the Independent Directors attended the meeting. The Independent Directors, inter-alia, reviewed the
performance of the Non-Independent Directors, Board as a whole, the quality, quantity and timeliness of
the flow of information between the Company’s management and the Board and the performance of the




Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive Director and Non- Executive
Directors.

(C) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Composition

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of three members, namely, Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal,
Non-Executive Director, as the Chairman, Mr. Satish Chand Mathur and Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra,
Independent Directors, as other two members.

Terms of reference
The terms of reference of Stakeholders Relationship Committee, inter-alia, include:

Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares/Debentures, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared
dividends/interest, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.,

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders,

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent,

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum
of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory
notices by the shareholders of the company.

Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025 the Committee met four times. The dates of the Meetings
being April 20, 2024, August 13, 2024, November 12, 2024 and February 10, 2025.

The attendance of Committee members in these meetings is as under:

Name of the Member(s) Category No. of Meetings
Held Attended

Non-Executive Director 4 1
Non- Executive/ Independent Director

Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal*
Mr. Satish Chand Mathur
Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra
Mr. Anil Malhan**

* Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal was appointed as member w.e.f. December 23, 2024
** Mr. Anil Malhan has resigned from Directorship of the Company w.e.f. November 12, 2024

4 4
Non- Executive/ Independent Director 4 4
4 2

Non-Executive Director

Name and designation of the Compliance officer:

Mr. Ajit Kumar Singh, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer pursuant to Regulation 6(1) of
SEBI Listing Regulations.

Details of queries / complaints received and resolved pertaining to Equity Shares of the Company
during the year 2024-25:

During FY 2024-25, no complaints were received from the Equity Shareholders of the Company.

Details of queries / complaints received and resolved pertaining to Non-Convertible Debentures of
the Company during the year 2024-25:

SI. No.

Particulars

Opening

Received

Disposed

Pending

Legal Cases / Cases before Consumer Forums 0

0

0

0

Letters from SEBI / Stock Exchange. 0

3

3

0

Non-receipt of Interest/Redemption 0

130

125

5




Non-receipt of annual report

Non-receipt of Refund order

Non-receipt of Electronic credit
Non-credit/receipt of NCDs in demat account
Non-receipt of securities

Total

(D) Risk Management Committee
Composition

The Risk Management Committee currently comprises of 3 members namely Mr. Dinabandhu
Mohapatra, Independent Director as the Chairman, Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, Managing Director & CEO and Mr.
Ashish Jain, CFO as other two members.

Terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee
The terms of reference of Risk Management Committee, inter-alia, include:

Review of Grievance Redressal Mechanism and Customers Services;

Approve the Credit/Operation Policy and its review/modification from time to time;

Review of applicable regulatory requirements;

Approve all the functional policies of the Company;

Place appropriate mechanism in the system to cater Fraud while dealing with customers/approval
of loans etc;

Review of profile of the high loan Customers and periodical review of the same;

Review of Branch Audit Report;

Review Compliances of lapses;

Review of implementation of FPCs, KYC and PMLA guidelines;

Define loan sanctioning authorities, including process of vetting by credit and investment
committee, for various types/values of loans as specified in Credit Policy approved by the Board;
Recommend Bad Debt Write Off in terms of the Policy, for approval to Audit Committee;

Ensure appropriate mechanisms to detect customer fraud and cyber security during the loan
approval process etc.;

Evaluation of the risk management systems (in addition to the internal control systems); and
Recovery action on NPA cases to be approved/ratified by the committee;

To act / decide / deliberate on such cases falling with both Samman Finserve Limited (SFL) and
Sammaan Capital Limited (SCL)

Approval of waiver of charges accrued but nor recognized/booked’ For NPA cases;

Any other matter involving Risk to the asset/business of the Company.

Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025 the Committee met five times. The dates of the meetings
being May 23, 2024, August 12, 2024, November 12, 2024, February 10, 2025 and March 29, 2025.

The attendance of Committee members in these meetings is as under:

Name of the Member(s) Category No. of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra Non- Executive Independent Director 5 5
Mr. Rajiv Gandhi Managing Director & CEO
Mr. Ashish Jain Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Kaushik Mukherjee* Member

Mr. Anil Malhan ** Non-Executive Director

* Mr. Kaushik Mukherjee has resigned from the committee w.e.f. December 23, 2024

** Mr. Anil Malhan has resigned from Directorship of the Company w.e.f. November 12, 2024




(E) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

Composition

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of three members namely Mr. Rajiv Gandhi,
Managing Director & CEO, as the Chairman, Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra and Mr. Satish Chand Mathur,
Independent Directors as other two members.

Terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

To recommend to the Board, the CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company.
To approve the expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities.

To oversee and review the effective implementation of the CSR activities.

To ensure compliance of all related applicable regulatory requirements.

Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025 the Committee met three times. The date of the meetings
being August 13, 2024, February 10, 2025 and March 31, 2025.

The attendance of Committee members in these meetings is as under:

Name of the Member(s) Category No. of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Rajiv Gandhi* Managing Director & CEO 3 2

Mr. Satish Chand Mathur Non- Executive Independent Director 3 3
Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra Non- Executive Independent Director 3 3
Mr. Anil Malhan** Non-Executive Director 3 1
* Mr. Rajiv Gandhi was appointed as Chairman w.e.f. December 23, 2024.

** Mr. Anil Malhan has resigned from Directorship of the Company w.e.f. November 12, 2024.

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION

(A) Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors:

None of the Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs”) and Independent Directors (“IDs”) had any pecuniary
relationships or transactions with the Company during the year under review. The Company had not paid
any Sitting fees/remuneration to the NEDs of the Company, for the FY 2024-25.

The Independent Directors (ID) contribute significantly for laying down the policies and providing
guidelines for conduct of Company’s business. They exercise effective oversight, and also guide the
senior management team. Their experience and inputs have been invaluable. They also devote their
valuable time in deliberating on the strategic and critical issues in the course of the Board and Committee
meetings of the Company and give their valuable advice, suggestion and guidance to the management of
the Company. The Company is making payment of fee/ remuneration payable to its IDs in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR.

The Company has placed on its website https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/dir/ICCL-Criteria-for-
making-payment-to-non-executive-directors.pdf, criteria for making payment to Non- Executive
Directors. During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, the Independent Directors have been paid,
sitting fees for attending the Board meetings of the Company, the details of which are provided in the
Annual Return as on March 31, 2025, which is available on the Company’s website on
https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/annualreport.php
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(B) Managing Director & CEO

The Managing Director & CEO, being an Executive Director is being paid remuneration as recommended
by Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors/ Shareholders. The
elements of the remuneration package comprise salary, commissions, perquisites, other benefits &
allowances and post-retirement benefits. The same is decided by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee within the overall limits as approved by the Board / Shareholders. The annual increments of
Executive Directors are linked to their performance & are elected by Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. The notice period presently applicable to them is as per the Company policies. No severance
fee is payable by the Company on termination of Executive Directors. The Whole Time Director of the
Company is being appointed by the Shareholders for a fixed tenure and is liable to retire by rotation.

Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors during the year under review are provided in the

Annual Return as on March 31, 2025, which is available on the Company’s website on
https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/annualreport.php

GENERAL MEETINGS

(A) Location and time of last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) and number of special
resolutions passed thereat:

Year Meeting Location Date Time Number of special
resolutions passed
2021-22 | 16" AGM |5th Floor, Building no. 27, KG Marg, |September 26,| 11:00 A.M One
Connaught Place, New Delhi — 2022
110001
2022-23 | 17" AGM | 5th Floor, Building no. 27, KG Marg, |September 25, 9:00 A.M.
Connaught Place, New Delhi — 2023
110001
2023-24 | 18" AGM | 5" Floor, Building no. 27, KG Marg, |September 27,| 9:00 A.M.
Connaught Place, New Delhi — 2024
110001

(B) Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”):

The Company during the financial year conducted two Extraordinary General Meetings on April
29, 2024 for passing 1 Special Resolution i.e. for change in the name of the Company from
Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited to ‘Sammaan Finserve Limited’ and consequential
amendment to Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company and
November 13, 2024 for passing 7 Special Resolution(s) i.e. (1) To approve Transfer of Legacy,
Wholesale Loans’ Business of the Company via Business Transfer Agreement to the Holding
Company; (2) To approve Sammaan Finserve Limited- Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2024
and Grant of Employee Stock Options to the Employees / Directors of the Company; (3) To
approve to extend the benefits of Sammaan Finserve Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme
2024 to the Directors / Employees of the Holding Company, its Subsidiaries/Associate(s) (if
any); (4) To approve grant of Employee Stock Options to the identified employees during any
one year, equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued Capital of the Company at the time of
grant of Employee Stock Options; (5) To approve waiver of excess Managerial Remuneration
paid to Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, Managing Director & CEO (DIN: 09063985) of the Company in terms
of Section 197 of Companies Act 2013 for the Financial Year 2024-25; (6) To approve waiver of
excess Managerial Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors of the Company in terms of
Section 197 of Companies Act 2013 for the Financial Year 2024-25; (7) To approve appointment
of Mr. Naveen Uppal (DIN: 10813991) as a Non- Executive Director of the Company




(C) Postal Ballot during the FY 2024-25:

During the year 2024-25, no resolution was passed by the Company through Postal Ballot. No Special
Resolution requiring Postal Ballot is being proposed on or before the ensuing AGM of the Company.

5. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The ‘Investor’ section on the Company’s website https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/ keeps the
investors updated on material developments in the Company by providing key and timely information
such as Quarterly/halfyearly/Annual Financial Results, Annual Reports, Contact details of persons
responsible for investor grievances, etc. The debenture holders can also send in their queries / complaints
t the designated email address at homeloans@sammaancapital.com. Financial Results are normally
published in Business Standard, Financial Express and Jansatta Newspapers.

6. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
(A) Company Registration Details

The Company is registered in the State of Delhi, India. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to
the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is U65923DL2006PLC150632.

(B) Date, Time and Venue of AGM

The 19" AGM of the Company would be held on the day, date and time as mentioned in the Notice
convening the said AGM.

(C) Financial year

The financial year of the Company is a period of twelve months beginning on April 01, every calendar
year and ending on March 31 the following calendar year.

(D) Dividend Payment Date

Due to loss in the FY 2024-25, the Board of Directors of the Company has not declared any dividend for
the said Financial Year 2024-25.

(E) Listing on Stock Exchanges

The Equity Shares of the Company are not listed. Only Secured/Unsecured Redeemable Non- Convertible
Debentures (NCDs), issued through public issue and private placement basis are listed on National Stock
Exchange of India and BSE Limited

BSE Limited (BSE) National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, “Exchange Plaza”, Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400 001 Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051

The listing fees for the financial year 2024-25 & 2025-26, have been paid to BSE and NSE.

(F) Explanation in regard to suspension of trading of securities: N.A.
(G) Share Transfer System:

In terms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, securities can
be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request
received for transmission or transposition of securities. 99.99 % equity shares of the Company are in
dematerialized form, hence, transfers of equity shares in electronic form are effected through the
depositories with no involvement of the Company.
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(H) Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2025

Not Applicable as Sammaan Finserv Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)
is wholly owned subsidiary of Sammaan Capital Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Housing Finance
Limited).

(I)  Registrar and Transfer Agents

KFin Technologies Limited

Unit: Sammaan Finserve Limited

(formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited),
Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad — 500 032, Telangana

Toll free number: 1- 800-309-4001

E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com

Website: www.kfintech.com and https://ris.kfintech.com/

(J) Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2025

Sammaan Capital Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited) holds entire share
capital of the Company i.e. 1,23,89,96,620 Equity Shares of X 2/- each along with its 7 nominees.

(K) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

99.99% Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2025. Under the
Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company’s
equity shares is INE244L.01021.

(L) Outstanding global depository receipts or American Depository Receipts or warrants or any
convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: Not Applicable

(M) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: Not Applicable

(N)  Plant Locations: As the Company is engaged in the business of financial services, there is no plant
location.

(O) Address for Correspondence

Registered Office:

2nd Floor Plot No-3 Block-A Pocket-2,
Sector-17 Dwarka Residential Scheme,

District Court Complex Dwarka,

South West Delhi, India, 110075

Email lap@sammaancapital.com

Tel: +91 1145571048 & +91 1145571061
Website: https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/

Corporate Office:

a) Ground Floor, Tower 3A,
DLF Corporate Greens, Sector-74A,
Gurgaon, Narsinghpur, Haryana — 122 004

b) One International Centre,18th Floor, Tower 1,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road,
Mumbai — 400 013, Maharashtra
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(P) Debenture Trustees

Secured/ Unsecured Non-convertible Debentures issued under Private Placement basis.

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited

Contact Person: Mr. Ashish Naik

Address: Universal Insurance Building, Ground Floor,
Sir P.M. Road, Fort, Mumbai — 400001

Tel: (022) 40807073;

Fax: (022) 66311776

Website: https://idbitrustee.com/

Beacon Trusteeship Limited

Contact Person: Mr. Kaustubh Kulkarni
Address: 5W, 5th Floor, The Metropolitan,
E Block, Bandra Kurla Complex (BKC),
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

Tel: 022-4606 0278

Website: https://beacontrustee.co.in/

Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenture issued on Public Issue basis.

AXis Trustee Services Limited

Contact Person: Mr. Anil Grover

Address: The Ruby, 2" Floor, SW, 29 Senapati Bapat Marg,
Dadar West, Mumbai — 400 028 (Maharashtra)

Tel: +91- 22 6230 0451

Website: www.axistrustee.in

(Q) Profiles of the directors seeking appointment / re-appointment:

Profiles of the directors seeking appointment / re-appointment have been captured in the Notice

convening the 19" AGM of the Company.

(R) Credit Ratings and Change/ Revisions in Credit Ratings for Debt Instruments:

Name of
Credit

Rating Date of Rating
Agency Nature of the Instrument

Rating/Revalidation | Assigned/Reaffirmed

Borrowing
Limit (Amt
in X Billion)

CRISIL Term Loans Mar-25 | CRISIL AA

25.00

CRISIL Subordinate debt Feb-25 | CRISIL AA

5.00

CRISIL Retail Bond Feb-25 | CRISIL AA

45.00

CRISIL NCDs Feb-25 | CRISIL AA

35.00

NCDs (Public Issue of retail secured
CRISIL redeemable non-convertible debentures) Feb-25 | CRISIL AA

2.00

CRISIL Short Term Debt (CPs) Feb-25 | CRISIL A1+

30.00

CARE Long-term/Short term bank facilities Oct-24 | CARE AA-/CARE Al+

13.00

CARE Subordinate debt Dec-24 | CARE AA-

0.40

CARE NCDs Dec-24 | CARE AA-

0.27

Public Issue of secured redeemable non-
CARE convertible debentures Dec-24 | CARE AA-

0.00

Brickwork

NCDs

May-24

BWR AA+

5.00

Brickwork

NCDs

May-24

BWR AA+

18.00
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Brickwork | Bank Loan Facilities May-24 | BWR AA+

Brickwork | Subordinate debt May-24 | BWR AA+

NCDs (Public Issue of retail secured
Brickwork | redeemable non-convertible debentures) May-24 | BWR AA+

Brickwork | Short Term Debt (CPs) May-24 | BWR Al+

ICRA NCDs Nov-24 | ICRA AA

ICRA Retail Bond Nov-24 | ICRA AA

ICRA Subordinate debt Nov-24 | ICRA AA

Please note for outstanding rated debt, rating is valid throughout the life of the Instrument.

(S) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement:

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company did not allot any shares through preferential allotment
or qualified institutional placement.

(T) Fees paid to Statutory Auditors#

Total fees for all services paid by the Company, to the Statutory Auditor and all entities in the network
firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditor is a part is given below:-
Amount
(Rs. in crores)

Year ended
March 31, 2025

As auditor
Audit Fee 0.38

Certification fee* 0.00

Others** 0.03
Total 0.41

*Included in Legal and Professional Charges
**Amortised as per EIR method for calculation of Interest cost on Non-Convertible Debentures and included under Finance Cost

V) Particulars of Senior Management

The particulars of senior management as per Regulation 16(1)(d) of Listing Regulations including the
changes during the financial Year 2024-25 are as follows:

Name Designation

o

Mr. Ashish Kumar Jain Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Jain Chief Risk Officer

Mr. Joginder Kumar Khatri Collection Head

Mr. Ajit Kumar Singh Company Secretary

Mr. Devendra Kochhar* Chief Compliance Officer
Mrs. Charu Sachdeva** Head- Human Resources
Mr. Yogesh Verma** Head- Human Resources

Mr. Anil Kumar Yadav Head-Information Technology
Mr. Santosh Tamang Chief Information Security Officer
Mr. Amit Arya Internal Auditor

Mr. Amit Kumar Head-Operations

Mr. Vivekravichandra Aningi Head Legal

Mr. Ritesh Bhandari Head FCU
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14, Mr. Ashish Heda Head CC-Credit
15. Mr. Avi Khivasara Head Technical
16. Mr. Gaurav Aggarwal Head Credit

17. Mr. Ketan Talati National Sales Manager

*Mr. Devendra Kochhar and Mr. Amit Arya was appointed as Chief Compliance Officer and Internal Auditor respectively
w.e.f. November 14, 2024

**ceased to be Senior Managerial Personnel w.e.f. April 28, 2025 and in her place Mr. Yogesh Verma was appointed as Head —
Human Resources

7. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

A certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary certifying the Company’s compliance with the
provisions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is annexed to and forms a part of this Report.

Further, the Company has also obtained certificate from M/s Anshul Chhabra & Associates, Practising
Company Secretaries that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/ Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The same is annexed to and forms a part of this Report.

8. DISCLOSURES IN RELATION TO THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Number of complaints filed |Number of complaints disposed of | Number of complaints pending
during the financial year. during the financial year. as on end of the financial year.

Nil N.A. N.A.

9. OTHER DISCLOSURES
(A) Related Party Transactions

There were no material related party transactions during the year that have a conflict with the interest of
the Company.

Further, the Company also has a policy on dealing with related party transactions which is disclosed on its
website at https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/dir/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf

(B) Strictures and penalties during the last three years

The Company has not paid any penalty during Financial Year 2022-23, 2023-24 and 2024-25.

(C)  Vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established necessary Vigil Mechanism for Directors
and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour. No person has been denied access to the
Audit Committee.

The details of the Whistle Blower Policy are available on the website of the Company
https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/dir/ICCL-Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf

(D) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
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The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements pursuant to SEBI Listing Regulations, in
letter as well as in spirit. The details of these compliances have been given in the relevant sections of this
Report.

The Company has adopted the following discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II:
The Company has adopted regime of financial statement with unmodified audit opinion.
The Company has appointed separate posts of Chairman and the Managing Director & CEOQ such
that Chairman is a Non-Executive Director and not related to Managing Director & CEO.
The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to Audit Committee of the Company.

Apart from above, the Company has not adopted the non-mandatory requirements as specified in SEBI
(Listing) Regulations.

(E) Material Subsidiaries
Not applicable as the Company does not have any material subsidiaries.
(F) Commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: Not Applicable

(G) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutional
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): Not Applicable

(H) Acceptance of recommendations of Committees:

The Board had accepted all recommendations of committees of the Board which are mandatorily
required, during the financial year 2024-25.

()  Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans
to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount

All the related party transactions, entered into by the Company, during the financial year, were in its
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis.

Further, Your Directors wish to draw attention of the members to Notes to the financial statement which
sets out related party disclosures.

(J)  The Company is in compliance with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulation 17 to
27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which have
become applicable to the Company as a High Value Debt Listed Entity (“HVDLE”) w.e.f
September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31, 2025.

(K) Code of Ethics:

The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”) for the Board Members and
Senior Management personnel of the Company. The Code is available on the website of the Company
https://www.sammaanfinserve.com/policy.php

All Board Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code. A
declaration signed by the Chief Executive Officer to this effect is enclosed at the end of this Report.

(L) VC,MD & CEO/ CFO Certification

The Managing Director & CEO and the CFO have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of SEBI
Listing Regulations certifying that the financial statements do not contain any materially untrue statement
and these statements represent a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs.
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(M) Unclaimed Amount:

As on March 31, 2025, there is no unpaid amount with respect to the Interest / Dividend / Redemption of
NCDs of the Company.

(N)  Unclaimed Shares lying in Demat Suspense Account

The Company was not required to transfer any shares in Demat Suspense Account.

This Corporate Governance Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is in
compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance as prescribed under Regulations 17 to 27, 62
(1A) and para A, C, D and E of Schedule V of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to the extent applicable to the Company.
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ERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17(8) READ WITH PART-B OF

HEDULE-II F__THE EBI LISTIN BLIGATION AND DISCL RE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To

The Board of Directors
Sammaan Finserve Limited
(formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

As required

by Regulation 17(8) read with Part-B of Schedule-1l of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we hereby confirm to the Board that:

A.  We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief:

1)
()

There

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company

during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and

the ste
We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee that:
1.
2.

3.

Sd/-
Rajiv Gandhi

ps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

There were no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the
year;

There were no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

There were no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in
the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Sd/-
Ashish Kumar Jain

Managing Director & CEO Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 15, 2025 Date: May 15, 2025
Place: Mumbai Place: Delhi




ERTIFICATE OF NON-DI ALIFICATION OF DIRECTOR
(pursuant to Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015)
To,
The Members
Sammaan Finserve Limited
(formerly Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)
2nd Floor, Plot NO-3, Block-A,
Pocket-2, Sector-17, Dwarka
Residential Scheme, Dwarka, New
Delhi — 110075

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
Sammaan  Finserve Limited (formerly Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited) having CIN
U65923DL2006PLC150632 and having registered office at 2" Floor, Plot NO-3, Block-A, Pocket-2, Sector-17,
Dwarka Residential Scheme, Dwarka, New Delhi — 110075 (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), produced
before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 27 read with
Regulation 53 and Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) or any such other Statutory Authority:

Sr. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointmentin
No. Company*

. Ajit Kumar Mittal 02698115 30/09/2013

. Rajiv Gandhi 09063985 15/02/2021

. Nikita Sureshchand Tulsian 08628087 23/10/2023

. Gorinka Jaganmohan Rao 06743140 01/07/2023

. Satish Chand Mathur 03641285 23/06/2022

. Dinabandhu Mohapatra 07488705 23/06/2022

7. . Naveen Uppal 10813991 12/11/2024

*the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Anshul Chhabra & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Anshul Chhabra

Proprietor

Membership No.: A37155

CP No.: 13935

Date: August 25, 2025 PR No. 1621/ 2021
Place: New Delhi UDIN: A037155G001074631




ERTIFICATE REGARDIN MPLIANCE F NDITION RPORATE
GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members

Sammaan Finserve Limited

(formerly Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)
2nd Floor, Plot NO-3, Block-A,

Pocket-2, Sector-17, Dwarka

Residential Scheme, Dwarka, New

Delhi — 110075

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Sammaan Finserve Limited
(formerly Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited) (“the Company”), for the year ended March 31, 2025, as
prescribed in Regulations 17 to 27, 62 (1A) and para A, C, D and E of Schedule V of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR).

We state that the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s
management and, our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression
of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI
LODR.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This certificate is issued solely for the purposes of complying with the aforesaid Regulations and may not be
suitable for any other purpose.

For Anshul Chhabra & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Anshul Chhabra

(Prop.)

Membership No.: A37155

CP No.: 13935

PR No. 1621/ 2021

UDIN: A037155G001074664

Date: August 25, 2025
Place: New Delhi




NOIDA| MUMBALI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS KOLKATTAHYDERABADISURAT

Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of

Sammaan Finserve Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sammaan Finserve Limited (formerly
known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited) (the “Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as the “Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (*Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and iis profit, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
{“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our apinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters,
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit
opinion on the accompanying Financial Statements.

Office address: A-603. 2nd Floor, Sector 46, NOIDA, 201303, Uttar Pradesh
Phone: +91 74285 48331 Email: admin/@paryandco.in




Key Audit Matters

" Auditor’s Response

a} Impairment of Loans (Refer note 7 to the Financial
Staternents)

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109,
the Company is required to provide for impairment of
its financial assets using the expected credit loss
{‘ECL’) approach which involves an estimation of the
probability of loss on the financial assets over their
life, considering reasonable and supportable
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions which could
impact the credit quality of the Company’s loans and
advances. In the process, a significant degree of
judgement has been applied by the management in
respect of following matters:

(i) Classification and staging of loan portfolio, and
estimation of behavioural life.

(ii) Estimation of losses in respect of those classes of
loans which had no or minimal historical defaults.

(iii) Management overlay for macro-economic factors
and estimation of their impact on the credit quality of
the loans.

{iv) In accordance with the guidance in Ind AS 109,
the management overlay estimate takes into account
reasonably and supportable information without
incurring significant cost. The actual credit losses for
the next 12 months could be significantly different
than the ECL estimates prepared by the Company.

(v) The disclosures {including disclosures prescribed
by RBI) regarding the Company’s application of Ind
AS 109 are key to explaining the key judgements and
material inputs to the Ind AS 109 ECL results.

(vi) The Company has developed a financial model
that derives key assumptions used within the provision
calculation such as probability of default (PD) and loss
given default (LGD), The output of such model is then
applied to the calculation for the provision for
expected credit loss calculation with other information
including the exposure at default (EAD).

Given the high degree of management’s judgement
involved in estimation of ECL,, it is an area of material
uncertainty and a key audit matter.

Principal Audit Procedures

|
|

j .

Read and assessed the Company’s
accounting policies for the impairment
of financial assets and whether such
policy was in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
governance framework approved by the
Board of Directors pursuant to the
applicable Reserve Bank of India
guidelines/directions.

Evaluated the appropriateness of the
Company’s assumptions used by the
Company and tested (on a sample basis)

the input data for grouping and staging
of loan portfolio into various categories
and default buckets and their
appropriateness for determining the
probability of default (PD) and loss-
given default (I.GD) rates and agreed the
data with the underlying books of
account and records.

Tested the operating effectiveness of the
controls for application of the staging
criteria of Ioans. |

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of |
calculation of the provision for ECL

performed by the Company.

Assessed the appropriateness and
sufficiency of disclosures in  the
Financial Statements in respect of

provision for ECL.
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| Key Audit Matters

| Auditor’s Response

b) De-recognition of financial assets
{Refer Notes 7 and 41 to the Financial Statements)

The Company has, during the year ended March 31,
20235, derecognized loans amounting to Rs. 2,071.6%
crores and recorded net income of Rs. 182.17 crores in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, de-recognition of
financial assets (loans) transferred by the Company
through assignment is based on the ‘risk and reward’
model and a ‘control’ model. In case de-recognition
criteria are met, the financial assets assigned are de-
recognized and difference between carrying value and
consideration including the present value of interest
payments that it would not give up (excess interest
spread (ELS) receivable) is recognized as income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

The Company also records a servicing asset and
servicing liability at their fair value for the right
retained for servicing the financial asset for the service
contract and the related costs to be incurred.

The assessment of derecognition criteria being met
involves significant judgements and furthermore the
measurement of the related EIS receivable income,
servicing asset and liability requires significant
estimates to be made with respect to the discount rate,
expected portfolio life, prepayment and foreclosures.
Given the complexity and the volume of such
transactions the same has been considered a key audit
matter.

|
Principal audit procedures

» Assessed (on sample basis) assignment
agreements to evaluate whether the de-
recognition criteria have been met.

+ Assessed the significant estimates and
judgments, inciuding the discount rate and
expected remaining life of the portfolio
transferred used by the Company for
computation of excess interest spread
receivable, servicing asset and servicing
liability.

« Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of the excess interest spread
receivable, servicing asset and servicing
liability.

« Assessed the disclosures included in the
Financial Statements with respect to de-
recognition in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107,

¢) Business transfer of Legacy, Wholesale loan
business (Refer note 50 to the Financial Statements)

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company
has sold * Wholesale Loan Business™, consisting of a
group of assets, primarily of the wholesale loan book
(net of ECL), liabilities, and business contracts
associated with the wholesale division, at their
respective fair values determined by external valuation
experts, to its Holding Company * Sammaan Capital
Limited” (formerly known as Indiabulls Housing
Finance Limited), for a purchase consideration (net) of
Rs 530 Crore, by way of a business transfer
agreement, executed between the Company and its
Holding Company as approved by the Company’s
Board of the Directors.

Principal audit procedures

* Read and noted the terms of the business
transfer agreement with a view to identify
the specific  clauses impacting the
determination and recognition of the
purchase consideration.

| * Noted that the valuation report has been
obtained from external registered
valuation experts.

* We read valuation reports prepared by
management with the help of external
valuation experts for determining fair value
of the transaction and consideration paid for
this acquisition. We tested identification and
fair valuation of acquired assets including
intangible assets and liabilities based on
discussion  with  management  and
understanding of business.
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Key Audit Matters e | Auditor’s Response

¢) Business transfer of Legacy, Wholesale loan | Principal audit procedures (continued)
business (Refer note 30 to the Financial Statements)

{continued)

* We understood valuation methodologies |
used to estimate fair valuation of assets and |
liabilities included in the business transfer;

|
* We evaluated the appropriateness of the

assumptions used in preparing the valuation;

* Read and noted the legal opinions and
valuation reports obtained by the Company
for the business transfer.

« Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of the consideration.

» Assessed the appropriateness of
recording/accounting of the business
transfer transaction in the Company’s books
| of accounts.

» Assessed the disclosures included in the
Financial Statements with respect to the
business transfer in accordance with the
requirements of applicable Ind AS.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. [f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect io the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

Or €ITOT.




Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements (continued)

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concerr.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staternents, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to eva
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, were audited
by the predecessor joint statutory auditors of the Company, who expressed an unmodified opinion on
those Financial Statements dated May 24, 2024. Accordingly, we do not express any opinion, as the case
may be, on the figures reported in the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors of the Company is disqualified
as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has paid remuneration to its managing director during the year in accordance
with the provisions of and limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Ag¥,




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

ii.

iil.

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the Financial Statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company,

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(~Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under
(a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the
audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

As stated in Note 21 (12) to the Financial Statements

(a) The interim dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 paid by the
Company during the year ended March 31, 2025 is in accordance with Section 123
of the Act, to the extent it applies to the payment of dividend.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

2. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

ForPARY & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 007288C

d};vaL

per Bhupinder Nath Mukhi
Partner

Membership No. 013794

New Delhi, May 15, 2025
UDIN: 25013794BMONDK 1683
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f} under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Sammaan Finserve Limited (formerly known as
Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited) of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sammaan Finserve Limited
(formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited) (the “Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(the “ICAI™). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by
the ICAT and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:




ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (continued)

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstaternents due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March
31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

ForPARY & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 007288C

(S S

per Bhupinder Nath Mukhi
Partner

Membership No. 013794

New Delhi, May 15, 2025
UDIN: 25013794BMONDK 1683
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Sammaan Finserve Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls
Commercial Credit Limited) of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i. In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

{a) {A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment (including right of
use assets) and assets held for sale.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets)
and assets held for sale by which all property, plant and equipment (including right of use
assets) and assets held for sale are verified in a phased manner over a period of three
years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment
(including right of use assets) and assets held for sale were verified during the year. In
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material diserepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land
registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the
title in respect of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in
the Financial Statements included under property, plant and equipment, assets held for
sale and investment property are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet
date.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property,
plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

ii. (a) The Company is engaged in the business of a non-banking finance company and does not
hold any physical inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii}(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

{(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores, in
aggregate, during the year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets of the
Company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement
with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters and no
material discrepancies have been observed.

iii. During the year, the Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. The
Company has not made any investments in and has not provided any guarantee or securi
any other entity during the year. With respect to such loans and advances:




ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

M

The Company is registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company engaged in the primary
business of financing/ granting loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given fo us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans
and advances in the nature of loans during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company (together
referred to as “loan assets”), the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated. Note 3.15 to the Financial Statements, explains the
Company's accounting policy relating to impairment of financial assets which include
loan assets. In accordance with that policy, read with Notes 7 and 47 to the Financial
Statements, loan assets with balances as at March 31, 2025 aggregating Rs. 32.33 crores
were categorized as credit impaired (“Stage 3™") and Rs. 85.16 crores were categorised as
those where the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition (“Stage
27). Disclosures in respect of such loans have been provided in Note 7, read with Note
47, to the Financial Statements. Additionally, out of total loans and advances in the nature
of loans, balances as at the year-end aggregating Rs. 3,216.81 crores, where credit risk
has not significantly increased since initial recognition were categorized as “Stage 17,
Having regard to the nature of the Company's business and the volume of information
involved, it is not practicable to provide an itemized list of loan assets where
delinquencies in the repayment of principal and interest have been identified (as
suggested in the Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued by the [nstitute of Chartered
Accountants of India for reporting under this clause). Further, except for loans where
there are delays or defaults in repayment of principal and / or payment of interest as at
the balance sheet date, in respect of which the Company has disclosed asset classification
/ staging in note 7 to the Financial Statements in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) and the applicable directions/ guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank
of India, in all other cases, the repayment of principal and interest is regular, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and upon consideration of
management’s representations and other relevant evidence, and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion, the Company, in pursuance of applicable
compliances prescribed under the Act and applicable directions/ guidelines issued by the
Reserve Bank of India, particularly relating to Income Recognition, Asset Classification
and Provisioning Norms, monitors and reports the total amount overdue including
principal and/or interest for more than ninety days. In cases where repayment of principal
and payment of interest is not received as stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by
the Company in course of its periodic regulatory reporting. Refer notes 7 and 47 to the
Financial Statements for summarized details of such loans/advances which are not repaid
by borrowers as stipulated. However, reasonable steps are taken by the Company for
recovery thereof.

The Company is registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company and is engaged in the
primary business of financing/ granting of loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(iii){e) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
during the year.




ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

iv. The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as
applicable.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,

reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by
the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vil. In respect of statutory dues:

{a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax
and Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has
been subsumed into Goods and Services Tax ("GST™).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident
fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the
appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
GST, Provident fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess
and other statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payabile.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to GST,
Provident Fund, Employees State insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty
of Customs, Value Added Tax or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, except as follows:

' Name Nature of | Amount (In | Amount paid/ | Period to which | Forum where
of the dues Rs. ¢crores) deposited the amount | dispute is
Statute under protest | relates pending
(In Rs.
crores) _
| Income Income Tax | Rs. 145.57 | - Financial  year | Commissioner
| Tax Act, crores 2018-2019 Income Tax
| 1961 " B {Appeals)
Income Income Tax | Rs. 50.71 | - Financial year | Commissioner
| Tax Act, crores 2019-2020 Income Tax
1 1961 {Appeals)
| Goods and | Goods and [ Rs. 0.48 crores | Rs. 0.02 crores | Financial  year | Commissioner
Services Services Tax 2017-2018 (Appeals)
Tax Act, Chennai
| 2017
Goods and | Goods  and | Rs. 3.91crores | Rs, 0.19 ¢rores | Financial — year | Commissioner
Services Services Tax 2018-2019 {Appeals) Delhi
Tax Act,
| 2017 | ]
Goods and | Goods and | Rs. 0.23 crores | Rs. 0.01 crores | Financial  year | Commissioner, |,
| Services Services Tax 2018-2019 (Appeals) ‘f';»-'R- !
Tax Act, Kolkata Q_,-"’ N\O \
2017 | , * |




viii,

Name Nature of | Amount (In | Amount paid/ | Period to which | Forum where R
of the dues Rs. crores) deposited the amount | dispute is
Statute under protest | relates pending
(In Rs.
- R _ crores) | il swell ol N
Goods and | Goods and | Rs. 0.58 crores | Rs. 0.03 crores | Financial  year | Commissioner
| Services Services Tax 2018-2019 {Appeals) |
Tax  Act, Gujarat
2017 ,
| Goods and | Goods and | Rs. 0.003 | - Financial year | Commercial Tax '
Services Services Tax | crores 2019-2020 Officer (Tamil I
Tax  Act, Nadu)
2017 ] B |
|_Goods and | Goods and | Rs. 0.01 crores | - Financial  year | State Tax Officer
Services Services Tax 2019-2020 (Maharashtra)
‘ Tax Act, |
| 2017 |
Goods and | Goods and | Rs. 0.01 crores | - Financial  year | Sales Tax Officer '
Services Services Tax 2019-2020 (Delhi)
Tax Act,
2017 | , |

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment
of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According io the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained, other
than temporary deployment pending application of proceeds.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(€) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associate or joint venture (as defined under
the Act). Accordingly, reporting on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as
defined under the Act). Accordingly, reporting on clause 3(ix){f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally)
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.




xi.

xii.

xiii.

xiv.

XV.

xvi.

xvii,

xXviii.

ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year ended March 31,
2025, other than one instance of fraud of Rs. 0.88 crores, noticed and reported by the
management in terms of the regulatory provisions applicable to the Company, as mentioned in
Note 56 of the Financial Statements.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Act was required to be filed and accordingly, has not been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit is performed as per a planned program approved by the Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors of the Company. We have considered the internal audit reports for the
year under audit issued to the Company during the year.

In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is engaged in the
business of Non-Banking Financial Institution as defined under section 45-1A of Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 (“RBI Act™) and is duly registered under section 45-IA of the RBI Act,
holding certificate of registration (CoR) as a Non-Banking Financial Institution without
accepting public deposits under section 45-IA of the said RBI Act.

(b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has conducted its business activities of a Non-Banking Financial Company and is duly
registered under section 45-1A of the RBI Act, holding certificate of registration (CoR) as a
Non-Banking Financial Institution without accepting public deposits under section 45-1A of the
said RBI Act.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the
Group does not have any CICs.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. The previous joint
statutory auditors completed their tenure at the annual general meeting of the members of the
Company during the year ended March 31, 2025, in accordance with the requirements of the
Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of
Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) dated April 27,
2021, issued by the Reserve Bank of India.




Xix.

XX,

ANNEXURE B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, Asset Liability Maturity (AL M) pattern as disclosed in the
Notes to the Financial Statements, other information accompanying the Financial Statements
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

(a) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR} on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act in
compliance with the second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Refer
Note 29 to the Financial Statements.

(b) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a special account in compliance with provision of sub-section
{(6) of Section 135 of the said Act. Refer Note 29 to the Financial Statements.

ForPARY & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 007288C

—

per Bhupinder Nath Mukhi
Partner

Membership No. 013794

New Delhi, May 15, 2025
UDIN: 25013794BMONDK 1683
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Sammaan Finserve Limited

(Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited}

CIN: Us5923DL2008PLG 150632
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

Amount in Rs. Crores

. As at As at
Particulars NoteS  piarch 31,2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 796 91 154.36
Ban}k balances other than cash and cash 6 217.40 214.81
equivalents
Loans 7 3,243.28 5,484.43
[nvestments B 1,244 49 2,771457
Other financial asseis 9 452.92 707.84
Total Financial Assetls 5,955.09 13,336.01
Nan- financial assets
Current tax assets {net) 291.08 238.25
Defered tax assets (nat) 10 329.06 .
tnvestment Property 1.1 - 3z.82
Property, plani and equipment 11.2 2.68 1.39
Other Intangible assets 113 1.08 0.01
Right of Uise assets 11.4 55.46 1.13
Other noa- financial assets 12 §9.22 48.37
Assets held for sale 54 425.92 359.93
Total Non- financial assets 1,165.51 681.90
TOTAL ASSETS 7,120.60 14,017.91
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 13
(i) tofal ouistanding dues of micro enlerprises - -
and small enterprises
{ii) total putstanding dues of creditors other than 046 0.05
micre enterprises and small enlerprises
Debt securities 14 1,069.59 2,525.86
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 15 1,875.44 4,628.59
Subordinated liabifities 16 35217 351.37
Other finangial liabilities 17 565.07 E85.98
Total Financial Liabilities 3,862.73 8,091.83
Non financial liabilities
Provisions 18 10.93 5C.48
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 10 - 6.70
Other non-financial liabilities 19 175.80 201.75
Total Non financial liabilities 186.83 258.93
Equity
Equity share capital 20 24780 247.80
Other equity 21 2,823.24 5419.35
Total Equity 3,071.04 5,667.15
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 7,120.60 14,017.91

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached of even date

ForP ARY & Co. r and on behalf of the Board of Directars of

Chartered Accountants mmaan Finserve Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial

Firm Registration No 007288C chedit Libyted) K
be V\WU-\K%Q/_ @.\,\A T
Bhupinder Nath Mukhi Raiji Navegﬁ Uppal

Partner Managing Dikector & CEQ Nen Executive Director

DIN : 0803985
Mumbai, May 15, 2025

DIN : 108139917

Membership No. 013794
New Delhi, May 15, 2025 7

New Delhi, May 13, 2025
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Sammaan Finserve Limited

{(Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

CIN: U65923DL2006PLC150632

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Amount Rs. in crores

Particutars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations
Interest income 22 874.15 1,200.37
Fees and commission income 23 17.31 24.89
Net gain on fair value changes 24 60.70 242.85
Net gain on derecogmition of financtal instruments under amortised cost category
(Refar Nota 41} AE6.17 26.62
Total revenue from operations 1,267.33 1,494.73
Other income 25 1.89 0.92
Total income 1,269.22 1,495.65
Expenses
Finance cosis 26 62B.88 729.57
Impatrment on financial instruments (net of recoveries) 27 4,144 .80 165.57
Employee benefits expenses 28 64.07 33.28
Depreciation and amertization 292 2.38
COther expenses 29 51.04 20.91
Total expenses 4,891.71 951.71
{Lass) ! Profit before tax {3.622.49) 543.94
Tax expense. 30
{1} Current tax expenses 1.90 120.54
{2) Deferred tax (creditl/icharge {906.47) 10.40
Total tax (credit) / expenses {904.57) 130.94
{Loss) / Profit for the year (2,717.92) 413.00
Other comprehensive income
A (i) Hemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement gain /{loss) on defined beneiit plan {3.25) {0.49)
(b) Gainf{Lass) on equity instrument designated at FVOCI 120.57 20.05
(i) Income tax impact on above . (15.99) 4.47)
B (i) tems that will b reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Income tax impact on above - -
Other comprehensive income {A+B} 110.33 15.09
Total comprehensive [loss)! income for the year {2,607.59) 428.09
Earnings per equity share 38
Basic (Rs.) (43.47) 3.33
Diluted (Rs.) (43.47) 3.33
Nominal value per share {Rs.} 2.00 10.00

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached of even date

ForPARY & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 007288C

fom

Bhupinder Nath Mukhi
Partner

Membership No. 013794
New Delhi, May 15, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
mmaan Finserve Limited {formeriy known as Indiabulls Commercial

a
edifN_imited)
Rajiv hi

@

Managi irector & CEQ
DIN : 09063985
Mumbai, May 15, 2025

. —

aveen Uppal

—\

Non Executive Director

DIN - 1081399

New Delhi, May 15, 2025 r
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Sammaan Finserve Limited

{Formerly known as Indiabuils Commercial Credit Limited)
CIN: Ug59230L2006PLC 150632

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A Cash flow from operating activities :
{Loss) / Prodit before tax (3,622 .49) 54394
Adjustments for:
Provision for gratuity 107 059
Provision for compensated absences 1.27 016
Share based paymants to employees 11.48 1.33
Provision for impaimment due to expecled credit loss 3,650 Q0 20070
Bad debts wrtten off 64813 89.71
Interest expenses 623 88 706,03
Interast income {1.18932) {1,226 89)
Gain on modification of leases {016} ©21)
Deemad cost of fair valus of corporate guarantge 307 10.08
Balances ne longer required, written back - {0.01)
Loss / (Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment 006 {Qon
Unrealised loss/(gatn) on investments {net) 873 (38 19)
Realised gain on investments (net) (69.43) {204 66)
Depreciation and amortisation 282 238
Operating profit before working capital changes. 69.21 93,95
Adjustment for changes in working capital:
Qther financial assets 930 40 (164 37)
Qther non financiat assets (223) (28.33)
Loans 278.81 (90 82)
Trade payables 0.4% 005
Pravisiens far gratuity and compensated absences 0.54) {0.53)
Other financial liabilities {1,081 11) 37253
Other non finaneial liakilities (70 45) {14.14)
Net cash generated from operations 123.50 168.34
Interest received 141197 1.101 3¢
Interast pad (695.16) (698 28)
Income tax {paid} / refund receivec {net) (54 73) (173 94)
Net cash generated from operating activities 794.58 397.50
B Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (net) {2.88} {0.37)
Movement n capital advances {132) 008
Movement in fixed deposits with banks {287} (81.81}
Sale of investment property 262 -
Interest received 14 18 297
Movement in assets held for sale (85.99) 1,245 89
Redemption of /Investments in) mutual funds / cther investments {net) 2,300 46 (2,073 65)
et cash generated from/ {used in) investing activities 2,274.40 gass.sa)
C Cash flow from financing activities
Distribution of Equity cividend . (153.64)
(Repaymant of)/Proceeds from lean taken from holding company(net) (1,330.00) 335.00
(Repayment of)f Proceeds from issue of secured redeemable non-convertible
debenturas {net) {1.463.51) (241.92)
{Repayment of)/ Procaeds from working capital loans(net) (181 89) 9373
Praceeds from/ (Repayment of) bank loans and other borrowmngs {net} 551.76 (152.57)
Payment of lease liabilities 2.79) (0.67)
Net cash used In financing activities !2,426.43! !120.072
D Net increase f{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents { A+B+C} 642 65 (619.58)
E Cash and cash equivalents at the beglnning of the year 15436 77382
F Cash and cash equivalents at the close of the year ( D + E ) e "= 796.91 154.36
The accompanying Nates are an integral part of the firancial statements.
In terms of our report attached of even date
FerPARY &Co. Forfand dg behaif of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accourntants Sal {nserve Limited (formerly known as [ndiabulls Commercial C

Firm Registration Ne. 007288C

Pwewd}

Bhupmder Nath Mukhi Rajiv Galgh
Partner Maraging'Bigiar & CEQ Non Exedltive Director
Membership No 913764 DIN 090639 OIN 10813991

MNew Delm, May 15, 2025 Mumpbal, May New Dethi, May 15, 2025




Sammaan Finserve Limited
(Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)
CIN: UB5923DL2006PLC150632

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

Equity Share Capital {i d, subscribed and fully pald up):

Amount Rs. in

Number crores

£quity shares of face value Rs. 2 each {Previous year Rs 10 each}

At Aprit 1, 2023 24,77,99,324 247 80
Changes in eguity share capital due to pnor pericd errors - -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 24.77,99,324 247 80
Changes in @quity sharg capital during the year - -
At March 31, 2024 24,77,99,324 247.80
Changes n equity share capital due {o prior period erors - N
Restated balance as at April 1, 2024 24,7789 324 247 80
Changes in equity share capital dunng the year (Refer Note 20.1(w)) 98,11,87 296 -
At March 31, 2025 1,23,39,96,620 247.80

Other Equity* Amount Rs. in crores
Other
Reserves & Surplus Comprehensive
Income
: Equity Tatal
. Capital - Specidl Resgrve Reserve (Il Debenture Share based | Fair value of Instruments
Capital | o femption Securities s 3slljtviliy of | {Reservefund ws | - ooy tovinn | General Reserve|  Payment comorate | Retained eamings |  through other
Reserye Resefve Premiurn Account | the Income Tax | 45-IC of the R.B.\. Resefve re:erve u;prantee g e rghensive
Act, 1961 Act, 1934) C P
income
At April 01, 2023 .17 4.00 3,249.40 138.19 443.08 8.36 238.68 7.09 59.84 994.76 - 5,143.57
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 413.00 - 413 00
Other Comprehensive R N . B _ . ; B B (037 1545 15,00
incomef{loss)
Total comprehensive 412.63 15.48 428.09
income - - - . . . - - -
Add Transferred /
Addition during the year - - - 29.38 892 60 - 735 133 - - - 12066
|Appropriations:-
Transferred to Speaial
Resorve ufs 38(1){vin) of - - - - - - - - - (25.38) - (29.38)
the Income Tax Act, 1961
Transferred to Reserve
Fund u/s 45-IC of the - - - - - - - - - {82 60) - (82.60)
R.B.I_Act 1934
Transferred to General
Reserve - - - - - (7.38) - - - - {7.39)
Dividend on equity shares i ) i i i . X . ) (15364 . (453 64)
Total Appropriations - - - - - - - - - {265.62) (272.97)
At March 31, 2024 017 4.00 3,245.40 167.57 525.68 1.01 246.03 3.42 59.84 4,141.77 18.46 5,419.35




Sammaan Finserve Limited
{Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited]
CIN: U65923DL2006PL.C150632

Statement of Changes ln Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued...})

Amount in Rs. Crores

Other
Reserves & Surplus Comprehensive
Income
Special Reserve Reserve {Ll) Equity Total
Capital . " Debenture Share based Fair value of instruments
Capital . Securities Urs 36(I){viii) of |{Reserve fund u/s N .
Redemption ) Redemption |General Reserve Payment corporate Retalned eamings through other
Reserve Premium Account | the Income Tax | 45-IC of the R.B.L.
Reserve Reserve reserve guarantee comprehensive
Act, 1961 Act, 1934) income
At March 31, 2024 017 4.00 3,248.40 167.57 525.68 1.01 246.03 842 59.84 1,141.77 15.46 5418.35
i.oss for the year - - = - - - = E 0 {2717.92) - {2,717.92)
Cther Comprehensive
Incomed{loss) - - - - - - - - - {2.43) 112 76 110,33
Total comprehensive
incomei{loss) i A . . A A ; i ) {2,720.35) 112,76 {2,607.69)
Add: Transterrad /
Addition during the year ) N ) . ) ) ik N N B g
Appropriations:-
Transferred to Reserve
Fund ufs 45-IC of the - - - - - - . - - - - -
2.8 Act 1934
Transferred to Speciai
Reserve ufs 35(1){vii) of - - - = - - - - - - - -
the Income Tax Aci, 1861
Transferred to General } B N _ _ B : B : R B
Reserve
Dividend on ecuity shares } ) : R B R B } ; ) - -
Total Appropriations = = - - - . - - - - -
At March 31, 2025 017 4.00 3,249.40 167.57 525.68 1.01 246.03 19.90 59.84 {1,578.58} 128,22 2,823.24

*There are no changes in accourting poheylprior periad ermors in other equity during the year and previous year

The accompanying Notes are an integral par of the financial statements.

In terms of our repart attached of even date

ForPARY & Ce.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regstration No. 007288C

-

Bhupinder Nath Mukhi
Partner

Membership No 013764
New Deltv, May 15, 2025

ector & CEC
DIN 0906Xg85
Mumbay, May 18, 2026

Chief Fingneiai Officer
New Del, May 15, 2025

behalf of the Board of Directors of
inserve Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Cemmercial Credit Limited)

-

-
Naveen Uplal

Non Executive Director
DIN - 10813991

New Deiw, May 15, 2025
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Sammaan Finserve Limited

{Formerly known as Indiapulls Commetrcial Credit Limited)

CIN: UB5923DL2006PLC 150632

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 1:
Corporate information

Sammaan Finserve Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limiled) (“the Company”) "SFL" was incorporated on July 07, 2006 and 18 engaged in the business of financing, invesiment
and altied activities. On February 12, 2008, the Company was registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 to carry on the business of a Non Banking Financial Company but
does not have permission from the Reserve Bank of India to accept public deposits.

In accordance with the provisions of section 12 and olher applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Incorperation) Rules, 2044, the members of the Campany at their
Exiraordinary General Meeting held on March 02, 2015, accorded their approval to change the name of the Company from Indiabulls Infrastructure Gredit Limiled to Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited.
Consequently, upon receipt of the frash certificate of incorporation in respect of the aforesaid change , from the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Termitory of Delhi & Haryana dated March 12,
2015,

In accordance with the approval of the members of the Company, at their Extraordinary general meeting held on June 12, 2015 and of the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Territory of Delhi &
Haryana, and pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act. 2013, read with applicable ruies made thereunder, new set of Memorandum of
Association (MOA) of the Company in accordance with Table A of Schedula | of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia modifying sub clause 5 of the arstwhile main object of the MOA, as reproduced below,
be and is hereby adopted as follows:

"To act as financial consuliants, mvestment, marketing and management consultants/advisors and provide consultancy in varous fields including general administrative, secretarial, managerial,
commercial, banking, financial, economic, public relation, personal and corporate finance and direct ard indirect taxation and other levies”.

Tive Board of Directors of Indiabuils Finance Company Private Limited {"IFCPL") and the Company at their meeting held on April 18, 2015 had approved, the Scheme of Arrangetnent, involving the
merger of IFCPL, on an ongoing basis, into the Company, pursuant to and in ferms of the pravisions of Seclion 391 — 384 of the Companies Act, 1956, as amended from time o time ("Scheme of
Arrangement”}, The appointed dafe of the proposed merger fixed under the Scheme of Arrangement was April D1, 2015. The Hor'ble High Court of Dethi, vide its order dated March 15, 20186, received by
the Company on March 31, 2016, approved the Schame of Arrangement (Order). In terms of the court approved Scheme of Arrangement, with the filng of the copy of the Crder, on March 31, 2016 with
the office of ROC, NCT of Delhi & Haryana (the Effective Date), the Scheme of Arrangement came inlo effect and IFCPL, as a going cornicern, stards amalgamaled with the Comgany with effect from the
Appointed Date, being April 01, 2015 {in accordance with AS-14-Accounting for Amalgamations, under the Pooling of Interests Methed). Consequent to the Scheme of Arrangement becoming effective,
the Board of Directors of tha Company at their meeting held on March 31, 2016, issued and afotted 32,626,288 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of the Company to the Equity Share Holders of IFCPL,
against their share holding in such equily shares as on March 31, 2016. The issue of equity shares by the Gompany in the ratio of 3:1, was in terms of the Share Exchange Ralic as mentioned in the
Court approved Scheme of Arrangement.

In accordance with the provisions of section 13 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2043 read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 members of the Company at their
Extraordinary General Mesting held on April 28, 2024, accorded their approval to change the name of the company, The Company has since received a fresh cartificale of incorparation consequent upon
change of hame from the Registrar of Gompanies National Capital Terrtory of Delhi and Haryana dated June 21, 2024 and a fresh Certificate of Registration {“CoR”) daled October 4, 2024, as an NBFC-
1GC (Mon-Banking Finarcial Company — lavesiment and Credit Company), from the Reserve Bank of India in respect of the said change. Accordingly, the name of the company was changed from
“Indiabulls Cemmercial Credit Limited” to "Sammaan Finserve Limited”.

Under the Scale Based Reguations (SBR) dated September 30, 2022 of Reserve Bank of Irdia, the Cormpany fals under the "Middle Layer {NBFC-ML)" category.

During the financial year, the Registered Qifice of Sammaan Finserve Limited (the *Company”) was shifted from *Sth Fioor, Buiking Ne. 27, KG Marg, Connaught Place. iMew Delhi — 110 001’ to ‘2nd
floor, Plot no. 3, Block -A, Pocket -2 , Secior 17 Dwarka Residential Scheme, Dwarka, New Deihi — 110 075’ and the Gurugram Corporate Office of the Company was also got shifted to 'Ground flear,
Tower 3A, DLF Corporate Greens, Seclor-74A, Gurgaon, Narsinghpur, Haryana — 122 004’ from "4th Floor, Augusta Point, Golf Course Road, DLF Phase-5, Sector.53, Gurugram, Haryana - 122 002,
both offices were shifted w.e.f. March 1, 2025,
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Sammaan Finserve Limited

{Formerly known as Indiabulls Cornmercial Credit Limited)

CiIN: UB5923D1.2006PLC150632

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 -

Note 2:
(i) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Ruies, 2015 as amended from time to time
and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other relevant prowisions of the Act, the Master Direction — Nen-Banking Financial Company — Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended from time to time (the RBI Directions, 2016’ and nofification for Implementation of Indian Accounting
Standard vide circular RBI2019-20/170 DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22,10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 {'RBI Nofification for Implementation of Ind AS') 1ssued by RBI. The Company uses accrual
hasis of accounting except in case of significant uncertainties.

The financial statements are presented in tndian Rupee {INR) which is also the functional currency of the Company,
The financial statlemerts are prepared on & going concern basis, as the Management is salisfied thal the Company shall be able to continue its busi for the fo ble fulure and no material

uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concern assumption. In making this assessment, the Management has considered a wide range of information relating to present and future
conditions, including fulure prolections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

{if) Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and financiat labdities are generally reperted gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in
addition to having an uncanditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without baing contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to setftle on a net basis in all of the following
circumstances:

A, The normal course of business

B. The event of defauit

C. The event of inseivency or bankruptcy of the Group andfor its counterparties.

(iii) The material accounting policy informaticn related to preparation of the financial statements have been discussed in the following notes.

(iv) The items appearing In the financial statements as *0,00' represents balances not considered due to rourding off to the nearest rupees in crores.

These financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee which is the functional currency of the Company.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Direclors on May 15, 2025,

Note 3 :

Material accounting policles

3.1 Use of estimates

The preparalion of Standalone financial statements in conforraity with Ind AS requires the management to make Judgments, estimates and assumgptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assels and kabilities and the disclosure of contingent lisbilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's besl knowledge

of current events and aclions, uncerdainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiing a malerial adjustment Lo the carrying amounis of assets or liabilities in future
penieds,
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Sammaan Finserve Limited

(Formerly known as [ndiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

CIN: U65923D1 2006PLC150632

Nctes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 3 (continued...}

A. Impairment loss on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categorles of financial assets except assets valued at FVTPL, enquires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash
flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimales are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can resuti
in different Jevels of allowances.

The Company's expected credit loss {EFGL) calculations are outputs of complex models with a numper of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable mputs ang their intercependencies.
Elements of the ECL muodels that are consideraed accounting judgements and estimates nclude:

= The Company's mogel, which asstans Probability of Defaults (PDs)

+ Tha Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and se allowances for financial assels should be measured on a Long Term ECL (LTECL) basis
- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

» Development of ECL models, including the vanous formulas and the choice of inputs

« Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, econarmic inputs, and the effect on PDs, Exposure at Default (EADs} and Loss Given Default (LGDs}

+ Selection of forward-loaking macroeconomic scenaiios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inpuls inte the ECL models.

B. Business Model Assumption

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the resuits of the SPP| and the business model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of
{inancial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflacting all relavant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
avaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assels are compensated. The Company
monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are de-recognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of
the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring 15 part of the Company’s continous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues 1o be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

C. Deflned employee benefit assets and ilabilitiss

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefils and the present value of the gratuity cbligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These incluge the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due lo the
complexities involved in the vakuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit abligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

D. Share Based Payments
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the mest appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate
also requires determination of the mast appropriate inputs to the valuation mode] including the axpected life of the share optien, volatiity and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

E. Fair value measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balarce sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices In active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including Ihe DCF model. The inpuls to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is nat feasible, a degree of judgement 18 required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments,

F. Effective interest rate (EIR) method

The Company's EIR melhodology, recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural IHe of loans and
recognises the effect of polentially different interest rates charged at various stages and other chatactenstics of the product life cycle. This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement
regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes 1o the company's base rate and olher fee mcome/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

G. Useful Lives of asseis:

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change n depreciation expense in future periods.
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Sammaan Finserve Limited

{Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

CIN: U65923DL2006PLC 150632

Notes to Fingncial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 3 {confinued...)

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash ard cash equivalent comprises cash in hand, demand deposits end time deposits held with bank, debit balance in cash credit account.

3.3 Recognition of income and expense

a) Interest income

The Company eams revenua priimarily from giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. interest revenus 1s recognized using the effective interest method (EIR}. The effective nterest metnod calculates the amertized cost of a financial instrument and aliocates the interest income.
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounis eslimated fufure cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial nstrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental
costs that are dwecily attnibutable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

The Company recoegnises interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is,
therefore, regarded as "Stage 3', the Company recognises the interest fo the extent recoverable. If the financial assets cures and 1s no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts 1o recognising interest
income.

b} Interest expense
Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These
include fees and commissions payable fo arrangers and other expenses such as external legal casts, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related ta the issue of a financial liability.

c) Other charges and other interest
Additional interest and Overdue interest is recognised on realisalion basis.

e) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right fo receive the payment is ostablished, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and tire amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

3.4 Foreign currency
The Company's financial stalements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiay recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognitien.

Foreign curfency denominated monetary assets and liabdities are translated at the functional cumency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date and exchange gains and losses arising on
settlement and restatement are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forsign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the iniial transactions, Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in 2 foreign currency are translated using the exchange raies at the date when the fair value is defermined. The gain or loss arising on iranslation of non-monetary itlems measured at fair
valuz is treated in ling with the recogrition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on tems whose fair value gain of loss Is recognized in OCI or profit or loss
are also recognized in OC! or profit or loss, respeciively).

3.5 Leases
The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contans, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to cenlrol the use of an identfied assat for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Company as a lesses
The Company applies a single recognition and measucement approach for all leases, except for shart-term leases. The Company recognises lease liabilities 1o make lease payments and nght-of-use
assels representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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{Formerly known as Indigbuils Commercial Credit Limited)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 3 (continued...)

Right-of-use assets

Lease Liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognices lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable. The lease payments aiso include payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the eption lo terminate.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment ocours.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate af the lease commencement date because the interest rate implict in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease Rabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remaasured if there is a madification, a change in the lease ferm, a change in the Iease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Shori-term Isases
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemnplion to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a puwrchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Significant accounting, judgements, estimates and assumpticns

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and lerminalion options — Cempany as lessee
The Company delermines the lease lerm as the non-cancetlable lerm of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend Ihe lease if it is reasonably certain 10 be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option fo terminate the lease, if it is reasaonably certain not to be exercised,

Leases - Estimating the incrementa] borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implick in the lease, therefore, it uses is incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities, The IBR is the rate of inferest that the
Company would have to pay 1o borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary 1o obtain an assel of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Company 'would have to pay', which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease.

3.6 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and Intangible assets

PPE

PPE are stated af cost (including incidental expenses directly atiributable to bringing the asset to ifs working condition for its intended use) less accumulated dapreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Cost comprises the purchase price and any altribulable cost of brmging the asset to its working condiion for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is
probable that future ecanomic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance cosis are expensed off as and when
incurred.

An item of properfy, plant and equipment and any significant part initiakly recognised is derecognised upan disposal ar when no future economic benalits are expected from ils use or disposal. Any gain or
less arising on de-recognilion of the asset {calculated as the difference belween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset 1s derecogmsed,

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assels are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumnulated
impairment losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 3 (continued...)
3.7 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation
Depreciation on PPE js provided on straight-line method as per the useful Ife prescribed in Schedule [ to the Gompanies Act, 2043, except for Vehicles and Mobie phone,

Vehicles are amortised on a siraight line basis over a period of five years from the date when the assets are available for use and mobile phane is amortised on a straight ine basis over a period of two
years from the date when the assets are available for use . The life has been assessed based on past usage experience and considering the change in techniology,

Depreciation on additions to PPE is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is put to use. Leasehold improvements are amortised as per the rates prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013, however where the lease pericd is less than 10 years, the leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of Lease, Depreciation on sale / deduction frorn PPE is provided for up to the
date of sale f deduction, as the case may be.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of properly, plant arkl equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Amqriization
Intangible assets consisting of Software are amartised on a straight line basis over a pericd of four years from the date when the assels are available for use.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for these sofiware's with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.

3.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed 2l each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impainment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amaunt, The recoverable amount is the greater of the asseis, net seling price and value m use. In assessing value in use, the estimaled
future cash flows are discounied {o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument market assessments of the lime value of money and risks specific 1o the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if avaiable. If no such fransactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided an the revised carrying amount of the asset over ils remaining useful life.

3.9 Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and & is probable that an autflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation n respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made, Provisions are determined based on the best estimate required 10 seftle the obligation at the balance sheet date. Conlingent liability is disclosed for {1) Possible obligations
which will be confirmed only by future events net wholly within the control of the Company or (2) Present obligations arising from past events where & is not probable that an outflow of reseurces will be
required to settie the obligation or a reliable estimaie of the amounl of the obligation cannol be made. Contingent Assets are not recognised in the firancial statements,

3.10 Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefi in the form of provigent fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme is a defined contribution scheme, The Company has no obligation, other than the coniribution payable to the
provident fund and Employee State Insurance scheme, The Company recognizes corinbution payable to the providert fund and Employee Stalte Insurance scheme a3 an expense, when an employes
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contnbution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognized as a liablity after deducting the confribulion already paid. if the contrbution already paid exceeds the contribulion due for services recewed before the balance sheet date, then
excess is recognized as an asset ta the extent thal the pre-payment will fead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company has unfunded defined benefit plans Gratuity plan for all eligible emplayees, the liability for which is determined on the basis of actuanal valuation at each year end, Separate actuanal
valuation is catried out for each plan using the projected unit credit method. Superannuation {Pansion & Medical coverage) payable to a Director on retirement is also actuaiialy valued at the end of the
year using the Projectad Unit Credit Method.

Remeasuremnents, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the assat celling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(exciuding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the hatance sheet with a coresponding debit or credit lo retained earnings through OCI in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not redlassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Note 3 {continued...)

3.11 Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax
Current income tfax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1981, Income
Computation and Disclosure Standards and other applicable tax laws. The tax rales and tax laws used o compute the amount are those that are enacted at the reporting dale.

Cunvent income lax relating o items recognised outside profit or loss 15 recegnised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equily). Current tax items are secognised in correlation
1o the underiying transaction either in OCI or directly in aquity.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which during the specified pened gives future econamic benefits in the form of adjustment to Tuture incame tax liabllity, is considered
as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income lax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probabie that future economic
benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax
Defarred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences betwesn the tax bases of assets and liabiities and thenr carrying amounts for financial reporling purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred fax assets are recognised for ai deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused fax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credils and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrymg amount of deferred lax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset fo be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed al each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
futura taxable profits will alow the deferred tax asset to be recoverad.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity), Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in QCI or directly in equity,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiities are offset if a legaly enforceable right exists to set off cwrrent tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same {axation authorily.
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3.12 Earning per share
Basic earmings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares owtstanding dunng the period.
Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends refative 1o a fully paid equity share during the reporting year,

For the purpose of calculating diuted earnings per share, the nef profit or loss for the year atfribulable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.13 Share based payments
Equnty-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the far value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a siraight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of eguity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporling period, Ihe Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest, The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Stalement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses refiects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjusiment to the Share Based Payments Reserve,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share,

3.14 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any confract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabilty or equity instrument of another entity.

3.14.1 Financial Assets

3.14.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the frade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a parly lo the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are disbursad to the customers. The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and
characteristics and the management’s intention when acquiring them. All financial assets are recognised intially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through prefit or
loss, fransaction costs that are atiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

3.14.1.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assels are classified in four categories:
+ Debt instruments at amertised cost

* Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH)

+ Debt instruments and equty instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

+ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYTOCI)

3.14.1.3 Debt instruments at amortised costs

A "debt instrument’ is measured at the amertised cost if both the following conditions are met:

* The asset is held within & business model whose objective is fo hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dales 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Business moedel: The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, where the Company's abjective is solely to collect the centractual cash flows
from the assets, the same is measyred at amortized cost or where he Company’s ebjective 1s to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows ansing from the sale of assets, the same is
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). If neither of these 1s applicable {e.q. financial assets are heid for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part
of ‘ather’ business model and measured at FVPL.
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SPPI: Where the business model is 1o hold assets to collect contractual cash flows {L.e. measured at amortized cost) or to collect confractual cash flows and sell (i.e. measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income), the Company assesses whether the financial instruments cash flows represent sotely payments of princigal and interest (the 'SPP test). In making this assessment, the
Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. inferest includes only consideralion for the time value of meney, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangemery, the
relatad financial assat is classified and maasured at fair value through profi or loss, The amortized cost, as mentioned above, is computed using the effective interest rate method.

After initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method less impairment. Amortsed cost is caleulated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the statemant of profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.14.1.4 Debt instruments at FY¥OC|
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and seliing the financial assels

Debt instruments included within the FYTOCI category are measured initiafly as well as at each reporiing dale at far value, Fair value movements are recognized in the olher comprehensive
income (OGI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of
the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest eamed whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.

3.14.1.5 Debt instruments at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument. which does not meet the crileria for categorizalion as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is alowed only if
doing sc reduces or eliminales a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accountng mismatch'). Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measuwed at fair value
with all changes recagnized in the P&L.

3.14.1.6 Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity nstruments which are held for trading classified as at FYTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by- instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irevocable.

If the company decides fo classify an egquity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OC1, There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulalive gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category ate measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

3.14.2 Financial Liabilities

3.14.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabities are classified and measured af amortised cosl or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as on inifial recognilion, All

financia! liabilities are recognised initially at far value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of direclly attributable transaction costs.

The company's financial lizbilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrawings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.
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3.14.2.2 Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrawings are subsequently measured at amorhised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as lhrough ihe EIR amortisalion process.

Amortised cost is calculaled by taking inte account any discount or premiurn on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

3.14.3 Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivatives 1o mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency expesures as well as interest fluctuations. The counterpasty for these contracts i@ generally a bank.
Derivatives that are not designated a hedge are categorized as financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value through profit or loss. Such derivalives are recognized initialy at fair value and
allributable fransaction costs are recognized in et profit in the Statement of Profit ard Loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recegnition, these derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or
loss and the resulting gains or losses are included in Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.144 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The company doesn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent lo their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional cwcumstances in which the company acqurres. disposes of, or
ferminates a business hne, Financial liabiities are never reclassified,

3145 De recognition of financial assets and liabilities

3.14.5.1 Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, @ part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets} is de-recognised when the righis to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired, The Company also de-recognised the financial asset it it has fransferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de recognition,

The Company has transferred the financial assel if, and enly if, gither:

« I{ has transferred #s contractual nghts to receive cash flows from the financial asset
Or

« |t retains the nghts to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the recewed cash flows in full without matenal delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Gompany retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the ‘eriginal asset), but assumes a contractual
obligation 1o pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients’), when all of the following three conditions are met

« The Company has ne obligation to pay amounts 1o the eventual recipients urless it has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-lerm advances with the night to full recovery
of the amount lent plus acciued interest at market rates.

« The Campany cannat setl or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients,

« The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eveniual recipients without matenal delay.

In addition, the Company is not entitled 1o reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest eamed, during the period between the collection date and
the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

+ The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset

Qr

« The Company has neither transferred ner retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, bui has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers coniral to be transferred If and orly if, the transferes has the practical ability to sell the asset in its onlirely ko an unrelated third party and is able to exercise thal abilty
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer,
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When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recogruised only to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated hability are measured on a basis that seflects Ihe righls
arxf obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that lakes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximurn amount of consideration
the Company could be required te pay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a wniten or purchased aplion (or both) on the transferred asset, the continuing involvement is measured at the value the Cornpany would be
required to pay upon repurchase, in the case of a wntten put option on an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent of the aentity's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the
transferred asset and the option exercise price.

3.14.5.2 Financial Liabilities

A financial liabiity is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liabibty s replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different tenms or the terms of an existing liabilty are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the osiginal lability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financiai iabdity and the consideralion paid is recogrised in profit or loss.

3.15 Impairment of financial assets

3,15,1 Overview of the ECL principtes

The Corngany Is recording the allowance for expected credi losses for alf leans and sther debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts,
(in this section ail referred to as ‘financial instruments'). Equity instruments are not subject to imparment under IND AS 109,

The ECL allowance is based on:

a) 12 months” expected credit loss (12mECL) where there is no significant increase in credit risk since erigination and
b} on the the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL)

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECL thet represents the ECL that resulis from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on individual and collective basis, depending on the nalure of the underlying porffolio of financial instruments, The Company has eslablished a
policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting peried, of whether afinancial instrument’s credit risk has increased signilicantly since initial recognition.

Based on the above process, the Company groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, $tage 3, as described below:

Stage 1 : When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also include facililies where the credit risk has improved and the loan has heen
reclassified from Stage 2 or Stage 3.

Stags 2: When & loan has shown 2 significant increase in credit risk since ongnation, the company tecords an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include fasilities, where the credit
risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered creditampaned. The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs,
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3.15.2 The calculatlon of ECLs
The Company calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenarios and histoncal data to measure the expected cash shorifalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shorifali is the
difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects 1o receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculahions are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

« PD - The Probability of Defaull is an estimale of ihe likeihood of default over a given ime herizon, A default may

only happen ai a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfalio.

+ EAD - The Exposure at Default is an exposure at a default data.

+ LGD - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss ansing in the case where a defaull occurs al a given tme. It is based on the difference between the coniractual cash fiows due and those that
the lender would expact to receive, including from the realisation of any coliataral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the expected life of a financial instrument,

The machanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from defauit events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date. The Company calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default eccurning in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are
applied to an EAD and mulliplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit nsk since engination, the Company records an allewance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained
above, but PDs and LGDs are eslimated over the lifetime of the instrument,

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recegnizes the lifstime expected credit losses for these loans. ‘The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD sst at 100%.

Loan commitments: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected postion of the loan commitment that wil be drawn down over its expected Iife. The
ECL is then based on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down. The expected cash shorffalls are discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR on the
loan.

For loan commitments, the ECL is recognised within Provisions,

The mechanics of the ECL. method are summansed balow:

Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs thal resull from default evenis on a financial instrument that are possitle within the 12 months after the reporting
date, The Company calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurming in the 12 months following the reparting date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are
applied to an EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance far the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained
above, but PDs and LGOs are eshmated over the lifetime of the instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The methed is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%,

3.15.3 Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments oceuriing in the economy and market it operates in. On a periedic basis, the Company analyses if there
is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, infiation etc. with the estimate of PO, LGD determined by the
Company based on its internal data. While the intemal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in the
methodelogy to reflect such macro-ecenomic trends reasonably.

3.15.4 Write-offs
Financial assels are wrilten off either partialty or in their entirety only when the Company has siopped pursuing the recovery. If the amount to be writien off 1s greater than the accumulated loss
allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrving amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to profit and loss account.
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3.16 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet dale using valuation technigues.
Far value is the price that would be received lo sell an assel or pad to transfer a labiity n an ordedy transaction between market parlicipants at the measurement date. The fair value
measuramant is basad on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabiity takes place either:
In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal markeat, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

Tire principal or the most advaniageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liabflily is measured using the assumplions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming thal market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A farr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability te generale ecanomic benefits by using the assel in its highest and hest use or by selling it to another
market participant that wouk! use the asset in its highest and besl use.

The Company uses valualion techniques ihat are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient dala are avaidable to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

Ali assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpul that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Queted {unadjusted} market prices in active markets for identical assets or habiities

Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is drectly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recogrised in the financial stalements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurrec between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing caieqorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

317 Dividend

The Company recognises a tiability o make cash distributions 1o equity holders when the disinbution is authonised and the distnbution 1s ro Jonger at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on
shares are recorded as a liability an the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

3.18 Hadging

The Company makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest rate and foreign currency. in order to manage parlicular fisks, the Company applies hedge accounting for
transactions that meet specified critena.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and decuments the hedge relationship 1o which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The decumentation includes the Company's nsk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the
hedged itern or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity wil assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument's fair value m offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective 1n achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to detarmine that they aclually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as descnbed befow'

3.18.1 Fair value hedges

Fair value hedges hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset ar Fability or an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liabilily or firm
commitment, that is attributable to 2 particular risk and could affect profit of lass.

For designated and qualdying fair value hedges, the cumulativa change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in net gain on fair value changes.
Meanwhile, the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item attnbutable to the risk hedged 15 recorded as part of the carneng valug of the hedged item m the balance sheet and 15 also
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in net gain on fair value changes.
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The Company classifies a fair value hedge relationship when the hedged item (or group of ilems) is a distinctively identifiable asset or habihty hedged by one or a few hedging instruments. The financial
instruments hedged for interest rate risk in a fair value hedge relationships lixed rate debl issued and other borrowed funds.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the hedge refationship is discontinued prospectivety. If the
relationship does not meet hedge effectiveness crileria, the Company discontinues hedge accounting from the date on which the qualifying critena are no longer met. For hedged items recorded at
amortised cost, the accumulated far value hedge adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item on termination of the hedge accounting relationship is amortised over the remaining term of the
original hedge using the recalculated EIR method by recalculating the EIR at the date when the amartisation begins, if the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value adjustment is
recognised immedialely in the statement of profit and loss.

3.19.2 Cash flow hedges
A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure {o variabtity in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability (such as ail or some future interest payments
on variable rate debt) or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect profit or loss.

For designated and qualifying cash low hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument 1s inibally recognised direstly in OCI wilhin equiy {cash flow hedge reserve).
The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in net gainfloss on fair value changes in the profit and loss statement.

When the hedged cash flow affects the statement of profii and loss, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the correspendng income or expense line of the
statement of prodit and kes. When the forecast fransaction subsequently results in the recegnition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial kability, the gains and losses previously recognised in OC| are
reversed and included in the inital cost of the asset or liability.

When a hedging instrument expires, is seld, tenminated, exercised, or when a hadge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in CC| at that
time re-mains in OCI and is recognised when the hedged forecast transaction is ultimalely recognised in the statement of profit and loss, When a forecast transaction is na longer expecied to occur, the
cumulative gan or loss that was reported in OCI| s immediately transferred fo the statement of profit and loss.

3.18.3 Cost of hedging
The Company alsc may separate forward efement and the spot element of a forward contract and designale as the hedging instrument only the change in the value of the spot element of a forward
contract. Similarly currency basis spread may be separated and excluded from the designation of a financial instrument as the hedging instrurent,

When an entity separates the forward element and the spot element of a forward contract and designates as the hedging instrument enly the change in the value of the spot element of the forward
coniract, or when an entity separates the foreign curency basis spread from a financial instrument and excludes # from the designation of ihat financial instrument as the hedging instrument, such
amount is recognised in OCl and accumulated as a separate component of equity under Cest of hedging reserve. These amounts are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss account as a
reciassification adjustmant in the same period or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss,

3.19 Investment in subsidiarles
Investment in subsidiaries are measured & cost less impairment loss, if any.

320 Assets held for Sale
In the course of ils business activilies, the Company acquires and holds certain assets (residential / commercial) for sale. The Company is commitled to sell these assets and such assets and the
carrying amounts of such assets wil be recovered principally through the sale of these assets.

In accordance with Ind AS 105 , assets held for sale are measured on the reporfing date at the Jower of carrying value or fair value less costs to sell. The Company does not charge depreciation on such
assels. Fair value of such assets is determined based on independent valuations conducted by specialists.

Note 4:
Recent accounting pronouncements

The Munistry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments fo the existing standards urder Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the
year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable io the Company .
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Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Note 5 : Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand o079 0,63
Balance with banks
In cwrent accounts 796.12 138.12
Cheques on hand - 15.61
Total 796,91 154.36
Amount Rs. In crores
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Note 6: Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalenis
Batances with banks in fixed deposits to the extent held as security
against the barrowings and assignment of loan receivables™™ 217.49 214.81
217.49 214.81

{1) Fixed deposit accounts with bank are under lien as securily for the Company’s borrowings/ held in the name of respective counterparties with whom the Company has entered inlo assignment deals. The
Company has the complete beneficial interest on the income earned from these fixed depasits,

Amount Rs. In crores

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Mate 7: Loans {at amortised cost)
Term Loans(Net of Assignment)(’ % 3,.201.15 9,677.41
Total (A) Gross 3,291.15 9,677.41
Less: Provision for Impairment due to expected credit foss 47.87 192.98
Total (A) Net 3,243.28 9,484.43
Secured by tangible assets and intangible assets %% 3,262.61 7,744.58
Unsecured 28,54 1,932.83
Total {B} Gross 3,291.45 9,677.41
Less: Provision for Impairment due to expected credit loss 47.87 192.98

Total {B} Net 3,243.28 9,484.43
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Loans in India

Term Leans 3.291.15 9,677.4%
Total {C} {1} Gross 3,201,156 9,677.41
Less: Pravision for Impairment due to expected credit loss 47.87 192.98
Total (C ) (1) Net 3,243.28 9,484.43
Loans ouiside india - =
Total (C) (2) Gross - e
Less: Provision for Impairment due to expected credit loss - -
Total {C) (2) Net - -
Total {C}) 3,243.28 9,484.43
{1) Term Loans (net of assignment): Amount Rs. In crores
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Total term joans 7.125.24 14,765,141
Less: Loans assigned 3,6888.05 5.538.63
3,237.16 9,226.48
Add: Interest accrued on loans @ 53.99 450.93
Term loans(net of assignmenty 3,281.15 9,677.41

@ includes interest accrued on units of AIF emounting to Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. 112,78 crores), which will become due and payable upon maturity only.

(2} {a) Secured loan includes loan to Holding Company for Rs. 1,115,00 crores (March 31, 2024: Nil).

(b) Secured loan includes loan o Director for Rs. Nii (March 31, 2024: Rs 0.56 crores),
(3) Unsecured loan includes loan ta Pragati Employees Welfare Trust, fellow subsidiary for Rs. Nil (March 31, 2024: Rs. 25.00 crores)
(4) Secured loans and other credit facilities given to customers are secured f partly secured by :

(a) Equitable mortgage of preperty and / or

(6) Pledge of shares / debenlures, units, other securities, assignment of life insurance policies and / or

{e) Hypothecation of assets and / or

{d) Company quarantees and f or

{e} Perscnal quarantees and / or

{f) Negative lien and / or Undertaking to create a security.

(5) Impairment allowance for foans and advances o customers
The company operates an Internal Rating Model for Risk Grading of its ietail loans. The model is tested and calibrated periodically. The model grades loans on a four-point grading scale. The model uses
historical ampirical data to segment the porifalio on the basis of combinations of these parameters. Some of the factors that the internal risk based model may consider are:

a)Loan fo value

b} Typa of collataral

¢) Repayment track record of the borrower including bouncing
d) bureau score of the borrower

&) Vintage i.e. months on books and number of paid EMIs

For loans, grading 15 done basis repayment behaviour and Stage of the leans. In addition to information spacific to the borrower and the pedormance of the loan, the moedel may alse utilise supplemental
extemnal informaticn that could affect the borrowsr's behaviaur,
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Note 7 : Loans [continued...)

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company’s Internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification®.

Risk Categorization

March 31, 2025

Amount Rs. in crores

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Very Good 3,119.67 - - 3,118.67
Good - 85,16 - 8516
Non-performing o - 32.33 32.33
Grand Total 3,119.67 £5.16 32.33 3,237.16
Amount Rs. In crores
Risk Categorization March 31, 2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Very Good 8,411.06 = - 8,411.06
Good - 613.35 - 613.35
Non-performing - . 202.07 202.07
Grand Total 8,411.06 613.35 202.07 9.226.48
“The above table does net indude the amount of interest acerued but not due.
An analysis of changes in the Provision for impairment due to expected credit loss In relation to Loans given is as follows:
Amount Rs. in crores
Particul March 31, 2025
akoickeiohy Stags 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Toml
Opening Balance 46.80 12.09 134.08 192,98
ECL on assets added/ change in ECL estimates* 3,285.94 370.22 89.60 3.745.76
ECL on Assels derecognised [including from lean sell downs), repaid and
written offAwritten back* (2,340.92) {4.31) (1,545.64) {3.890.87)
Transfers from Stage 1 {933,09) 1.51 961.58 -
Transfers frem Stage 2 0.05 (375.48) 375.43 -
ransfers from Stage 3 0.01 0.01 {0.02 -
Closlng balance# 28.79 4.04 15.04 47.87

“Includes Rs 2,333 Cr on account of impairment loss allowances on loan assets fransferred to the Holding Comgpany as part of the business transfer of the wholesale loan business (Refer Note 50},

Amount Rs. in crores

March 31, 2024

e Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Opening balance 4541 17.16 73.38 13595
|ECL on assels added/ change in ECL estimates 38.55 15.89 4.55 56.69

ECL on Assels derecognised [including from loan sell downs), repaid and

\written offfwritten back (16.46) (13.63) 28,13 {1.98)

Transfers from Stage 1 (21.95) 947 12.4E -

Transfers from Stage 2 1.24 (16,80} 15,56 -

Transfers from Stage 3 0.01 - {0.01} -

Closing balance # 46,80 12.09 134.09 192,98

#includes ECL an undrawn loan cemmitments for Rs. 0.49 crores (Previous year Rs. 0.74 crores)
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Note 7 : Loans (continued...)

The Company has adopted a conservative approach to expected credit loss [ECL] staging and accounts have been categorized as Stage 2 based on analysis of stress in particular industry segments — even if
the loan accounts are regular in debt servicing.

IndAS ECL guidelines also do not permit creation of unattached ad-hoc/ counter-cyclical provisions outside of the analytically computed ECL provisions Thus, this identification of stress in industry particular
industry segments and categorizing a significantly larger number of loans as Stage 2 has formed the basis of the robust provisioning buffer the Company has created — as on March 31, 2025, the Company had
total provisions against loan book of  47.87 Crores which is 1.48% of the loan book.

Refer Note 55 for disclosures of cases restructured under Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress pursuant to the Notification Vide: RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No BP.BC/3/21 04 048/2020-21 daled
August 06, 2020 and RBI/2021-22/31/DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 05, 2021.

(6) Includes redemption premium accrued on zero coupon bonds Rs Nil (Previous year Rs. 2.99 Crores), will become due and payable upon maturity only. The accounting of the redemption premium does not
create an enforceable right in favour of the Company on any date prior to redemption, and shall not be considered as the credit of the premium to the account of the Company.

(7) Impairment assessment
The Company’s impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out in the notes below. It should be read in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting policies.

(7) (i) Probability of default

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on conlractual payments.
The Company may also classify a loan in Stage 3 if there is significant deterioration in the loan collateral, deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or an assessment that adverse market conditions
may have a disproportionately detrimental effect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of whether an instrument is in default, the Company also considers a variely of instances
that may indicate delay in or non-repayment of the loan. When such events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the borrower as defaulted and therefore assessed
as Slage 3 for ECL calculalions or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

“Classification of accounts into stage 2 is done on a conservative basis and typically accounts where contractual repayments are more than 30 days past due are classified in stage 2. Accounts usually go over
30 days past due owing to temporary mismatch in timing of the borrowers' or his/her business' underlying cash flows, and are usually quickly resolved.

Itis the Company’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when none of the default criteria are present. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage
2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade once the account is cured, and whether this indicaltes there has been a significant reduction in credit risk

(7) (i) Internal rating model and PD Estimation process

Both Lifetime ECL and 12 months ECL are calculated either on individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nalure of the underiying loan pertfolio. The model is also calibrated to incorporate external
inputs such as Consumer prices (%change pa), Real GDP (%change pa).

(7) (iii) Exposure at default
The outstanding balance as at the reporting date is considered as EAD by the Company. Considering that PD determined above factors in amount at default, there is no separate requirement to estimate EAD

{7) (iv) Loss given default
The Company uses historical loss data for identified homogenous pools for the purpose of calculating LGD. The estimated recovery cash flows are discounted such that the LGD calculation factors in the NPV
of the recoveries.

(7) (v) Significant increase in credit risk
The ECL model evaluates the loans on an ongoing basis. The model also assesses if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and factor that indicates significant increase in credit risk is when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Note 7 : Loans (continued...)

{8) Collateral

In the ordinary course of its business, the Company extends secured loans mainly backed by morigage of property (restdential or commercial).

In addition 1o the above mentioned collateral, the Company holds other types of collateral and credit enhancements, such as cross—collaleralisation on other assets of the borrower, share pledge, guarantees of
parent/holding companies, persanal guarantees of promotersipraprietors, hypothecation of receivables via escrow account, hypothecation of receivables in other bank accounts ete.

In its normal course of business, the Company does nat physically repossess properties or other assets, but recovery efforls are made on delinquent loans through on-rolls collection execulives, along with
legal means to recover due loan repayments. Once contractual loan repayments are more than 90 days past due, repossession of property may be initiated under the provisions of the SARFAESI Act 2002, Re-

possessed property 1s disposed of in the manner prescribed in the SARFAES| act to recover outstanding debt,

‘The Cempany did nat hald any financial instrument for which no loss allowance is recognised because of collateral at March 31, 2025, There was ne change in the Company’s collateral policy or collateral

auality during the vear

{9) As at the year end, the Company has undrawn loan commitments of Rs. 97,14 Crares (Previous Year Rs. 147.98 Crores).

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2025
N Through other
At amortised Cost AlfalryaiiShrough comprehensive Total
profit orloss
income
Note 8: Investments

Mutual funds and Debt securitigs, B fondtes

e — - 127.22 1,117.27 1,244.49
Total gross - 127.22 1,117.27 1,244 .49
Less: Allowanca for impaimment loss - - - -
Total net - 127.22 1,117.27 1,244.A9

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2024

. Through other
At amortised Cost At fair value through comprehensive Total
profit orloss
Income
Note 8: Investments

Mutual funds and Debt securities "' *"*
110 & below) - 37492 2,399.65 277457
Total gross - ar4.92 2,399,65 2,774.57
Less: Allowance for impaiment loss - o = =
Total net - 374.92 2,399.65 2,774.57

{1) Includes investment in mutual funds and debt securities of Rs. 43.30 crores (March 31, 2024 Rs. 50.42 crores) under lien / provided as credit enhancemant in respect of assignment deal for loans.

{2) Investments in units of mutual funds and debt securities indudes investments in units of alternative investment funds of Rs, 514,95 crores (March 31, 2024 Rs. 118,91 crores)

{3) Investments in units of mutual funds and Debt Securities includes investmenis in pass through cerlificates of Rs. 25.83 crores (Previous year: Rs. 11.37 crores) in respect of assignment deals for loans.

{4) During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company had recognized provision of Rs. 2.98 ¢rore on account of impairment of the carrying value of investments in applicable Altemale Investments Funds
{AIF) Investments pursuant to RBi circular no, RBI2023-24/90 GOR.STR, REC.56/21.04.048/2023-24 dated 19th December, 2023. The said provision was subsequently reversed during the year ended March

31, 2024 on disposal of the investments in AlF.
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Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Note 9: Other financial assets

Security deposits 218 0.50
Interest only stnp receivable 193.90 56.23
Interasi accrued on fixed deposit accounts 12,49 862
Inlerest accrued on investments 0.29 0.66
Othar receivables 244.06 641.83
Total 452,92 707.84

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Note 10: Deferred tax assets /liablilities) (net}

Deferred fax assets:
Arising oh account of temporary differences due to:

Provision for employee benefit abligations 3160 1,51

Property, plant and equipment and Infangible assets 0.59 078

Lease liabilities and right-of-use assels 0.27 048

Impairment allowance for financial assets 12.05 48.57

Invesiment property - 0.36

Carry forward business losses 398.68 -
41517 £1.31

Deferred tax Habilitins:

Arising on account of temparary differences due to:

Ditference between accounting income and taxable income {0.33) 28.80

Provision for bad debts under section 36(1)(via) of the Income Tax

Act, 1961 0.15 655

Securitisation liabilities 4B.80 12.62

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 0.51 0.59

Gain on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss  other

comprehensive income 26.98 9.55

76.11 58.01
Deferred tax assets /({liabilities] (net) 339.06 (6.70}

Mote: Deferred tax assets are expected to be utilized during the stipulated carry forward period from the year in which the same arose.
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Note 10: Deferred tax assets /(llabilities) (net)

Movement In deferred tax balances:
Amount Rs. in crores

March 31, 2025 Balance as on Recognised in Profit Recognised in OCi others* Balance as on
April 01, 2024 and loss March 31, 2025

Arigsing on account of temporary differences due to:

Provision for employee banefit obligations 1.51 1.27 0.82 - 3.60

Impairment allowance for financial assets 48.57 550.85 - {587.17) 12.0%

Property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets 0.7¢ (0.20) - - 0.59

Lease kabilities and right-of-use asseis 0.08 0.18 - - 0.27

Lifterence batween accounting mncome and

taxable income (28,80} (13.32) S 42,45 0,33

Provision for bad debls under section

36(1)(wiia} of the Income Tax Act,1961 {6.55) 6.40 - - {0.15)

Secuiitisation [abilities (12.52) (36.28) - - (48.80)

cost (0.59) 0.08 - - ©.51)

Gain on investments carried at fair value
thwough profit or joss / other comprehensive

income (9.55) (0.62) (16.81) - {26.,98)
Investment property 336 (0.36) - - -

Carry forward business losses - 358,66 - - 398 66
Total (6.70) 906.47 (15.99} (544.72) 339.06

*On account of defened tax of Rs. (587.17) Crores in respect of Impaiment allowance and Rs, 42,45 Crofas in respect of other temporaiy differences pretaining to the sale of the wholesale lean business
{Refer Note 50).

Amount Rs. In crores

March 31, 2024 Balance as on Racognised in Profit Recegnised in OCH Balance as on
April 01, 2023 and loss March 31, 2024

Arising on account of temporary differences due to:

Provision for employee benefit obligations 1.19 0.20 0,42 1.51

Impairment allowance for financial assets 34,22 14.35 - 48,57

Financial assets measured at amartised cost 0.12 {0.12) - “

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible

assels 0.89 {0.10) - 0.78

Lease liabiliies and right-of-use assets 9.11 (D.03) - 0.08

Difference between accounting income and

taxable income (10.49) (18.31) - (28.80)

Provision for bad debts under section

36{1}{viia) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 {8.87) 232 - {6.55)

Securitisation liabilities {12.97) Q.45 - (12.52)

cast (0.68) 099 - (0.59)

Gain on investments camed at fair value

through profit or loss / other comprehensive

income 4,65 (9.61) (4.59) (9.55)
Investment property - 0,38 - 0.36

Deferred tax assels jjiabiities) (nef) BAT {10.40) @41 {6.70)
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Note 11

Note 11.1 Investment Property

Amount Rs. in crores

Total

At April 1, 2023
Additions
Disposais

34.24

34.24

At March 31, 2024

34.24

34.24

Addilions
Disposals

34.24

34.24

At March 31, 2025

Amortlzation
At Aprii 1, 2023
Charged for the year

1.42

1.42

At March 31, 2624

1.42

1.42

Charged for the year
Disposals

0.20
1.62

0.20
1.62

At March 31, 2025

Net block

At March 31, 2024

32.82

32.82

At March 31, 2025

Note 11.2 Property, plant and equipment

Amount Rs. in crores

Leasehold Computers and  Furniture and Motor vehicles Office Land Total
tmprevements printers fixtures equipment

Gross block

At April 1, 2023 0.82 1.85 0.73 4.53 0.68 0.10 871
Additions - 6.04 0.01 .29 0.05 - ©0.39
_Bisposals - 0.16 0.01 - - - 0.17
At March 31, 2024 0.32 1.73 0.73 4.82 0.73 0.10 8.93
Additions 1.18 0.08 0.05 0.45 0.07 - 1.84
Disposals - 0.08 - 0.25 .01 - 0.35
At March 31, 2025 2.00 1.73 0.78 5,02 0.79 0.10 10.42
Depreciation

At April 1, 2023 .39 1.80 .45 3.99 0.64 - 7.27
Charged for the year .08 0,02 0.08 0.22 0.03 - 0.43
Disposals - 0.16 - - - - 0.16
At March 31, 2024 0.47 1.66 0.53 4.21 0.67 - 7.54
Charged for the year Q.09 0.04 0.07 0.19 0.04 - 0.43
Disposals - 0.09 - 0.13 0.01 - 0.23
At March 31, 2025 0.56 1.61 0.60 4.27 .70 - 7.74
Net Block

At March 31, 2024 0.35 0,07 0.20 0.61 0.06 .10 1.39
At March 31, 2025 144 .12 0.18 0.75 0.03 0.10 2,68
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Note 11
Note 11.3 Other Intangible assets Amount Rs. in creres

Software Total
Gross block
At April 1, 2023 9.85 9.85
Additions - -
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2024 9.85 9.85
Additions 1.09 1.09
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2025 10.94 10.94
Amortization
At April 1, 2023 9.84 .84
Charged for the year - -
At March 31, 2024 9,84 9.84
Charged for the year 0.01 .01
At March 31, 2025 9.85 9.85
Nat block
At March 31, 2024 .01 0.01
At March 31, 2025 1.09 1.09
Note 11.4 Right of use Assets Amount Rs. in crores

Total

At April 1, 2023 9.35 9.35
Additiens - -
Dispesals 085 0.85
At March 31, 2024 8.50 8.50
Additions 56.87 56.87
Disposals .26 0.26
At March 31, 2025 65.11 65.11
Ameortization
At April 1, 2023 6.84 6.84
Charged for the year Q.53 0.53
At March 31, 2024 7.37 7.37
Charged for the year 2.28 2.28
At March 31, 2025 9.65 9.65
Net block
At March 31, 2024 1.13 1.13

At March 31, 2025 55.46 59.46
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Amount Rs. in croras

As at March 31, 2025

As atMarch 31, 2024

Note12: Other non financlal assets

Capital advances 1.32 -
Unamortised portion of deeimed cost for corporate guarantees 2.07 5.13
Others including prepaid expenses, GST input Credit and employee 46,82 43.24
advances

Total 50.22 48.37

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2025

As atMarch 31, 2024

Note 13: Trade payables {Refer Note 34}
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and

(b) Total outstanding dues of crediters other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises .46 0.05
Total .46 0.05
As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following pericds from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME = N = z
Others 0.46 - 0.00 0.46
Disputed dues — MSME = hd - =
Gisputed dues - Others - = = N
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME - = - N
Others 0.05 - - 0.05
(isputed dues — MSME - 5 - N
Dispuied dues - Others = - - ~
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Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
MNote 14: Debt securities (at amortised cost)
Secured*

Debentureg e~k 310) 1,069.59 2,525.66
Total 1,069.59 2,525.86
Debt securities in India 1.069.58 2,525.86
Debt securities oulside India - -
Total 1,069.59 2,525.86

* Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenlures are secured against mortgage of immovable property, hypathecation on the financial and non-financial assels {including investments) of the Company, bath present
and future; and on present and fulure loan assets of the Company, including ali monies receivable for the principal amount and interest thereon (cokectively referred to as “Hypothecated Properties”, which term
shall exclude the Excluded Assets (as defined befow)), on a first pari-passu basis with all other secured lenders to the Issuer holding pari-passu charge over the security.

Excluded Assels shall mean such portion of High Quality Liquid Assets (as defined in Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies, 2019, as
amended from time to time (the “RBI LRM Framework™)) which shall remain unencumbered in accordance with the RBI LRM Framework. For the avoidance of doubt, Excluded Assets will at no point of time
form part of the Hypothecated Properties.

The Company has, in all material respects, utiised the proceeds of issue of non convertible debt securites as stated in the respective offer documents. There is no continuing default in the repayment of the
aforesak loans or interest as at the balance sheet date.

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has bought back nan-convarlitle debenture amaunting to Rs. ‘388.12 Crores (Previous year Rs, Nil), on which the Company has incurred a loss of
Rs, 1,001 Crores{Previous year loss of Rs. Nil) which is included under net gain an derecegaition of financial instruments under amontized cost category,

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Note 15; Borrowings {at amortised cost)
Secured

Term loans from banks and Others ! &7 (Reterncts 31(0) 1,330.27 981,78

Cash Credit Facilities from bank 15.00 196.89

Working Capital loan fram bank ! 200.00 -

Term loans fram related parties

- from Holding Company - Sammaan Capital Limited! N 1,330.00

Securitisation Liablity e Nete 41} 273.68 2,118.50
Unsecured

Lease Liability e+ 56.49 142
Total 1,875.44 4,628.59
Borrowings in India 1,875.44 4,628.59
Barrowings outside India = =
Total 1,875.44 4,628.5%

{1} Secured by way of hypothecation over the Company’s loan receivables {present and future), other financial assets, and cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances and investmenis), excluding

{i) receivables and investments spacifically charged to other parties, and

{ii) balances representing High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLAs) as at March 31, 2025,
utilised for the purpose of computing the Liquidity Coverage Ratio, in accordance with the applicable RBI guidelines, which shall remain unencumbered in accordance with The RBI LRM Framework.
(2) Linked ta reference rate used by respective lenders.
{3) Secured by hypothecation of receivailes{Current and Future) of the Company
{4) Repayable ai any time before expiry at the end of 48 months from the date of disbursementagreament.
{5)The Company has availed cash credit and working capital loan from a bank and the same is repayable on demand. The cash credit and working capital loan is secured by way of pari passu charge over the
Gompany's loan receivables (present and fulure), other financial assels, and cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances and investments), excluding {i} receivables and investments specifically
charged to other parties, and {ii} batances representing High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLAs) as at March 31, 2025 utilsed for the purpose of computing the Liguidity Coverage Ratio, in accordance with tha
applicable RBI guidelines, which shall remain unencumbered in accordance with The RBI LRM Framework, Overdraft facilites from banks are secured against cash margin in the form of fixed deposits
maintained with the respective bankc Interest on such facility is payable monthly at the bank prescribed rate linked with the respective fixed deposit
{6) This includes cheques issued but not presented from Cash Credit accounts,
There is no condinuing default in the repayment of the aforesaid loans or interest as at the balance sheet date,
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Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Note 16: Subordinated {iabilities {at amortised cost)
Subordinate debt {unsecured) Hernote i) 352.17 351.37
Total 35217 351.27
Subordinated kabilities in India 35217 351.37
Subordinated labilities outswde India - -
Total 352.17 351.37

The Company has, in all material respects, ulilised the proceeds of issue of the above debt secunties as stated in the respeclive offer document. There is no continuing default in the repayment of the aforesaid

loans or inferest as at the balance sheet date.

Amount Rs. in crares

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Note 17: Other financial liabilities
Interest accrued but not due an bormowings 7528 143.76
Amount payable on assigned loans 178.11 189.61
Other liabilitics 1921 102.83
Temporary overdrawn Balances as per books 118.37 136.29
Servicing liability on assigned loans - 647
Total 565.07 585.96
Amount Rs. in crores
As at March 34, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Mote 18: Provisions
Provision for employee benefits ok Fote 381
Compensated absences 235 1.08
Gratuity ., .58 4.80
Provision for dividend on equity sharas ee M@ 219 N 44,60
Total 10.93 50.48

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Note 19: Other Non-financial (labilities
Statutory dues payable and other nen financial liabilities 175.90 201.75
Total 175.90 201.75

97



Sammaan Finserve Limited

[Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

CIN: UE5923DL2006PLC 150632

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 20: Share capital
Note 20.1: Equity share capital

Details of authorized, Issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital

As at March 31, 2925 As at March 31, 2024
Authorized equity share Capital’ 7 No of Shares  Amount Rs. In ¢rores No of Shares  Amount Rs. in crores
Equity shares of face value Rs. 2 each
{Previous year Rs 10 each) 1,87.50,00,000 375.00 25,00,00.000 250.00
Total 1,87,50,00,000 375.00 25,00,00,000 250.00

(1) Pursuant to and in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement as approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi vide its arder dated March 15, 2016, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from Rs. 55 crores to Rs. 66 crores, divided into 43,500,000 equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each and 22,500,000 preference shares of face value of Rs.10 each.

(2} In pursuance of Section 81(1) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,and pursuant to the approval of the members of the Company in their extra ordinary general meeting held
on Octaber 12, 2017 the Company's authorised share capital was increased from Rs. 66 crores to Rs, 72.73 crores, divided in to 50,226,573 equity shares of face value of Rs.i0 each and 22,500,000
preforence shares of Rs. 10 aach.

(3} In pursuance of Section 61(1} and olher applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,and pursuant 1o the approval of the mambers of the Company in their axtra ordinary genaral meeting held
on March 1, 2018 the Company's authorised share capital was increased from Rs. 72.73 crores fo Rs. 85 crores divided in to 62,500,000 equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each and 22,500,000 preference
shares of Rs. 10 each,

(4} In pursuance of Section 61(1) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Gompanies Act, 2013,and pursuant to the approval of the members of the Company in their extra ordinary general meeting held
on May 31, 2018 the Company's awthorised share capital was increased from Rs. 85 crores to Rs. 135 crores divided in to 112,500,000 equity shares of face vaiue of Rs.10 each and 22,500,000 preference
shares of Rs. 10 each,

(5) In pursuance of Section 61(1) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,and pursuant to the approval of the members of the Company in their extra ordinary general meeting held
on January 28, 2019 the Company’s authorised share capilal was increased from Rs. 135 crores to Rs. 260 crores divided in 1o 227,500,000 equity shares of face vaiue of Rs.10 each ang 22,500,000
preference shares of Rs, 10 each.

(6) In pursuance of Section 61(1) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2093,and pursuant to the approval of the members of the Company in their extra ordinary general meeting heid
on March 14, 2019 the Company's authorised share capital was increased from Rs, 250 crores to Rs. 2V2.50 crores divided in to 250,000,000 equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each and 22,500,000
preference shares of Rs. 10 each,

(7) The Board of Directors of the Company, at their Extra Ordinary General meeting heid on Novembar 13, 2024 granted their approval for Sub- Division (Stock Split) of Equity Shares and Preference Shares
from Rs. 104~ (Rupees Ten only) each 1o Rs. 2/- (Rupee Two only) each. For and increase in authotised Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 272,50,00,006 (Rupees Two Hundred Seventy Two Crore Fifty
Lakh only) divided into 25,00,00,000 (Twenty Five Crores) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only} each, and 2,25,00,000 (Two Crores Twenty Five Lacs) Preference Shares of Rs, 10/- (Rupees Ten only)
each to Rs. 397,50,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred Ninety Saven Crore Fifty Lakh only) divided into 187,50,00,800 {One Hundred Eighty Seven Crore Fifty Lakh Only} Equity Sharas of Rs. 2/- {Rupeas Two
onlyy each, and 11,25,00,000 (Eleven Crore Twenty Five Lakh} Preference Shares of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two only),
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Note 20.1: Equity share capital (continued...)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
lssued , Subscribed & Pald up capital No of Shares  Amount Rs, in crores No of Shares  Amount Rs. in crores
it i)
Equity shares of face value Rs. 2 each
{Previous year /s, 10 each) 1,23,89,96,620 247.80 24,77,99,324 247.80
Total 1,23,89,96,62¢0 247.80 24,77,99,324 247.80

{1} Terms/ rights attached to Equity Shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2 per share { Previous year Rs. 10 per share). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, tha holders of equity shares will be entiled ta receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
prapotion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehotders.

(il Consequent upon the increase in autharised share capital, on October 12, 2017, and upon receipt of consideration in cash, the Board of Directers of the Company, at their meeting held on October 31, 2017
granted their approval and the Company issued and alletted 7,400,285 equity shares respectively of face value Rs. 10 per share to its Holding Company, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited {"IHFL"} at Rs.
135.13 per equity share fully paid (induding securities premium of Rs. 125.13 per share), ranking pari passu with existing shares.

(i) Consequent upen the increase in awthorised share capital, on March 1, 2018, and upen receipt of consideration in cash, the Board of Directors of the Comgany, at their meeting held on March 22, 2018
granted their approval and the Company issued and alfotted 10,344,828 equity shares respectively of face value Rs, 10 per share to its Holding Company, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited ("IHFL") at Rs,
145 per equity share fully paid (including securities premium of Rs. 135 per share), ranking pani passu with existng shares.

(iv) Gonsequent upon the increase in authorised share capital, on May 31, 2018 , and upon receipt of consideration in cash, the Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on June 20, 2018
granted their approval and the Company issued and aflotted 47,077,823 equity shares respectively of face value Rs. 10 per share to its Holding Company, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited {"IHFL"} at Rs.
154 per equity share fully paid (including securities premium of Rs. 144 per share), ranking pari passut with existing shares.

(v) Consequent upon the increase in authorised share capital, on January 28, 2019, and upon receipt of consideration in cash, the Board of Directars of the Campany, at their meeling held on February 22,
2019 granted their approval and the Company issued and allotted 117,650,000 equity shares respectively of face value Rs. 10 per share to its Holding Gompany, Indiabulis Housing Finance Limited ("IHFL™ at
Rs. 170 per equity share fully paid {induding securities premium of Rs. 160 per share) for a consideration received of Rs, 20,000,500,000 , ranking pari passu with existing shares.

(v1) The Board of Diractors of the Company, at their meeting held on March 25, 201¢ granted their approvat and the Company issued and allotied 22,500,600 equity shares respectively of face value Rs. 10 per
share fo its Holding Company, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (THFL"} at Rs, 80 per equity share fully paid (including securiies premium of Rs. 70 per share) by conversion of the outstanding preference
shares, ranking par passu with existing shares, in accordance with the terms of the issue of such preferance shares. .

{vii) The Board of Direclors of the Company, at their Exira Ordinary General meeting held on November 13, 2024 granted their approval for Sub- Division {Stock Split) of Equity Shares and Preference Shares
fram Rs. 10/ {Rupess Ten only) each to Rs. 2/~ (Rupee Two only) each, Consequently, increase in lssued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 247,78,93,240 (Rupees Two
Hundred Forty Seven Crare Seventy Nine Lakh Ninety Three Thousand Two Hundred Forty only) divided into 24,77,99,324 (Twenty Four Crares Seventy Seven Lakh Ninety Nine Thousand Three Hundred
Twenty Four) Equity Shares of Rs, 10/~ (Rupass Ten only) each 1o Rs. 247,79,93,240 (Rupees Two Hundred Forty Seven Crore Seventy Ning Lakh Ninety Three Thousand Two Hundred Forty only) divided
info 123,85,96,620 {One Hundred Twenty Three Crores Eighty Nine Lakh Ninety Six Thousand Six Hundred Twenty) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- {Rupees Two only),
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Note 20.1: Equity share capital {continued...}

The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year.

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares  Amount Rs. in crores No. of shares  Amount Rs. in crores
Equity shares oulstanding at the beginning of
year 24,77,99,324 247.80 24,77,99.324 247.80
Add:
Increase in number of equity shares due lo
face value split e oo 20106 99,11,97,296 - - -
Equity share cutstanding at the end of
year 1,23,89,96,620 247.80 24,77,99,324 247.80

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares % of hoiding No. of shares % of halding
Holding Company
Sammaan Capital Limited 1,23,88,96,620 100% 24,77,99,324 100%
Total 1,23,89,96,620 24,77,99,324

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Equity shares aliotied as Tully paig pursuant 1o

contract without payment being received in

cash - - - - -

" 3,28,26,288 equity shares were allotted by the Company, for cansideratian olher than cash, to the shareholders of IFCPL, pursuant te and in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement, approved by the Hon'ble
High Court of Delhi vide its order dated March 15, 2016, which came into effect on March 31, 2016, with effect from the Appointed Date April 1, 2015

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shargholding represents both legal
and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Employee Stock Options: Refer nofe 33

Details of shareholding of promoters in the Company

Shares hald by promoters at the end of the year March 31, 2025 % Change during the
5.No Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total shares year
1 Sammaan Capital |imited 1,2389,96,620 100% 0.00%
Total
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year March 31, 2024 % Change during the
S.No Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total shares year
1 [Sammaan Capital Limited 24.77,69,324 100% 0.00%
Total 1
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Sammaan Finserve Limited

{Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)
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Notes to thae Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 20.2: Preference share capital

Details of authorized preference share capital

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Authorized preference share Capital
No of Shares Amount Rs. in ¢rores

No of Shares Amount Rs. In crores

Preference shares of Rs. 2 each {Previous
year Rs 10 each) (Refer note 20.1(7)} 14,25,00,000 22.50

22,60

Total 11,25,00,000 22.50

22.50

(i} On March 26, 2013 {"the Company”), pursuant to the approval granted by the Members of the Company, at the meeling held on March 26, 2013, has issued 22,500,000 10% Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares of face value Rs.10 per share at a premium Rs.80 to its holding Company Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited ("IHFL"). The said preference shares carmry cumulative dividend @ 10% per
annum. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the appraval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Each holder of the Preference Shares is entitled to one vote per share only on resolutions placed before the Company which directly affacts the rights atlached to the Preference Shares. The Preference
Shares are convertible into eauity shares. at ary time at the option of the Preference Shareholders or on the exoiry of 20 vears from the date of alotment viz.. March 26. 2013

(ii) The Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on March 25, 2019 granted their approval and the Company issued and allotted 22,500,000 equity shares respectively of face value Rs. 10 per
share fo its Holding Campany, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited {"IHFL") at Rs. 80 per equity share fuly paid (including securities premium of Rs. 70 per share) by conversion of the outstanding preference
shares, ranking pan passu with existing shares, in accordance with the terms of the issue of such preference shares.

As at March 31, 2025

Ag at March 31, 2024

1&2)

Issued, subscribed & pald up capital No of Shares Amount Rs. in crores

No of Shares  Amount Rs. in crores

Preferance shares of Rs. 2 each (Previous
voar Rs 10 each) . B

Total - -

Note 21: Other equity

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Capital reserve’™
Opening balance 017 047
Add: Additions duning the year = 5
Closing balance 0.17 0.17
Capital redemption reserve ¥
Opening balance 4,00 4.00
Add: Additions dunng the year - =
Closing balance 4,00 4.00
Securities premium account
Opening balance 3,249.40 3,249.40
Add: Additions during the year - -
Closing balanca 3,249.40 3,249.40
Special reserve ufs 36{1){viii) of | Tax Act, 1961'"
Opening balance 167.57 138.19
Add: Additions dunng the year - 28.38
Closing balance 167.57 167.57
Reserve fund ®
{U/s 45IC of the R.B.I. Act, 1934)
Opening balance 525.68 443.08
Add: Amount transferred during the year - 82,60
Closing balance i 525.68 525.68
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Note 21: Other equity (continued...)

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Fair value of corporate guarantee &
Opening balance 59.84 58.84
Add: Additions during the year - -
Closing balance 59.84 50.84
General Reserve ™
Opening balance 246.03 23888
Add: Additions during the year - 7.35
Closing balance 246.03 246.03
Debenture redemption reserve ©
Opening balance 1.01 6,36
Add: Additions dunng the year - i
Less: Transferred to General Resetve - (7.35)
Closing balanca 1,81 1.01
Share based payment reserve
Opening balance B8.42 7.00
Add: Additions during the year 11.48 1.33
Closing balance 19.90 842
Retained earnings 1% (1,578.58) 1,141.77
Other Comprehensive Income('” 128,22 15,46
Closing balance (1,450.36) 1,157.23
Total 2823.24 5,419.35

{1) Capital reserve

The Company recognises profit and loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of is own equity instiuments to capital reserve.

{2) Capital redemption reserve

As per Companies Acl, 2013, cagital redemplion reserve is created when the Company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premivm. A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so

purchased is transferrad to capital redemption reserve. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of seclion 69 of the Companies Act, 2013,

{3} Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2043,

(4} Special reserve ufs 36{1){viil) of | Tax Act, 1961

In tenms of Section 36(1){viii} of the Income Tax Act, 1961, a deduction is allowed for income from eligible business viz, Incame from providing long-term infrastructure finance, long-term finance for the
construction or purchase houses in India for residential purposes and the business of providing long-term finance for industsial or agricultural development etc. The Company claims the deduction as i falls
under some of the catagories of eligible business as defined under Section 36(1)}viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.In view of the losses mcurred duning ihe year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not
transfetred any amount to this fund. During the previous year ended March 31, 2024, the Company had transferred Rs, 29.38 crores to the spacial reserve account to claim deduction in respect of eligible

business under the said section.
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Note 21: Other equity (continued...}

(5} Reserve fund

In terms of Saction 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934, the Cempany is required to transfer at least 20% of its Net Profits (after tax) to a reserve before any dividend is declared. In view of the losses incured during the
year ended March 31, 2025, the Company was not required to transfer any amount to the reserve Fund. During the previous year ended March 31, 2024, the Company transferred an amount of Rs. 82.60
crares to the reserve fund.

{6} Fair value of corporate guarantee
The reserve has been created against initial measurement of financial guarantes (given by Holding Company) at fair value

(7) General Reserve
Genera! reserve s free reserve available for distribution as recommended by Board in accordance with requirements of the Companies Act, 2043,

{8) Debenture Redemnptlon Reserve

‘The Companies Act, 2013 requires that where a Company issues debentures, i shall create a debenture redemption reserve out of profits aof the Company available for payment of dividend, The Company is
required to maintain a Debenture Redemption Reserve of 25% of the value of debentures issued by a pubtic issue. The amounts credited to the debenture redemption reserve may nol be ulilised by the
Company except to redeem debentures. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has amended the Companies (Share Capital and Debaenture) Rules, 2014, doing away with creation of debenture redemption
reserve by NBFGs with raspect o issue of non converiible debentures (NCDs). Vide the said amendment, now NBFCs are required on or before 3¢ April of each year lo invesi or deposi in prescribed
securities, a sum not less than 15 per cent of the debentures maturing during the year ending on 31 March of the next year, Accordingly, during the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has transferred
Rs. Nil { March 31, 2024: Rs. 7.35 crores) to the General Reserve in respect of Debenture Redemption Reserve no longer required.

{9) Share based payment reserve
The share based payment reserve is used to record the value of equity-settled share based payment transactions with employees. The amounts recorded in share based payment reserve are transferred to
share premium/retained aamings upon exercise of stock options by employees.

{10) Retained earnings
Retained eamings are the accumulated profits/({losses) earmedfincurred by the Company till date, less ransfar to general reserves, dividend (including dividend distribution tax} and other distributions made to
the shareholders.

{11} Other Comprehenslve Income
Other comprehensive income/{loss) includes fair value gain/(loss) on equity instruments.

(12) Dividend on equity shares

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on June 30, 2023 has declared an interim dividend of Rs. 2.20/- per equity share for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 amounting to Rs. 54.52
crores.

The Board of Diractors of the Company at its meeting held on September 30, 2023 has declared an interim dividend of Rs. 2.00/- per equity share far the financlal year ended March 31, 2024 amounting to Rs.
49.56 crores.

The Board of Directors of the Company at iis meeting held on March 3¢, 2024 has dedlared an intenm dividend of Rs. 2.00/- per equily share for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 amounting o Rs.
48,56 crores. On Apfil 03, 2024, the Company has remitied the said gividend to its Holding Company.
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Amount Rs. in crores

Year sndad March 31, 2025

Year ended March 31, 2024

Interest income on

Onfnanclligssets securities classified at

Interest income on

On financlallassets securities classified at

measurad at Amortised fair value thraugh profit Total measured at Amortised fair valus through profit Total
cost cost
and loss and loss
Note 22: Interest income
Interest on loans 858.47 - 856,47 1,187.25 1,187,256
Interest on debt securnities - - - - 0.78 0,78
Interest on deposits with banks 17.68 - 17.68 12.34 - 12,34
Total 874.15 - 874.15 1,199.59 0.78 1,200.37
Amount Rs. in crores
Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2025 2024
Note 23: Fes and commission income
Foreclosure income 11.57 946
Fee income from services 5.74 15.43
Total 17.3 24.89
Amount Rs. In crotes
Year ended March 21, Year ended March 31,
2025 2024
Note 24: Net gain/{loss} on fair value changes
a} Invesiments {At fair value through profit or loss) 64,33 92.88
b} Others - Assets held for sale {3.63} 146.97
Total £0.70 242,85
Break up of Net Gain/(loss) on fair value changes:
-Reatised §9.43 204.66
-Ur lised (8.73) 3B.19
Total 60.70 242.85
Amount Rs, In crores
Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2025 2024
Note 25: Other income
Interest On Income tax Refund 0.80 -
Miscellaneous Inceme 016 0.21
Sundry credit balances writtan back - 0.0
Profi¢ on sale of property, plant and equipment - 0.01
Rental Income 493 0.69
Total 1.89 0.92
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Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

2025 2024
Note 26: Finance costs
{a) Interest on:
Debt securities 185.81 250.52
Bormrowings (other than debt securities) 261.80 237.23
Subordinated liabilities 31.51 31.50
{b) Processing and other Fee 19,42 12.95
{c} Bank charges 0.26 0.50
{d} Interest on lease liability " N 4% 144 0,17
{e} Other interest expenses 128.64 196,70
Total 528.88 729.57

Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

2025 2024
Note 27: Impairment on financial Instruments
Provision for impairment due to expected eredit loss / bad debts Written
Off fnet of recoveries) {1) B4 et 7} 4,144.80 185.57
Total N 4,144.80 165.57

{1} Provision for impairmsnt due to expected crediit loss / bad debts written off {net of recoveries) indudes;

Amount Rs. in crores

. Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
Particulars 5 2024
Provision for impairment due to expected credit loss 3,650.00 209.7¢
Bad debt/advances written off{recovered) {nat)* 464,80 (44.13)
Total 4,144.80 165.57

*Net of bad debt recovered off of Rs, 153.33 crores (Previous year: net of bad debl/advance wrilten off Rs, 88,71 crores),

Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2025 2024
Note 28: Employee benefits expenses

Salaries and wages 48.40 30.72
Provision for gratuily, compensated absences > e 16} 234 0.85
Contribution to pravident and ather funds 'Refer e 38) [l 4] 0.32
Share based payments to employees expensa 11.48 1.33
Staff welfare expenses G4 0.06
Total 64.07 33.28
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Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2025 2024

Note 29; Other expenses
Rent and other charges F*™ Mae 0 0.57 0.23
Rates and taxes 072 0.26
Rapairs and maintenance 1.47 0.69
Stamp Duty 0.70 0.32
Communication Cost .08 0.03
Electricity and water 0.59 0.14
Printing and stationery 0.07 0.04
Advaerlisement and publicity 0.65 0.24
Commission & brokerage 1.17 0.41
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.06 -
Auditor's remuneration
-As Auditors " 0.38 0.38
Legal and Professional charges® 32,32 7.28
Service Chargas - 0.34
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility 7.26 6.36
Travelling and Conveyance 0.45 0.38
Depository Charges 0.01 0.28
Director's fees, alowances and expsnses 3.29 2,28
Membership Fee 0.67 0.90
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.58 0.37
Total 51.04 2091

# Includes expenses incurred for various legal, professional and technical services abtained by the Company during the year,

(1) Fees paid to the auditors include: Amount Rs. In crores

Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2025 2024

As auditor
Audit Fee 0.38 0.38
Certification fee* - 0,02
Others** 0.03 0.08
Total 0.41 048

*Included in Legal and Professional Charges
*"Amortised as per EIR method for caloulation of Interest cost on Non-Convertible Debentures and included under Firance Cost.
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Note 29: Other expenses (continued...)

2. Corporate Soclal Responsibility {CSR):

Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

Particulars 2025 2024

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the vear 7.26 6.36
Amouni spent during the year on ongoing projects 7.26 6.36
Shertfall at the end of the year Nil Nil

Nature of CSR activitias

(i) To develop age
appropriate life skils &
enhance the knawledge
and basic footbatl skils
among children and youth.
Also raise awareness
about gerwer, sexual and
reproduclive health and
rights.

(i} Welfara and
empowerment of
disadvantaged gils and
women that offers care,
education, vocational
training, and social skills
to inlegrate less privileged
gils and women into
mainstream  life  and
careers.

{ii) Covering sensitive
issues of Matemal and
chiid heatih care, covenng
education  of street
chidren and  scheol
dropouts, covering
immediate disaster relief
services and community
preparation towards
disaster and coverng
legal services to women in
need.

{iv} Providing Health,
madical, Education, Self-
Employmen, Women
Empowerment o the
Socio economic backward
society.

(i) Eradicating, hunger,
poverty and malnutrition,
promoting preventive
healthcare and sanitation
and making available safe
drinking water.

i) Upliftment of
underprivileged people in
education, healthcare,
animal care and women
empowerment.

(i) To promcie sports
amoeng students.
Providing training,
coaching and eguipment
fo players. Financial
assistance o
underprivileged sports
gerson.

{iv) Providing Health,
medical, Education, Sel-
Emptoyment, Women
Empowerment to the
Socio economic backward
society.

(v) Imparting medical
education to students and
carrying medical research.

(viy Measures for the
benefits of ammed forces
veterans, war widows and
lheir dependents.

107



Sammaan Finserve Limited

{Fommerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

CIN: U85923DL2006PLC 150632

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 30 : Tax Expenses

The major components of income tax {credit) / expense for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are :

Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2025 2024

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge - 720,54
Adjustments in respect of curent income tax
of previous year 190 -
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of tempeoray diffsrences {906.47) 10.40
Income tax (credit) ! expense reported in the statement of profit or
loss {904.57) 130.94

Reconciliation of tax (¢redit) / expense and the accounting profit multiplied by india’s domestic tax rate:

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2025 2024

Accounting {loss)/ profit for the year {(before income tax) {3.622.49) 543.94
India's statutory income tax rate 25,168% 25.168%
Cornputed expected tax (credit) / expense (91174} 136.90
Tax effect of amounts to reconcile expected income tax expense to
reportad income tax expense:
Tax an Expenses / deductions allowed/disallowed in Income tax Act, 260 4,14
Deduction under section 36{i{viii} of the Income Tax Act 1861 - {7.38}
Tax effect of expenditure/(income) not considered for tax provision (net} 4.54 (2,71}
Tax {credit)/ expenses related to the profit for the year (a) {904.57) 130.94
Effective tax rate 0.00% 24,07%
Tax on Other comprehensive income (b} 15.89 4.47
Total tax {credit } / expenses for the comprehensive income {ath} (888.58) 135.41
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note -31
(i) Red ble Mon Convertible Bebentures (payable at par unless otherwise stated){Secured unless otherwise stated) include: Amount Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
8.75% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs.1,000,000 each Redeemable on September 21, 2024 2 59945
[5.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1,000,000 each Redeemable on September 21, 2026 214.79 1,198.84
[8.75% Redeemable Non convertibla Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25, 2028% 0.06 0.06
8,84% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25, 2028'% 12.20 1215
9,10% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on Seplember 25, 2028'? 0.35 0.35
9,20% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25, 2026 13.72 13.66
9.70% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1,000,000 each Redeemabie on July 13, 2032 % 499.55 499.55
9.80% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on February 02, 2025 & - 7.14
0.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on February 02, 2025 = 3.85
0.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 sach Redeemable en February 02, 2025 © - 5.09
9.40% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redesmable on February 02, 2025 . 7.57
10.05% Redeemable Non convertibte Debentures of Face value Rs. 667 each Redeemable on February 02, 2026 ¥ 2.15 4.27
0,00% Redeemable Non convertibla Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redesmable on February 02, 2026 8.77 7.89
9.61% Redeemable Non convertible Debeniures of Face value Rs. 667 each Redeemable on February 02, 2026 ¥ 185 3.68
9.80% Redeemabla Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 800 each Redeamable on February 02, 2028 ¥ 25.68 38.32
10.30% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 800 each Redesmable on February 02, 2028 ©! 4.23 5.60
9.40% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs, 800 each Redeemable on February 02, 2028 ™) 0.01 0.01
9.85% Redeemabla Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 800 each Redeemable on February 02, 2028 © 6.36 8.41
9.60% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on April 25 _2025% 3 57.10 56.05
10.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on April 25, 2025 © 5 7.14 7.01
9.57% Redeemable Non convertible Debeniures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on April 25, 2026 59 7.18 7.05
0.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 sach Redesmable on Apiil 25, 2025 © 34 5.18 4.62
10.25% Redeemable Non canvertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on April 25, 2026 49 4.32 6.40
9.80% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redesmable on April 25, 202612 &) 3.53 5.22
0.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on Apri) 25, 2026 54 0,04 0.03
0.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs, 1000 each Redeemable on April 25, 2026 9 &4 467 4.16
10.50% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on April 25, 2028 © 34 6.82 8.42
9.57% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on April 25, 2028 %54 0.01 0.01
10.03% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face velue Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on April 25, 2028 P4 8.96 11.02
9.55% Redeemable Nan convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1,00,000 each Redeemable on January 16, 2026 39.98 -
9.80% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face vatue Rs. 1,00,000 each Redeemable on September 06, 2029 149 29.96 -
9.65% Redeemable Non converlible Debenlures of Face value Rs. 1,00,000 each Redesmable on January 13, 2027185 50.03 =
9.65% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs, 1,00,000 each Redeemable on January 13, 20274'%) 34.99 -
9.60% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1,00,000 each Redeemable on March 07, 2035 V8% 19.96 -
Total 1,069.59 2,525.86

(1) Issued by way of private placement and listed on the Wholesale Debt Market Segment of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.
{2} Issued in terms of the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, the Companies Act, 2013 as amended and other applicable laws,

by way of public issue, and listed on BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE),

{3} Issued in terms of the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2021, the Companies Act, 2013 as amended and other applicable laws,

by way of public issue, and listed on BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

(4} During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Bond issue Committee of the Board of Directars of the Company vide its resolution dated April 25, 2023 approved the issue and allotment of 11,26,402 NCDs

of face value of 1,000 each, aggregating to ¥112.64 crores by way of public issue in terms of the Tranche Il Prospecius dated March 27, 2023.

{5} During the vear ended March 31, 2025, the Company has issued and allotted 17,500 Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value Rs. 1 lakh each aggregating to Rs. 175.00 Crores,

on a private placement basis.
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Note - 31 (continued...)

{ii) (a) Term Leans from banks ffinancial institutions as at March 31, 2025 includes'™:

Particulars

Amount Rs. in crores

Term Loan taken from Bank. This loan is repayable in guarterly instalments with moratorium period of 3 month frem the date of disbursemeni. The 242.50
balance tenure for this loan is 66 months from the Balance Sheet date.

Term Loan taken from Banks. These loans are repayable in quarteriy instalments from the dale of disbursement. The average balance tenure for these 678.61
loans is 20 manths from the Balance Sheet date.

Term Loan taken from Bank(s), These loans are repayable in quartarly instalment with moratorium period of 6 months from the date of disbursement. The 338.95
average balance tenure for these loans is 25 months from the Balance Sheet date.

Term Loan taken from Bank(s), These loans are repayable in Monthly instalment fror the date of disbursement. The average balance tenure for these 70.21
loans is 16 months from the Balance Sheet date.

Total 1,330.27

{1} Linked to reference rate used by respective lenders

{ii} {a) Term Loans from banks ffinancial instilutions as at March 31, 2024 includes':

Particulars

Amount Rs. in crores

Term Loans taken from financial institution. These loans are repayable in half yeady instalments. The average balance tenwe for these loans is 4 maonths 20.64
from the Balance Sheet date.

Term Loan taken from Bank. This loan is repayable in guarterly instalments with moratorium period of 3 month from the date of disbursement. The 286.64
balance lenure for this loan is 77 months from the Balance Sheet date.

Term Loan taken fram Banks. These loans are repayable in quarterly instaiments irom the date of disbursement. The average balance tenure for these 180.00
loans is 27 months from the Balance Sheet date.

Term Loan taken from Bank(s), These loans are repayable in quarterly instalment with moratotium period of 6 months from the date of disbursement. The| 494.50
average balance tenure for these leans is 36 months from the Balance Sheet date,

Total 981.78

(1) Linked to reference rate used by respective lenders

{iii} Subordinated debt {unsecured) (repayable at par)

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars ol At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

8.45% Subordinated Debt of Face value of Rs. 100,000 each Redeemable on Mavember 08, 2027 59.35 59.16
8.45% Subordinated Debt of Face value of Rs. 100,000 each Redeemable on Movember 30, 2027 39,56 39.43
8.45% Subordinated Debt of Face value of Rs. 100,000 each Redeemable on January 05, 2028 49.97 49.87
8.85% Subordinated Debt of Face value of Rs, 100,000 each Redeemable on March 28, 2028 100.00 99.98
8.80% Subordinated Debt of Face value of Rs. 100,000 each Redeemable on May 2, 2028 98.54 98.15
8.85% Subordinated Debt of Face value of Rs. 100,000 ¢ach Redeemable on March 28, 2028 4.75 4.68
Total 35217 351.37

{iv} Changes in liabilities arising from financial activities includes negative movement on account of EIR adjustment for Rs. 14.02 crore {March 31, 2024: negalive movement Rs._ 17,34 ¢rore),

{v) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution of other lender during the year and previous year.

110



Sammaan Finserve Limited

(Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

CIN Us5923DL2008PLC 150632

Notes to financial statements for the year entled March 31, 2025

Note - 31 (continued...)

{vi) Disclosure of investing and financing activity that do not require cash and cash equivalents*:
Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (0.45) (0.43)
Investments in subsidianes and other long-term Investments (116.89) (38.19
Right-of-use assets (2.28) (0.53)
Investment Property (0.20) (1.42)
Borrowings*~ (1,786.63) 423.38

* Includes non cash movements such as effective interest rate on borrowings and investment, fair value adjustment on investments, depreciation and amortization etc.
** Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.

Note - 32

Contingent Liabilities and Commitrments:

i) Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:

The Company is involved in certain appellate and judicial proceedings (including those described below) concerning matters arising in the normal course of business including claims from customers. The
proceedings in respect of these matiers are in vanous stages. Management has assessed the possible obligations ansing from such claims against the Company, in accordance with the requirements of Indian
Accounting Standard {Ind AS} 37 and based on judicial precedents, consultation with lawyers or based on its historical experiences. Accordingly, Management is of the view that based on currently available
information no provision In addition to that already recognised in the financial statements 1s considered necessary n respect of the above.

Given below are the amounts in respect of claims asserted by revenue authorities and others:

- income tax matters in respect of which appeal 1s pending Rs. 196.28 Crores (Previcus year: Rs 45.20 Crores)
- Goods and Service tax matters in respect of which appeal is pending Rs. 4.92 Crores {Previous year: Rs. 0.48 Crores).

{ii) Capital commitments not provided for:

Capital commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment at various branches as at the March 31, 2025 {net of capital advances paid) Rs. 0.42 Crores (Previous Year Rs. Nil).
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Note - 33

Disclosures in respect of active Employees Stock Options Schemes of the Company and its Holding Company:

A, Relevant disclosures in respect of the ESOS / ESOP Scheme of the Holding Company, are as under:

{i} Grants During the Year:

1} The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Holding Company has, at its meeting held on November 21, 2024, granted under the "Sammaan Capital Limited Employee Stock Benefit Scheme -
2024" (the “Scheme™), 5,00,00,000 (Five Crore) Stock Options, representing an equal number of equity shares of face value of Rs. 2/~ each in the Holding Company, at an exercise price of Rs. 151/- per
share, being the closing market price of the fully paid up equity shares of the Holding Company on National Stock Exchange of India Limited, on the warking day immediately preceding the date of grant of
aptions, under the Schemeq(s) 1.e. November 19, 2024, The Stock Options so granted, shall vest within two years beginning from November 22, 2025 the first vesting date. The scheme is for the benefit of
the emplovees of the Holding Comoany and its whoity owned subsidiaries,

Year ended March 31, 2024:

(n respect of the “Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited Employses Stock Option Scheme - 2013 or IHFL ESOS - 2013" or {HFL ESOP Plan 2013", The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Holding Company has, at its meeting held on February 29, 2024:

a} granted 1,053,406 Stock Options, out of the previously lapsed Stack Opiions, representing an equal number of equity shares of face value of Rs, 2 each at an exercise price of Rs. 187.25 per share,
being the latest available closing market price on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, as on February 28, 2024. The Stock Options so granted, shall vest on March 1, 2025 or thereafter, as may be
decided by Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee of the Holding Company.

b} granted 2,00,00,000 Stock Options, representing an equal number of equity shares of face value of Rs. 2 each at an exercise price of Rs. 187.25 per share, being the latest available ctosing market price
an the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, as on February 28, 2024, The Stock Options so granted, shall vest within two years beginning from March 1, 2025 the first vesting date. The Stock Options
so granted, shall vest on March 1, 2025 or thereafter, as may be decided by Nemination and Remuneration Committee of the Holding Company,

oy annrowedthe o af the stnek antinng arantad noder the IHEI ESOS . 9041 ae adar

Existing Exercise Price under ESOP Plan 2013 (Rs.} New Exercise Price under ESOP Plan 2013 (Rs.)

96.00/- B5.571-

130.00~ 115.88/-

152.85/- 136.25/-
{iii} The other disclosures in respect of the ESOS / ESOP Schemes are as under:-

IHFLBFSL Employees
Particutars Stock Option — 2008 IHFL ESOS - 2013 IHFL ESOS - 2013 IHFL ESOS - 2013
Total Options under the Scheme 75,00,000 3,80,00,000 3,90,00,000 3,80,00,000
Totzl Options granted under the Scheme 2,30,400 1,08.00,000 1,565,00.000 64,00,000
Vesting Period and Percentage NA One year, 100% Cne year, 100% One year, 100%
i in first year in first year in first year

First Vesting Date 17th July, 2011 27th April, 2023 20th July, 2023 14th October, 2023
Revised Vesting Period & Percentage Ten years,yl(;‘:/o for every NA. NA. NA.
Exercise Price (Rs.) 158.50 136.25* 45.57* 115.88~
Regrant Addition N.A, N.A] N.A. N.A.
Regrant Date N.A 40,178 40,375 40,052
Options granted during the year {Nos.) - = -
Opfions vested during tive year {Nos.) - - = -
|Exercised dwing the year {Nos.) - 30,086,495 11,58,781 18,71,657
Expired during the year {Nos.) - = - -
Cancelled during the year = - = =
Lapsed during the year - - - -
Re-granted during the year N.A N.A N.A N.A
Outsianding at the end of the year (Nos.) 880 38,07,538 4,13,732 6,32,073
Exercisable at the end of the year (Nos.) 880 38,07,538 4,13,732 6,32,073
Remaining contractual Life (Weighted 3 a7 40 42
Months)

* Refer Note {i) 1 (c) above
N.A - Not Applicakle

Note - 33 (confinued...)
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(iii) The other disclosures in respect of the ES0S / ESOP Schemes are as under {continued.__..):-

Indiabulls Housing Finance

Sammaan Capital Limited

Months)

. Limited Employees Stock | IHFL ESOP Plan -
Particulars Option Scheme - 2013 « ————‘-‘—“—2023 Employee Stock Benefit
_ Scheme - 2024

Regrant A —
Tolal Options under the Scheme 3,90,00,000 2.00,00,000 5,00,00,000
Total Options granied under the Scheme 10,53,406 2,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
Vesting Period and Percentage NA Two years, 50% Two years, 50%

T in each year in each year
First Vesling Bate 1st March, 2025 1st March, 2025 22nd November, 2025
Revised Vesting Period & Percentage One year, 100% NA NA
in first year o -
Exercise Price {Rs.) 187.25 187,25 151.00
Exercisable Period S years from each vesting 5 yearsl from each 5 years from each vesting date
date vesting date

Quistanding at the beginning of the 10,53.406 2.00,00,000
|year(Nos.)
Options granted during the year (Nos.) 5,00,00,000
Qptions vested during the year (Nos.) - - -
Exercised during the year (Nos.} - E e
Expired during the year (Nos.} - = e
Cancelled during the year - B [
Lapsed during the year - - -
Re-granted during the year NA A N.A
Qutstanding at the end of the year {Nos.) 10,53,406 2,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
Exercisable at the end of the vear (Nos.) = = e
Remaining contractual Life (Weighted 59 65 74

* Refer Note (i} 1 (¢} above
N.A - Not Applicable

(iv) The details of the Fair value of the options as determined by an Independent firm of Chartered Accountants, for the respective plans using the Black-Scholes Merton Option Pricing Model:-

Indiabulls Housing

IHFL - IBFSL Employees IHFL - IBFSL IHFL - IBFSL Employees IHFL - IBFSL Finance Limited
Particulars Stack Option — 2008 Employees Stock Stock Option — 2013 Employees Stock Employees Stock
Regrant Option — 2013 P Option - 2013 Option Scheme -2013 -
Regrant
Exercise price (Rs.} 158.50 138.25¢ 85.57* 115.88% 187.25
Expected volatility* 99.60% 53.00% 53.00% 53.00% 51.00%
Expected forfeiture percentage on each
vesling date Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Option Life (Weighted Average) 9.80 Years 1 Year 1 Year 1 Year 1 Year
Expected Dividends yield 2.85% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Weighted Average Fair Value (Rs.) 90.24 35.30 22.50 30.00 43.00
Risk Free Inierest rate 7.63% 5.47% 6.25% 6.25% 7.00%
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Noie - 33 (continued...)

{iv} The details of the Fair value of the options as determined by an Independent firm of Chartered Accountants, for the respective plans using the Black-Scholes Merton Option Pricing Model
{continued...):-

Sammaan Capital
. Limited Employee
Particulars IHFL ESCP Plan - 2023 Stock Benefit
Scheme - 2024
Exercise price (Rs.) 187.25 151.00
Expected volatility* 51.00% 51.00%
Expected forfeiture percentage on each
vesting date Nil Nil
Option Life (Weighted Average) 2 Year 2 Year
Expected Dividends yield 0.00% 0.00%
Weighted Average Fair Value (Rs.) 53.00 42.70
Risk Free Interest rate 7.00% 6.60%

* The expected volatility was determined based on historical volatility data.

{b) Schemes administered through the ESOP Trust:

The Molding Company has established the *Pragati Employee Weifare Trust” (*Pragati — EWT" or "Trust") for the implementation and management of its employees benefit schemes viz. the “Indiabulls
Housing Finance Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme — 2019 ("IHFL ESOS 20198") " and the “Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme - 2021 ("IHFL ESOS 20217)"
(collectively referrad to as the "Schemes™). The Schemes are administered through the Trust, whereby shares held by the Trust are transferred to the employees, upon exercise of stock options as per the
terms of the Schemes .

The IHFL-ESOS 2018 has been adopied and approved pursuant to: (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Hokling Company at its meeting held on November 6, 201%; and (b} a special resolution
of ihe shareholders’ of the Holding Company passed through postal ballot on December 23, 2019, result of which were declared on December 24, 2019,

The IHFL ESOS 2019 comprises:

a. INDIABULLS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 {ESOP Plan 2019")

b. INDIABULLS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED Employees Stack Purchase Plan 2019 (*ESFP Plan 2019}

c. INDIABULLS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED Siock Appreciation Rights Plan 2019 (“SARs Plan 2019")

The tHFL ESQS 2019 is for the benefit of the employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries.

The IHFL-ESOS 2021 has been adopted and approved pursuant to: (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of fhe Holding Company at its meeting held on June 28, 2021; and (b} a special resolution of the
shareholders’ of the Holding Company on July 29, 2021.

The IHFL ESOS 2021 comprises:

INDIABUILLS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED Employees Stock Option Plan 2021 ("ESOP Plan 20217}
b. INDIABULLS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2021 ("ESP Plan 20217)
c. INDIABULLS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2021 (*SARs Plan 2021%)
The IHFL ESOS 2021 is for the benefit of the employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries.
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Note - 33 {continued...}

Pursuant to Regulation 3(12) of the SEB! {Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014, the shares in Trust have been appropriated lowards the Schemes for grant of Share Appreciations Righis
{SARs) 10 the employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries as permitied by SEB). The Holding Company will treat these SARs as equity and accounting has been done accordingly. The other
disclosures in respect of the SARS are as under:-

Particulars

IHFL ESOS - 2019

IHFL ESOS - 2021

| Total Options under the Scheme

1,70,00,000

92,45,000

Total Options issued under the Scheme

Vesting Period and Percentage

First Vesting Date

Exercise Price (Rs.)

Exercisable Period

Qutstanding at the beginning of the
year(Nos.)

Details of Shares acquired by the Trust pursuant o the above Schemes are

as below:

Particulars

|HFL. ES0S - 2019

Maximum no. of shares, which the Trust was
authorized fo acquire {Nos.)

1,70,00,000.00

IHFL ESOS - 2021
92,45,000.00

|Pasticulars

Fully paid up

Partly paid up

Shares held by the Trust at the beginning of
the year (Nos.)*

84,00,000

42,00,000

Conversion of shares 1o fuliy paid-up share
on August 29, 2024 pursuant to approval of
Securities Issvance and Investment
Committee {SHC) (Nos.)

42,00,000

(42,00,000

Fully paid up equity shares acquired by the
Trust from lhe Secondary Market**

32,70,000

Fully paid up shares held by the Trust at the
end of the year {Nos.)

1,58,70,000

* (84 Lacs Fully Paid-up equity shares and 42 Lacs Partly Paid-up equity shares)

** Pursuant to the authorisation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in its meeting neld on February 14, 2025 for upto 1,36,45,000 Fully Paid-up equity shares

Share based payment expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on account of the Holding Company's ESOS/ESCP Schemes:

Amount Rs. in crores

{Particulars 1

March 31, 2025

[ March 31,2024 |

{Share based payment expense |

10.86]

.33}

4,854,223 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each (Previous Year : 10,831,156) are reserved for issuance towards Employees Stock options as granted.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these options was Rs. 152.44 per share (Previous Year Rs. 151.60 per share).
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Note - 33 (continued...)

B. Relevant disclosures in respect of the ESOS / ESOP Scheme of the Company, are as under:

The Board of Directors of the company at their meeting held en November 12, 2024 and the members of the company at their Exira Ordinary General Mesting held on November 13, 2024, have approved
the “Sammaan Finserve Limited Employee Stock Benefit Scheme - 2024 (the “Scheme” or SFL-ES0S-2024), for the grant of 21,00,00,000 (Twenty One Crore) Stock Options, representing an equal
number of equity shares of face value of Rs, 2/- each in SFL, for the benefit of its employees and Non-Independent directors of the company and of the Holding Company {Sammaan Capital Limited).

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the company, has on January 7, 2025, granted under the “Sammaan Finserve Limited Employee Stock Benefit Scheme - 2024" (the “Scheme”),
10,00,00,000 (Ten Crore} Stock Options, representing an equal number of equity shares of face value of Rs. 2.00/- each in the Company, at an exgrcise price of Rs. 25.81/- per share, which is fair value as

delermined by a Merchant Banker. The Stock Options so granted, shall vest within one year i.e. January 8, 2026.

The ather disclosures in respect of the Scheime are ag below:

Particulars SFL-ES0S5-2024
Total Options under the Scheme 21,00,00,000
Total Options granted under the Scheme 10,00,00,000
Vesling Period and Percentage One year
First Vesting Date January 8, 2026
Revised Vesting Period & Percentage N.A,
Exercise Price (Rs.} 25.81
5 years from the
Exercisable Period vesting dale
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year{Nos.) =
Regrant Addition N.A
Regrant Date N.A
Options granted during the year (Nos.} 10,00,00,000
Oplions vested during the year (Nos.} -

Exercised during the year (Nos.) B
Expired during the yvear (Nos.) B
Cancelled during the year -

Lapsed during the vear -
Re-granted during the year N.A
Qutstanding at the end of the year {Nos.) 10,00,00,000
Exercisable at the end of the year (Nos.) -
Remaining contractual Life (Weighted Months) 69

The details of the Fair value of the options as determined by an Independent firm of Chartered Accountants, for the respective plans using the Black-Scholes Merton Option Pricing Model:-

Particulars SFL-ES0S5-2024
Exercise price (Rs.) 25.81
Expected volatility” 10.00%
Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date Nil
Option Life (Weighted Averags) One year
Expected Dividends yield 0.00%

Fair value of the equity shares (Rs.) 25.81
Weighted Average Fair Value of the Option (Rs.) 1,85

Risk Free Interest rate 6.25%

*The amount by which a price is expected to fluctuate during a period measuras the expected volatility of a share price. Since the shares are not listed expected volatility considered is 10%.
Share based payment expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on account of SFL-ES0S5-2024:
Amount Rs. in crores

[Particulars [ March 31, 2025 [ March31, 2024 |
Share based payment expense [ 0.62] -
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Note - 34
Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

Amount Rs. in crores
Parficulars As at As af
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid o any supplier as at the end of the
accounting year Nil Nil
(ii} Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of

the accounting year Nl N
{ii} The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment Nil Nil
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

{iv) The amount of inierest due and payable for the year Nil Nil
{v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the

accounting year Nil Nil
{vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding Wil Nil

year, until suech date when the interest dues as above are actually paid

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parlies have been identified on the basis of information avaitable with the Company. This has
been relied upon by the auditors,

Note - 35

Segment Reporting:

The Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") reviews operations and allocates resources at the Company level. Therefore, the operations of the Company fall under its main business of financing by way
of loans against property (LAP), mortgage backed SME loans, and certain cther purposes in India, which is considered to be the only reportable segment in accordance with IND-AS 108 - Operating
Segments. All other activities of the Company revolve around the main business.

Note - 36
Employee Benefits
Employee Beneiits — Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance (ESIC), Gratuity and Compensated Absences disclosures as per Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS) 19 — Employee Benefits:

Contributions are made to Government Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund, ESIC and other statutory funds which cover all eligible employees under applicable Acts. Both the employees and the
Company make predetermined contributions 1o the Provident Fund and ESIC. The contributions are normally based on a cerain proportion of the employee’s salary. The Company has recognised an
amount of Rs. 0.32 crores {Previous year Rs. 0.28 crores} in the Statement of Profit and Loss towards Employers centribution far the above mentioned funds.

Provision for unfunded Graluity and Compensated Absences for all employees is based upon actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every financial year. Major drivers in actuarial assumptions,
typically, are years of service and employee compensation. Pursuant to the issuance of the Indian Accounting Standard {IndAS) 19 on 'Employee Benefits’, commitments are actuarially determined using
the ‘Projected Unit Credit” Method. Gains and losses on changes in actearial assumptlions are accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Note - 36 (continued...)

Disclosures in respect of Gratuity and Comp ted Absences:

Amount Rs. in crores

Gratuity {unfunded} Gratuity (unfunded) Compensated |Compensated absences
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 ahsences {unfunded) March 31,
(unfunded) March 2024
31, 2025

Recongiliation of liability recognized in the Balance Sheei:
Present value of commitments (as per actuarial valuation) 8.58 4.80 2.35 1.08
Fair value of plans - - - -
Net liability in the Balance Sheet (Actual) 8.58 4.80 2.35 1.08
Movement in net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet:
Net liability as at beginning of the year 4.80 4.15 1.08 0.92
Net expense/(gain) recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 1.07 0.69 1.27 0.16
Benefits paid during the year (0.54) (0.53) - -
Actuanial changes arising from changes in financial assumplions 0.20 0.09 - -
Actuarial changes ansing from changes in Demographic assumptions - “ - -
Experience adjustments 3.05 0.40 - -
Net liability as at end of the year B.58 4.80 235 1.08
Exp gnized in the Stat t of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 0.63 0.36 0.24 0.09
Past service cost - - - -

t cost 0.44 0.33 0.1 0.09
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Actuarial (gains) losses - - 0.92 (0.02)
Expensel{income] charged lo the Statement of Profit and Loss 1.07 0.69 1.27 0.14
Return on plan assets:

Expected return on plan - - - -
Actuarial (gains) losses - - = -
Actual return on plan 1 - - - -
Reconciliation of defined-benefit commitments:

As at beginning of the year 4.80 4,15 1.08 0.92
Current service cost 0.63 0.36 0.24 0.09
Past service cost - - - -
Interest cost 0.44 0.33 0.11 0.09
Benefits paid during the year (0.54) (0.53} . -
Actuarial (gains)/ losses - . 0.92 (0.02)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.20 0,09 - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in Demographic assumptions - = = -
Experience adjustments 3.05 0.40 - -
Commitments as &t end of the year 8.58 4.80 2.35 1.08

Reconciliation of plan assets:

Plan assets as at beginning of the year

Expected return on plan

Contributions during the year

Paid benefits

Acluarial (gains)/ losses

Plan assets as at end of the year
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Note - 36 (continued...)

The actuanal caleulations used to estimate commitments and expenses in respect of Gratuity and Compensated Absences are based on the following assumptions which if changed, would affect the

commitment's size, funding requirements and expense.

Particulars Gratuity {Unfunded} Compensated Absences {Unfunded)
2024-2025 2023-2024 2024-2025 2023-2024
Discount rate — gratuity and compensated absences 6.99% 7.22% 6.99% 7.22%
Expected return on plan assets N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A,
Expected rate of salary increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table IALM {2012-14) [ALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)

N.A.. Not Applicable

The employer best estimate of contributions expected to be paid during the annual period beginning after the Balance Sheet date, towards Gratuity and Coempensated Absences is Rs. 1,64 crore (Previous
year Rs. 0.73 crore) and Rs 0.59 crore {Previous year Rs. 0.17 crore) respectively.

Gratuity

March 31, 2025

[ March 31, 2024

Assumptions

Discount rate

Sensitivity Level

0.5% increase [

0.5% decrease

0.5% increase | 0.5% decrease

impact on defined benefit obligalion (Rs. in crores) (0.47)] 0.51 {0.27)] 0.29
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Assumptions Future salary increases

Sensitivity Level 0.5% increase | 0.5% decrease [ 0.5%increase | 0.5% decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation (Rs. in crores)

0.51]

(0.48)| 0.30 | {0.28)

Comp ted absences

March 31, 2025

| March 31, 2024

Assumptions

Discount rate

Sensitivity Level

0.5% increase |

0.5% decrease

0.5% increase | 0.5% decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation (Rs. in crores)

{0.14)]

0.14 (0.08)] 0.06

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Assumptions

Future salary increases

Sensitivity Level

0.5% increase |

0.5% decrease |

0.5% increase | 0.5% decraase

| Impact on defined benefit obligation (Rs. in crores)

0.15 |

(0.14)] 0.07 | {0.06)

The following payments are expected coninibutions to the defined benefil plan in future years:

Amount Rs. in crores

Gratuity Compensated absences

Expected payment for future years March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 0.38 0.11 0.13 0.02
Between 1 and 2 years 0.24 0.29 0.06 0.10
Between 2 and 5 years 0.70 0.41 0.18 0.08
Between 5 and 6 years 0.29 0.17 0.10 0.04
Beyond 6 years 6.97 3.82 +.90 0.84
Total expecied payments 8.58 4.80 2.35 1.08

The Indian Padiament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment
has released drafi ruies for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will

assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notifieg
determine the financial impact are published.

il give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective and the retaled rules to
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Note - 37

Disclesures in respect of IND AS - 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ :

The Company's principal related parties consist of its holding Company, Sammaan Capital Limited and its subsidiaries, affiliates and key managerial personnel. The Company's malerial relaled party

transactions and outstanding balances are with related parties with whom the Company routinely enter into transactions in the ordinary course of business.

(a) Defails of related parties:

Description of relationship

Names of related pariies

{1) Where control exists

Holding Company

Sammaan Capital Limited (formerly Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited) “SCL"

Feltow subsidiary companies (including step
down subsidiaries)

Sammaan Advisory Services Limited (formerly Indiabulls Advisory Services Limited)

Indiabulls Capital Services Limited

Sammaan Insurance Advisors Limited (formerly Indiabulls Insurance Advisors Limited

Sammaan investmart Services Limited (formery Nilgiri Investmart Services Lirnited)

Indiabulis Asset Holding Company Limited

Sammaan Collection Agency Limited (formerly Indiabulls Collection Agency Limited)

Sammaan Asset Management Limited {formerly Indiabulis Investment Management Limited)

Sammaan Sales Limited (formerly Ibulls Sales Limited)

Entity under common control

Pragati Employees Welfare Trust (formerdy known as Indiabulls Housing Finance Limiled- Employee
Welfare Trust)

(ii) Other related parties

Chairman / Vice Chairman / Executive
Direclor

Wi, Ajit Kumar Mittal — Nor-Executive Chairman

Mr. Rajiv Gandhi-Managing Director & CEQ

Mr. Naveen Uppal- Non Execulive Director ORTTEER

Mr. Anil Malhan- Non Executive Director ™™ ™ 2

Independent Directors

Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra, Independent Director

Mr. Satish Chand Mathur, Independent Direciar

Ms. Preetinder Virk, Non-Executive Director {0 Geiobor 23, 20234

Ms. Nikita Sureshchand Tulsian, independent Diregtge™™ #Tect fom Oclober 22 2023)

Mr. Gorinka Jaganmohan Rao, ndependent Director™h #fect fom July 01, 2022)

Key management personnel

Mr. Ashish Kumar Jain, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Ajit Kumar Singh, Company Secretary
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Note - 37 (continued...}

{b) Statement of Party wise transactions during the year:

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31, 2025

For the Year ended March 31,
2024

Secured Loans Taken™

Holding Cempany

— Sammaan Capital Limited

2,755.00

2,360.00

Total

2,755.00

2,360.00

Unsecured Loans Given*

— Pragati Employees Welfare Trust

25.00

55.00

— Sammaan Asset Management Limited

2.00

Total

25.00

67,00

Secured Loans Given

Holding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited

2,272.00

Total

2,272.00

Payment made for Redemption of Bonds to;

Holding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limiled

1,981.88

210.00

Fellow Subsidiary

- Sammaan Assel Management Limited

10.00)

Total

1,591.88

210.00

Amount Received against Bonds

Holding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited

50.00

Total

50.00

Dividend Paid

— Sammaan Capital Limited

153.64

Total

153.64

Nat consideration on sale of wholesale loans business fo '™ nee =

Holding Company

— Sarmmaan Capital Limited

530.00

Total

530.00

Purchase of loans from

|Helding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited

203.17

Total

20317

Assignment of Loans to

JHolding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited

201.72

1,267.84]

Total

201.72

1,267.84

Sale of Assets held for sale

Holding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited

©627.06)

Teotal

£27.06)
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Note - 37 {continued...)

(b} Statement of Party wise transactions during the year {continued...}):

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31, 2025

For the Year ended March 31,
2024

Purchase of investments in units of Alternative investment funds

Holding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited

413.40

Total

413.40

Sale of investments in units of Alternative investment funds

Holding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited

191.00

Total

191.00

Sale of Bonds ! Debentures 1o

Hotding Company

~ Sammaan Capital Limited

1,683.14

Total

1,683.14,

Purchase of Bonds / Debentures from

Holdihg Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited

£08.29

Total

608.29

Rental Expenses

Holding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited

0.09

0.03

Total

0.09

0.08

Service Charges

Holding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited

0.02

0.02

Total

0,02

0.02

Income from Service Fee

Holding Company

= _Sammaan Capital Limited

0.06

0.04

Total

0.06

0.04

Interest expenses on Loan

Holding Company

~ Sammaan Capital Limited

121.38

126.76

Total

121.38

126.76)

Interest income on Loan

Holding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limifed

45.79

Fellow Subsidiary

— Pragati Employees Walfare Trust

2.25

1.65

Total

48.05

1.65

Interest Expenses on Bonds

Holding Company

- Sammaan Capital Limited

176.08

152.57

Fellow Subsidiary

— Sammaan Assst Management Limiled

2.71

2.25

Total

178.79

154.82

Interest income on Bonds

Holding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited

4.41

Total

4.41
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Noie - 37 {continued...}

(e) Statement of Party wise transactions during the year {continued...):

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31, 2025

For the Year ended March 31,
2024

Salary / Remuneration{Short-term employee benefits)

Remuneration to Key Management Personnel

- Rajiv Gandhi 5.61 6.08
— Ashish Kumar Jain 1,27 1.72
— Ajit Kumar Singh 0.83 0.76
— Anil Malhan - 2,08
Total 7.71 10.65
Salary ! Remuneration{Post-employment benefits)

— Rajiv Gandhi 0.14 0.08
— Ashish Kumar Jain 0.18 0.22
— Ajit Kumar Singh 0.02 0.02
Total 0.34 0.32
Salary | Remuneration {Others)

— Ajil kumar Mitial 0.85 0.604
— Satish Chand Mathur 0.33] 0.08
— Dinabandhu Mohapatra 0.09 0.08
— Gorinka Jaganmaohan Rao 1.41 1.04
— Nikita Sureshchand Tulsian 0.34 0.29
Total 3.02 2,09

* Represents maximum balance of loan ouistanding during the year.

Members of the Company, at their Extraordinary General Meetling held on November 13, 2024, accorded their approval for the remuneration paid to Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, Managing Director, for the ongoing

financial year ending on March 31, 2025 in excess of the limits specified under Section 197 and 128 of the Companies Act, 2013.

{c} Balances outstanding as at the year end:

Amount Rs. in crores

Nature of Transaction As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

toans taken
Holding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited - 1,330.00
Total - 1,330.00 |
Loans given

- Sammaan Capital Limited 1,115.00 -
— Pragati Employees Waelfare Trust - 25.00
Total 1,115.00 25.00
Outstanding Balance of Borrowings in Bonds held by (at fair value):
Holding Company

- Sammaan Cagital Limited 19.99 1,511.83
Fellow Subsidiary

— Sammaan Asset Management Limited 15.00 24.98
Total 34.99 1,536.80
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Noie - 37 (continued...}

{c) Balances outstanding as at the year end:

Amount Rs. in crores

Nature of Transaction

As at

March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Amount receivable/(payable) on assigned loans

Holding Company

— Sammaan Capital Limited {(15.2%) 2.02
Total {15.29} 2.02
Corporate counter guarantees given to third parties by:
Holding Company

- Sammaan Capital Limited 100.00 200.64
Total 100.00 200.64

(d) Disclosure related to Fair value of Corporate Guarantee taken from Hotding Company as per IND As 109, "Financial Instruments":

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars

For the Year ended
March 31, 2025

For the Year ended March 31,
2024

Deemed cost of fair value of corporate guarantee

— Sammaan Capital Limited 3.07 10.08
Total 3.07 10.08
Unamortised portlon of deemed cost for corporate guarantees

— Sammaan Capital Limited 2.07) 513
Total 2.07 5.13
Note -38

Earnings per share:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024*

Net Profit available for equity sharehalders for computing Basic earnings per share (Rs. in crores) {2,717.92) 413.00
Weighled average number of equity shares used for computing Basic earnings per share {Nos.} 62,52,68,979 1,23,89,96,620
Earnings per share — Basic (Rs. per share) {43.47) 3.33
Net Profit available for equily shareholders for computing Diluted eamings per share (Rs, in crores} {2,717.92) 413.00
Weighted average number of equily shares used for computing Diluted earnings per share (Nos.) 62,52,68,979 1,23,89,96,620
Earnings per share — Diluted (Rs. per share) (43.47}) 3.33
Nominal value of equity shares — {Rs. per share) 2.00 10.00

*Basic Eamnings per Share and Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share for the year ended March 31, 2024 are restated on account of effect of the Sub- Division (Stock Split) of the Equity Shares of the Company

{Refer Note 20.1 (vil}).
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Note -39
Risk Management

Sammaan Finserve Limited is a non banking finance Company in india and is regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). In view of the intrinsic nature of its operations as a lending institution, Company
is exposed to various risks that are related to lending business and operating environment. The principal objective of the Company *s risk management processes is to measwe and monitor the various
risks that Company is subject to and to follow policies and procedures to address such risks, The Company 's risk management framework is driven by its Board of Directors and its subcommittees
{including the Audit Committee, the Asset Liability Management Committee and the Risk Management Committee). The Company gives due importance to prudent lending practices and has implemented
suitable measures for risk mitigation, which include verification of credit history frem credit information bureaus, personal verification of a custorner’s business and residence, technical and legal verifications,
conservative loan 1o value, and required term cover for insurance. The Company is exposed to a variety of risks, such as credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and regulatory risks. Well-
esiablished svstems and procedures orovide adeauate defense adainst the reaulatorv and operational risks.

{A) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the potential for loss to an entity arising from either its inability to meet its obligations or to fund increases in assels as they fall due without incurring unacceptable cost or losses.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents {including highly marketable and diverse asseis that are assumed to be easily liquidated in the event of an
unforeseen interruption in cash flows) jo meet its obligations at all times. 1t also ensures having access fo funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines. The Company’s Ireasury depariment
i responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settiement management. The Gompany assesses the liguidity position under a variety of scenarios, giving due ¢onsideration o stress factors relating to both
the market in general and specifically to the Company. The Company also takes into account liquidity of the market in which the entity aperates, In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are
overseen by the Asset Liability Management Committee and the senior management regulary monitors the position of cash and cash equivalents vis-a-vis projections. In addition, the Asset Liability
Management Committee, guides the Company's treasury team in liquidity risk management through varicus means like liquidity buffers, sourcing of long term funds, positive asset liability mismatch, keeping
strong pipeline of sanctions and approvals from banks and assignment of loans. Assessment of maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities including debt financing plans and maintenance of
Balance Sheet liquidity ratios are considered while reviewing the liquidity position.

The table below summarises {he maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial liabilities :

Amount Rs. in Crores

March 31, 2025 Upio One month Over one months to 2 years | 2 years to § years more than § years Total
Borrowings from banks and others 126.58 2,076.14 1,002.82 896.43 4,101.97
Lease liability recognised under Ind AS 118 0.30 6.94 11.56 37.69 56.49
Trade payables - 0.46 5 - 0.46
Amount payable on assigned loans 179.41 - - - 179.11
Other liabilities 2.32 189.99 - - 192,31
Undrawn Loan Commitments - 97.14 - - 97.14
Temporary overdrawn balances as per books 118.37 - - - 118.37
Servicing liabitity on assigned loans - - - - -

426.68 2,370.67 1,014.38 934.12 4,745.85
The table below summarnses the matusity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial liabilities -

Amount Rs. in Crores

March 31, 2024 Upto One menth Over one months to 2 years | 2 years to 5 years more than & years Total
[Borrowings from banks and others 191.29 3,828.65 3,752.30 1,303.34 9,075.58
Lease liability recognised under Ind AS 118 0.04 0.98 0.40 - 1.42
Trade payables 0.05 - - - 0.05
JAmount payable on assigned loans 188,61 - - - 188.61
Other liabilities 16.81 93.02 - - 109.83
Undrawn Loan Commitments - 147.98 - - 147.98
Temporary overdrawn balances as per books 136.29 - - - 136.29
Servicing liability on assigned loans 0.31 5.09 1.07 - 6.47

534.40 4,075.72 3,753.77 1,303.34 9,667.23
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Note ~ 39 {continued...)

(B) Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled after factoring in rollover and prepayment assumptions,

Particulars Balance as at March 31, 2025
Within 12 Months After 12 Months Total
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 796.91 - 796.91
Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents 149.26 68.23 217.49
Loans 631.01 2,612.27 3,243.28
Investmenis - 1,244.42 1,244,49
Qiher financial assels 300.19 162.73 452 92
Non-financial Assets
Current tax assets {net) - 291.08 291.08
Deferred tax assets {net) - 339.06 339.06
Investment Praperty - - L
Property, plant and equipment - 2.68 2.68
Other Intangivle assets - 1.09 1.08
Right of Use assets 6.78 48,68 55,46
QOther non- financial asseis 26.21 24.01 50.22
Assets held for sale 425.92 - 425.92
Total Assets 2,336.28 4,784.32 7.120.60
[CIABILITIES
{Financial Liabilities
Payables
Trade payables
{i} total outstanwiing dues of micro
enterpiises and small enferprises d - S
{ii} total outstanding dues of credilors
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 0.46 - 0.46
Debt securities 148.29 0921.30 1,069.59
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 797.79 1,077.65 1,875.44
Subordinated liabifities - 352.17 352.147
Other financial liabilities 557.02 8.05 565.07
Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions 0.51 10.42 10.93
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - - a
Other non-financial liatil ties 161i.56 14.34 175.90
Total Liabilities 1,665.63 2,383.93 4,049.56
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Note - 38 (continued...)

(B} Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (continued...)

Particulars Balance as at March 31, 2024
Within 12 Months After 12 Months Total
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 154.36 - 154.36
Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents 202.85 11.95 2i4.81
Loans 2,774.94 6,709.49 9,484.43
Investments 426.62 2,347.95 2,774.57
Other financial assets 681.12 26.72 707.84
Non-financial Assets
Current tax asseis {net) - 238.25 238.25
Deferred tax assets {net} - - -
Investment Property - 3282 32.82
Psoperty, plant and equipment - 1.39 1.39
Other Intangible asseis - 0.01 0.01
Right of Use assets 0.45 0.68 1.13
QOther non- financial assets 16.60 31.77 48.37
Assets held for sale - 358.93 359.93
Total Assets 4,256.95 9,760.96 14,017.91
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterpnses and small enterprises
(i1} totaf outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small
enterpnses 0.05 - 0.05
Debt securities 648,82 1,877.04 2,525.86
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,150.88 347771 4,628.59
Suberdinated liabilities - 351.37 351.37
Other financial liabilities 578.32 7.64 585.96
Non-Financial Liabitities
Provisions 44.74 5.74 50.48
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - 6.70 & 70
Other nen-financial liabilities 19.91 181.84 201.75
Total Liabilities 2,442.72 5,808.04

127



Sammaan Finserve Limited

(Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

CIN: Ug5923DL2006PLC150632

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note - 39 (continued...)

{C) Credit Risk
Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss arising out of either a customer or counterparty's unwillingness to perform on an chligation or its ability to perform such obligation is impaired resulting in ecenomic loss
to the Company. The Company's Credit Risk Management framework is categorized into following main components:

- Senior management's oversight
- Qrganizational structure
- Systems and procedures for identification, acceptance, measurement, monitoring and controlling risks.

It is the overall responsibility of the Company’s senicr management to approve the Company's credit risk strategy and lending policies relating to credit risk and its management. The policies are based on
the Company's overall business strategy and the same is reviewed every quarter by the seniof management.

To maintain credit discipline and to enunciate credil risk management and control process there is a separale Risk Management department independent of loan ongination function, The Risk Management
department performs the funetion of Credit policy formulation, credit limit setting, monitoring of credit exceptions / exposures and review /monitaring of documentation.

The Risk Management Commiltee monilors credit risk the using level of credit exposures, portfolio monitoring, repurchase rate, bureau data of postfolio performance and industry, geographic, customer,
portfotio concentration risks; and assessment of any major change in the business environment including economic, political as well as natural calamity/pandemic. The Risk Management Committee also

pericdicaly reviews the credit risk management procedures implemented by Risk management department.

Derivative financial Instruments

The Company has not entered into derivative financial instruments and is not exposed to any credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments.

Concentration of risks

The Company's concentrations of risk for loans are managed by counterparty and type of loan (i.e. CRE-RH and others as defined by RBIL. These are given to both individual and corporate borrowars. The

table below shows the conceniration of risk by type of lean,

Amount Rs. in Crores

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Commercial Real Estate - Residential Housing {CRE-RH) 10.53 1,909.86
Others 3,232.75 7,674.57

The Company’s concentrations of risk {for financial assets other than loans and advances ) by Industry sector are given below:

Amount Rs. in Crores

March 31, 2025 Financial serviges Cash Nature of
Collateral Non-Cash Collateral

Financial assets

Cash and cash eguivalents 796.91 - -

Bank balance other than Cash and cash 217.49 - -

equivalents

Loans 3,243.28 - b Refer fo note below

Investments 1,244.49 - -

Other financial assets 452.92 - -

March 31, 2024 Financial services Cash Nature of
Collateral Non-Cash Collateral

Financial assets

|Cash and cash equivalents 154.36 - z

Bank balance other than Cash and cash 214,81 B 2

equivalents

Loans 5,484 43 - | Refer to note below

lInvestments o 277457 -

Other financial assets 707.84 - il -
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Nofe ~ 32 (continued...)

The Company by way of loan sanction letter and other loan securing documents agrees with its customers on collateral security to be provided by the customers in secured loan exposures that are subject to
credit risk. Collateral security enables us to recover all or part of the outstanding exposure by liquidating the collateral asset provided, in cases where the borrower 1s unable or unwilling to fulfil its primary
obligations

Collateral security accepted by the Company could be in the form of:

(a)Equitable morigage of property and / or,

(b)Pledge of shares / debentures, units, other securities, assignment of life insurance palicies and / or,

(c)Hypothecation of assets and / or,

(d)Company guarantees and / or,

(e)Personal guarantees and / or,

(f)Negative lien and f or Undertaking to create a security.

(i} Interest Rate Risk:-

Interest rate risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions, which are subject to interest rate adjustment within a specified period. The Company’s lending, funding and investment activities give
nse to interest rate risk. The immediate impact of variation in interest rate is on the Company’s net interest income, while a long term impact 1s on the Company's net worth since the economic value of the
assels, liabilities and off-balance sheet exposures are affected. While assessing Interest rate risks, signals given to the market by RB] and govarnment departments from time 1o time and the financial
industry's reaction to them shall be continuously maonitored.

[Due to the very nature of financial services, the Company is exposed to modsrate to higher Interest Rate Risk. This risk has a major impact on the balance sheet as well as the income statement of the
Company. Interest Rate Risk arises due to:

i) Changes in regulatory or markst conditions affecting the interest rates |
i) Short term volatility

iii} Prepayment risk translating into a reinvestment risk

iv) Real interest rate risk.

In short run, change in interest rate affects Company’s earnings {measured by NIl or NIM} and in long run it affects Market Value of Equity (MVE) or net worth. It is essential for the Company to not only
quantify the interest rate risk but also to manage it proactively, The Company mitigates its interest rate risk by keeping a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Further Company
carries out Earnings at risk analysis and maturity gap analysis at quarterly intervals to quantify the risk.

Interest Rate sensitivity
The following {able demonstrales the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates in respect of borrowings subject to variable interest rates (al! other variables being constant) of the

Company's statement of profit and loss:

Amount Rs. in Crores

Particulars Basis Points Effect on Profit! (loss) before | Effect on Profit
tax and Equity before tax and
for the year ended March 31, Equity
2025 for the year ended
March 31, 2024
Borrowings*
Inciease in basis points +25 7.60 8.01
Decrease in basis points -25 {7.60) (8.01)
Loans*
Increase in basis points +25 15.58 24.59
Decrease in basis points -25 {15.58) (24.59)

*Based on average outstanding balances.

{ii) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk s the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency rates, The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primary to the foreign currency borrowings taken from banks through the FCNR route.

The Company follows a canservative policy of hedging its foreign currency exposure through Forwards and / or Cuirency Swaps in such a manner that it has fixed determinate oulflows in its function
currency and as such there would be no significant impact of movement in foreign curency rates on the Company's profit before tax (PBT) and equity.
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Note - 39 {confinued...)
{iii) Equity Price Risk

The Company’s exposure price risk arises from investments held and classified in the balance sheet either at fair value through other comprehensive income or at fair value through profit or loss. Ta manage
the price risk arising from investments, the Gompany diversifies its portfolio of assets .

{D) Operational Risk
Qperational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or falled internal processes, people and system or from external events.

Operational risk is associated with human error, system failures and inadequate procedures and controls. It is the risk of loss arising from the potential that inadequate information system; technology
failures, breaches in internal controls, fraud, unforeseen catastrophes, or cther cperational problems may result in unexpected losses or reputation problems, Operational risk exsts in all products and
business activities,

The Company recagnizes that operational risk event types that have the potential to result in substantial losses includes Internal fraud, External fraud, employment practices and workplace safety, clients,
preducts and business practices, business disruption and system failures, damage to physical assets, and finally execution, delivery and process management.

The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but il endeavours to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Contrals include
effective segregation of duties, access, autherisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit,

Note - 40

Leases

(i} Leases where the Company is a Lessea

a) The Company has lease contracts for various office premises used in its operations. Leases of office premises generally have lease terms between 1 to 15 years. The Company's cbligations under its
leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets. Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets.

The Company also has certain leases of office premises with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

(b) Leases are shown as follows in the Company's balance sheet and Statement of profit and loss:

Sel out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Building - Office
Particulars Premises
Amount Rs. in
Crores
Opening balance as at 1 Aprit 2023 2.51
Addition |
Deletion {Terminated during the year) 0.85
|Depreciation expense 0.53
Closing balance as at March 31, 2024 1.13
Addition 56.87
Deletion {Terminated during the year) 0.26
Depreciation expense 2.28
|Closing balance as at March 31, 2025 55.46

130



Sammaan Finserve Limited

{Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

CIN: U65923DL2006PLC150632

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note - 40 (continued...}

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease lizbilities (included under Borrowings {Other than debt securities)) and the movements during the year:

Particulars

Amount Rs. in

Crores
Opening balance as at 1 April 2023 2,97
Additichs -
Deletion (Terminated during the year) 1.05
Accretion of interest 0.17
Payments 0.67
Change due o modification of leases -
As at March 31, 2024 1.42
Additions 56.87
Deletion (Terminated during the year} 0.37
Accretion of inferest 1.44
Payments 2.87
Change due to modificaticn of leases -
As at March 31, 2025 56.49
Current 3.66
Non-current 52.83
{c) Amounts recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss Amount Rs. In Crores
. For the year ended For the year ended March
Gartieulats March 31,2025 31,2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assels 2.28 0.53
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1.44 0.17
Gain on termination/modification of leases 011 {0.20}
Expense relating to short-ierm leases {included in other expenses) 0.57 0.24
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 4.40 0.74

During the year the Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs, 2,87 crores {March 31, 2024:

Note -41
Transfers of financial assets

Transfers of financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

Secuntisations: The Company uses secuntisations as a source of finance. Such transactions resulted in the transier of contractual cash flows from portfolios of financial assets to holders of issued debt

Rs 0.67 crores)

securities. Such deals resulted in continued recognition of the securitised assets since the Company retains substantial risks and rewards.

The table below outlines the carrying amounts and fair values of all financial asseis fransferred that are not derecognised in their entirety and associated liabilities.

Amount Rs. In Crores

As at As at
Securitisations March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Carrying amount of transferred ts measured at amortised cost 259.08 1,608.64
Carrying amount of assaociated liabilities {239.17) {2,118.50)

The carrying amount of above assets and liabilities is a reasonable approximation of their respective fair values
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Note - 41 {continued...)

Assignment Deals

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Compary has sold certain loans (measured at amortised cost) pursuant to assignment deals, as a source of finance. As per the terms of such deals, since the
derecognition criteria as per IND AS 109 are met, including fransfer of substantially all the risks and rewards relating to assets being transferred to the buyer, the assets have been derecognised from the
books of the Company,

The table below summarises the details of the derecognised loans (measured at amortised cost} and the consequent gain upon derecognition:

Amount Rs. in Crores

. For the year ended For the year ended
Loans {at amortised cost) March 2025 March 2024
Amount of derecognised financial assets 2,071.69 245575
Cainf{loss) from derecognition 182,17 26,62

Since the Company has derecognized the above loan assets in entwety, the whale of the interest spreag at the present value (discounted over the expected life of the assets) is recegnised on the date of
derecognition itself as interest-only strip receivable and corresponding gain on derecognition of financial assets s recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category comprises net gain on direct assignment of loans and impact amounting to Rs. 85.63 Crore on account of change in
estimates on assignment transactions based on the rend & market analysis determined by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025,

Note -~ 42

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equily reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company, 'The Company’s
capital management objectives are:

- to ensure the Company’s ability fo continue as a going concarn

- to maintain a higher capital base than the mandated regulatory capital at all times

- o maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders

The Company monitors capital using a capital adequacy ratio as prescribed by the RBI guidetines, Refar note 45 for defails.

Note -43

Fair value measurement
As per Ind AS 107, ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures', the fair values of the financial assets or financial lfabilities are defined as the price that would be received on sale of asset or paid fo transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date Financial assets and financial Liabilities are measured at fair value in the financial statements and are grovped info three
Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable. The hierarchy gives the
highes! priority to quoled prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and fowest priority fo unobservable inputs. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the
measurement, as follows:

{i) Valuation principles
Fair value is the price that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions . reaardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation techniaue.

{ii} Valuation governance
The Company's process to determine fair values is part of its periodic financiat close process. The Audit Committee exercises the averall supervision over the methodology and models 1o determine the fair
value as part of its overall monitoring of financial close process and controls. The respensibility of ongoing measurement resides with business units . Once submitted, fair value estimates are also reviewed
and challenged by the Risk and Finance functions.
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Note - 43 (continued...)

{iii) Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy

The folflowing table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by leve! of the fair value hierarchy:

Amount Rs. in Crores

March 31, 2025

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Financial instrumenlts measured at fair value through profit and loss -
Mutual funds and Debt Securities ) 43.30 | 83.92 - 127.22
Total financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss 43.30 83.92 - 127.22
Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income
Mutual funds and Debt Securities - 514.95 602.32 1,117.27
Total Financtal instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 514.95 602,32 1,117.27
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 43.30 598.87 602.32 1,244.49
Assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis - - - -
Total financial assets measured at falr value 43.30 598.87 602.32 1,244.49
Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis . - - -
Liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis - - - -
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value - - - -

Amount Rs. in Crores

March 31, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tofal

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss
Mutual funds and Debt Securities 5042 11.37 313.13 374.92
Total financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss 50.42 11.37 313.13 374.92
Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income -
Mutual funds and Debt Securities - 118,91 2,280.74 2,399.65
Total Financial instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ] 118,91 2,280.74 2300.65
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 50.42 130.28 2,593.87 2,774.57
lAssets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis
Total financial assets measured at fair value 50.42 130.28 2,503.87 2,774.57

Liabilities ed at fair value on a recurring basis

Liabilities measured al fair value on a non-recurring basis

Total financial liabilities measured at fair vatue
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Nate - 43 (continued...)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024:

Nttial funds and Debt
securities (Refer footnotes
Particulars 1 {o 4 below) Total
Balance as at April 1, 2623 - -
Acqguisitions 2,580.42 2,680.42
Transfer from Level 2 to Level 3 - -
Deletionsiredemption - B
Gains/{losses) recognised in profit and loss - -
Gains{(losses) recognised in other
comprehensive income - -
Unrealised gains/(losses) recognised in profit
and loss 12.32 12.32
Unrealised gains/(iosses) recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income 1.14 1.14
Impairment recognised in profit and loss - N
As at March 31, 2024 2,593.88 2.593.88
Acquisitions - -
Transfer from Level 2 to Level 3 - -
Deletions/redemption 2,174,682 2,174.62
Gains/{losses) recognised in profit or loss 50.66 50,66
|Gainsi(losses) recognised in other
comprehensive income 231.94 231.94
Unrealised gains/(losses) recognised in profil
and loss {12.32) {12.32)
Unrealised gains/(losses} recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income (87.22) (87.22)
Impairment recognised in profit and loss - -
As at March 31, 2025 602.32 602.32
The following table summarises the quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements:
Fair value as at

BSEERE s As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Mutual funds and Debt Securities 602.32 2,593.87
Total 602.32 2,593.87

Impact of Increase in Rates on Total Comprehensive frcome
Particulars Rates for Sensitivity March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Favourabte Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable

Mutuat funds and Debt Securities 0.25% 1.514 -1.51 6.48 -6.48
Total 1.51 -1.51 6.48 -6.48
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Note - 43 {continued...)
(iv) Valuation techniques

Debenture and Bonds

Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing in the market as at reporting date and are classified as Level 2.

Unlisted debentures and bonds

Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the discounted ¢ash flows and market comparison technique as al reporting date and are classified as Level 3.

Mutual Funds

Open ended mutual funds are valued at MAV declared by respective fund house and are classified under Level 1,

{v} There have been no transiers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

{vi) Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the financial statements. This table does not

include the fair values of non—financial assets and nen—financial liabifities,

Amount Rs. in Crores

March 31, 2025

Carrying Value FairValte
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 796.91 - =
Bank balances other than cash and cash 217.49 E =
equivalents

Loans and advances 3.243.28 - -
Other Financial assets 452.92 - -
Total financial t: 4, 710,60 - -
|Financial Liabilities:

Trade payables 0.46 -

Debt securities 1,069.59 1,113.10 1,113.10
Borrowing other than debt securities 1,875.44 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 352,17 356,90 356.90
Other financial liabilities 565.07 - -
Total financial liahilities 3.862.73 1,470.00 1,470.00
Off-balance sheet items:

Other commitmenis - - “
Total off-balance sheet items - 3 -
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Amount Rs. in Crores

March 31, 2024

Carrying Value Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 154.38 = -
Bank balances other than cash and cash 214.81 - B
equivalents

Loans and advances: 9,484.43 - =
Other Financial assets: 707.84 = =
Total financial assets 10,561.44 - E
Financial Liabifities:

Trade pavables 0.05 - &
Debt securities 2,525.86 2,572.86 2,572.86
Bowowing gther than debt gecuritios 4,628.59 - -
Subordinaied Liabililies 351.37 355.29 355.29
Otkrer financial liabilities 585.96 - -
Total financial liabilities 8,081.83 2,928.16 2,828.16
Off-balance sheet items:

Other commiiments - - -
Total off-balance sheet items - - -

{vii) Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair vaive

Below are the methodologies and assumplions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recerded and measured at fair value in the Company's financial statements.
These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the insfturments in the above tables,

Debt Securities & Subordinated liabilities
These include Subordinated debt and secured debentures. The fair values of such liabiliies are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash flows using actual or estimated

vields and discounting by yields incorporating the appropriate credit risk, These instruments are classified in Level 2.

Assets and Liabilities other than above

The carrying value of assets and liabilities other than investments at amortised cost, debt securities and subordinated liabilities represents a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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Note - 44

Disclosures in terms of Annex VIl of the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023;

{3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities

{i} Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors

{a} Firancial tease Nil Nil
(b} Operating lease Nil Nil
(i} Stock on hire incduding hire charges under sundry debtors:

{a) Assels on hire Nil il
{b} Repossessed Assets il MNil
|{iii} Other loans counting towards AFC activities

{a} Loans where ts have been repc d Nil Nil
{b) Loans other than (a) above il Nil

Particulars Amount Rs.in Crores
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
— Amount Outstanding Amount Qverdue | Amount Ouistanding Amount Overdue

Liabilities side:
(1) Loans and advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not
paid;
lta) Debentures : Secured™” 4,129.73 Nil 2,654.67 il

<4, red™® % 364.43 Nil 363.70 Nl

{other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(b) Deferred Credits Wil N
{c} Term Loansa’ 4,333.13 Nil 984 .39 Nil
{d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing Nil Nil INil Nil
(e} Commercial Paper Nil Nil Nil Nil
{f} Other Loans — (specify nature)
— Loan from Holding Company - Nil 1,330.00 Nil
— From Banks-Cash Credit Facility 15.00 Nil 18.88 Nil
—From banks- Woarking Capital Loan 200.00 Nil Nil Nil
— From Banks-Overdralt Facility - Nil 178.01 il
(1) Includes interest accrued but not paid for Rs.60.14 crores (Previous year Rs.128.81 crores)
(2) Includes interest accrued but not paid for Rs, 2,87 crores (Previous year Rs. 2,60 croves)
(3} Includes interest accrued but not paid for Rs. 1227 crores (Previous year Rs.12.34 crares)
(4) Unsecured nonh convertible debentures in the nature of subordinate debts
. Amount Rs. in Crores
Assets side: Outstanding as at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

{2) Break-up of Loans and Advances in¢luding bills receivables [other than those ingluded in (4) below:]
(a) Secured 3,208.62 7.293.65
{b) Unsecured 28.54 1,932.83
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Note - 44 (continued...)

{4) Break-up of Investmeants:

Amount Rs. In Crores
Outstanding as at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current Investments
1. Quoted:
{i) Shares : (a) Equity Nil Nil

(b} Preference Nil Nil
(i) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
{1ii} Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
{iv)} Sovernment Securities Nil Nil
{v) Others (please specify) Nil Nil
2, Unguoled:
(i) Shares : (a) Equity Nil NH

(b) Preference Nil Nil
(i) Debentures and Bonds Ni| 426,62
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
() Government Securities Nil Nil
(v} Others (please specify) Nil Nil
Long Term investments :
1.  Quoted :
(1) Shares : {a) Equity Nil Nil

(b) Preference Nil Nil
(i) Debentures and Bonds §8.29 Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
(v} Others (please specify) Nil Nil
2. Unquoted :
(i} Shares : {a) Equity Nil Nil

(b} Preference Nil Nil
(i) _Debentures and Bonds 602.32 2,187.25
(iii) Units of mutual funds 558.25 169.33
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
(v} Others (Pass ihrough certificaie} 25.63 11.37

{5) Borrower group-wise classification of assefs financed as in (2) and {3} above:

Category Amount net of provisions [Rs. in Crores)
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1.Related Parties Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total

{a) Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil il

{b) Companies in the same group 1,115.00 Nil 1,115.00 Nil Nil Nil

{c) Other related parties Nil Nil Nil Nil 25.00 25.00
2, Other than related parlies” 204575 28.54 2,074.29 7,100.67 1,507.83 9,008.50
Total 3,160.75 28.54 3,185.29 7.100.67 1,932.83 9,033.50

*Excludes Provision against loan assets of Rs, 47.87 crores (Previous year Rs 192.98 crores)
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Note - 44 (continued...)

(6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments {Current and Long term} in shares and securities [both quoted and unguoted):

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Market Value / Break up or | Book Value {Net of

Market Vaiue / Break up| Book Value (Net of

Category fair value or NAV (Rs. in Provision} (Rs. in {or fair value or NAV (Rs.| Provision} (Rs. in
crores) crores) in crores) crores)
1. Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil Nil
{b) Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nii Nil
c} Other related pariies Nil Nil Nil Nik
2. Other than retated parties 1,244.42 1,312.36 2.774.57 2,734.95
Total 1,244.49 1,319.36 2,774.57 2,734.96
{7)_Other information:
Partlculars Amount (Rs. in Crores)

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

(i) Gross Non-Performing A

(a) Related parties B Nil Nil

(b} Other than related parties - 3233 202.07
|(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets _—

(a) Related parties Nil Nil

(b} Other than related parties 17.29 67.98
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - Nil Nil

Mote: In computing the above information certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the Management for its regulatory submission which have been refied upon by the Auditors,

Note -45

(A} Disclosures in terms of Annex XXNl of the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023:

{i) Disclosure of Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR):

I As at As at

. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

CRAR (%) 38.32% 44.81%
CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 34,80% 44.81%
CRAR - Tier |l Capital (%) 3.52% 0.00%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-l capital (Rs. in Crores)” 160.57 -
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments Nil Nil

* Tier Il capital as al March 31, 2024 comprising of subordinated debt of Rs. 351.37 crores had been adjusied with investments in alternative investment funds in accordance with the requirements of RBI's

Circular no. RBI/2023-24/140 DOR.STR.REC.85/21.04 048/2023-24 dated March 27, 2024.
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Note - 45 {continued...)

(if) Disclosures of Investments

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars

As at

March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,

2024

{1) Value of Investments

(i} Gross Value of Investments
a) In India
b) Outside India

1,244 .49

2,774.57

{ii) Provision for Depreciation
a) In India
b) Qutside india

{iii) Net Value of Investments
a} In India

b} Quiside India

1,244.49

2,774.57

(2) Mov t of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

{i} Opening balance

(i} Add: Provisions made dunng the year

{in) L.ess: Write-offfwnte-back of excess provisions during the year
{iv) Closing balance

2,98

2.88

{iii} Disclosures of Derivatives

(a) Forward Rate Agreementiinterest Rate Swap

Amount Rs.

in crores

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31,

2024

{i) The nolional principal of swap agreements

Nil

Nil

(i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under the
|agreements

Nil

NIl

(iii) Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps

Nil

Nil

{iv) Concentrations of credil risk arising from swaps

Nil

Nil

{v) The fair value of the swap book

Nil

Nil

{b) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR} Derivatives

Amount Rs.

In crores

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

effective”(instrument-wise)

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during ihe year| Nit Nil
[{instrumeni-wise)

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding (instrumeni-wise) Nil Nil
{ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly Nil Nil
effective"{instrument-wise)

[iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR dedvatives outstanding and not “highly, Nil Nil

(c) Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives
Qualitative Disclosure

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company does not have any risk exposure in derivative financial instruments. The Company has in piace a policy approved by its Board of Directors which is
consistent with its risk management strategy. The Company's risk management activities are subject to the management, direction and contral of Risk Management Committee of its Board of Directors,
which reports to the Board on the scope of its activities. As at March 31, 2025, the Company has no outstanding forward exchange confract (previous year @ Nil}.
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Note - 45 {continued...}

Quantitative Disclosures

Amount Rs. in creres

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Particulars Interest Rate Interest Rate
Currency Derivatives Derivatives Currency Derivatives Derivatives

{i) Derivatives {Notional Principal Amount)

For hedging Nil Nil Nil Nil
(i) Marked to Market Positions{1)

{a) Assel(+} Nil Nil Nil Nil

{b) Liability(-} Nil Wil Nil Nit
{iii} Credit Exposure(2) Ni| Nil Nil NIl
(iv) Unhedged Exposures Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iv} Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities March 31,2025*:

Amount Rs. in crares
Particulars Deposits Advances lnvestments Borrowings Fareign Currency Forei_gn f:.u_rrency
assets Liabilities
1 fo 7 days - 37.88 8.44 1.23 - -
B ta 14 days - 0.76 63.81 1.56 - -
15 days to 30 /31 days - 146,74 4.33 96.76 - -
Over one month to 2 manths - 56.10 - 44.51 - -
Over 2 months to 3 months - 54.47 2.25 95.50 - -
|Over 3 months to 6 months - 148.82 60.64 295.69 = -
Over 6 months to 1 year - 826.09 22.25 478,05 - -
Cver 1 year to 3 years - 1,138.33 68.54 1,307.49 - B
Over 3 years to 5 years - 1,691.61 671.25 286.07 - -
QOver § years - 294.31 573.25 765.62 - -
Total - 4,495.12 1,474.76 3,372.48 - -
{iv) Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities March 31, 2024*;
Amount Rs. in crores
Particulars Deposits Advances Investments Borrowings Foreign Currency Foreign F‘u.rrency
assets Liabilities

1107 days - 150.58 3.83 - - -
8 10 14 days - 4.01 52.30 2.20 N -
15 days 1o 30 /31 days - 180.58 5.58 31.42 - -
Over one month ta 2 months - 580.30 - 84,11 - -
Over 2 months to 3 months - 238.90 7.05 82.40 - =
Over 3 months 1o 6 months - 946.41 54.03 1,038.78 - -
Over 6 months to 1 year - 1,352.86 506.90 T04.57 - -
Qver 1 year to 3 years - 4,007.55 1,372.42 3,946.02 - -
QOver 3 years to 5 years - 2,926.35 750.19 670.17 - -
Over 5 years - 620.12 270.11 1,089.93 - -
Total - 11,026.67 3,022.20 7,649.58 - N

*In addition to the investments shown in the table above, the Company alsg had cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 796,91 Crores as at March 31, 2025 (previous year Rs. 154.36 Crores).

Note: In computing the above information certain estimales,.a

mptions and adjustments have been made by the Management for its regulatory submissien which have been relied upon by the auditors.
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Note - 45 [continued...)

(v}{a) Exposure to Real Estate Sector:

Amount Rs. in crores

Category

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Direct Exposure

{a) Residential Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be cccupied by the borrower or that is rented,

Particulars

March 31, 2025

Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits 1,333.04 1438.32
{b) Commercial Real Esiate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates {cffice buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-
family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, indusirial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisiion, 36.91 4,248.20
development and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits;
{¢) Investments in Morigage Backed Securities {MBS) and other securitised exposures -
{i) Residential Nil Nt
{ii) Commercial Real Eslate. 25,63 Nil
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 1,385.58 5,684.59
{vi{b}{1) Exposurs to Capital Market: Amount Rs. in crores
As at As at

March 31, 2024

{i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutuat funds the corpus|
of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt

(i) Advances againsi shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on ¢lean basis 10 mdividuals for investment in shares

{including |POs { ESOPs), convertible bonds, converlible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds

(iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual
funds are taken as primary security

{iv} Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the coltateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible)
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the pnmary security ather than shares / convertible bonds / convertible
debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds ‘does not fully cover the advances

{v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behaif of stockbrokers and market makers

{vi} Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for]
meeting promoeter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources

{vil} Bridge loans to cempanies against expected equity flows / issues

{viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or converlible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity eriented mutual funds

{ix) Financing fo siockbrokers for margin trading

(x) All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:

{1} Category | - -
{ii) Category || 514.95 118.91
{iii} Category (Il - "
Total (2) 514.95 118.91
Total Exposure to Capital Market {1+2) 514,95 118.91

The above summary is prepared based on the information available with the Company.

(vi) Detalls of Single Borrower Limit {SGL) / Group Borrower Limit {GBL} exceeded by the NBFC
The Company has not exceeded the limits for SGL J GBL
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Note - 45 (continued...)

{vil)The Company has been assigned the following credit ratings during the year:

Borrewing limit or
conditions imposed
by rating agency, if

Date of rafing / any

Deposits Instrument Name of rating agency revalidation Rafing assigned {Amt. in Rs. Crs)

Term Loans CRISIL 24-Mar-25 CRISIL AA 2,500.00
Subordinate debt CRISIL 25-Feb-25 CRISIL AA 500.00
Retail Bond CRISIL 25-Feb-25 CRISIL AA 4,508.83
NCDs CRISIL 25-Feb-25 CRISIL AA 3.486.79
NCDs {Public Issue of retail secured redeemable non-convertible debentures) CRISIL 25-Feb-25 CRISIL AA 249.98
Short Term Debt (CPs) CRISIL 25-Feb-25 CRISIL A1+ 3,000.00
Long-term/Short term bank facilities CARE 01-Oci-24 CARE AA-/JCARE A+ 1,255.00
Subordinate debt CARE 03-Dec-24 CARE AA- 355.00
NCDs CARE 03-Dec-24 CARE AA- 40.00
Public Issue of secured redeemable non-convertible debentures CARE 03-Dec-24 CARE AA- 26.77
NCBs Brickwork 09-May-24 BWR AA+ 500.00
NCDs Brickwork 09-May-24 BWR AA+ 1,800.00
Bank Loan Facilities Brickwork 09-May-24 BWR AA+ 1,000.00
Subordinate debt Brickwork 09-May-24 BWR AA+ 600,00
NCDs (Public Issue of retail secured redeemable non-convertible debentures) Brickwark 09-May-24 BWR AA+ 1,000.00
Commercial Papers Brickwark 09-May-24 BWR A1+ 500.00
NCDs ICRA 25-Nov-24 ICRA AA 3,300.00
Retail non-convertible debenture {(NCD) programme ICRA 25-Nov-24 ICRA AA 2,250.00
Subordinate debt ICRA 25-Nov-24 ICRA AA 450.00

{viii} Additional Disclosures

{a) Provisions and Contingencies

Amount Rs. in crores

|Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss
Agcount

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Provisions for depreciation on lnvestment 0.20 1.42
Provision towards NPA 1,343.06 213.38
Provision made towards Income tax{including deferred tax and MAT Credit) {904.57) 130.94
Cther Provisions and contingencies( with details) - -

Provision for standard assets 2,306.94 (3.68)

{b) Concentration of Advances*

Amount Rs. in crores

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Tolal Advances lo twenly largest borrowers® 233.26 4,183.83
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest botrowers to Total Advances of the NBFC 7.21% 45.35%

* does not include loans & advances to Holding Company/Fellow Subsidiaries
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Note - 45 {continued...}

{c} Concentration of Exposures”

Amount Rs. in crores

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total Exposure o twenty largest borrowers / customers™ 236.27 4,183.83
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of the NBFC 7.30% 45.35%
on borrowers / customers
* does not include loans & advances to Holding Company/Fellow Subsidiaries
{d} Concentration of NPAs Amount Rs. in crores
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 7.94 126.51
{e) Movement of NPAs Amount Rs, in crores
As at As at
Particutars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{1} Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.53% 0.74%
(i) Movement of NPAs {Gross)
a) Opening balance 202.07 201.84
b) Additions during the year 1,393.95 179.56
¢) Reductions during the year 1,563.69 179.43
d} Closing balance 32.33 202.07
(i) Movement of Net NPAs
a) Opening balance 67.98 128.56
b} Additions during the year - -
c) Reduclions during the year 50.69 60.58
d) Closing balance 17.29 67.98
[} Movement of provisions for NPAs {excleding provisions on standard assels)
a) Opening balance 134.09 73.38
b) Provisions made during the year 1,426.59 213.38
c} Write off/write back of excess provisions 1,545.64 152.67
d) Clesing balance 15.04 134.09

144



Sammaan Finserve Limited

{Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

CiN: U65323DL2006PLC 150632

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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(f} Overseas Assets

Amount Rs. in crores

Name of Joint Venture/Subsidiary Other Partner in the JV

Country

Total Assets

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

NIL NA

NA

{h} Disclosure of Complaints -Customer Complaints

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

{a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

{b) No. of complaints received during the year

126 44

{c) No. of complaints redressed duwing the year

126 44

{d) No. of complaints pending at the end of ihe year

Note: In computing the above infoermation and disclosures, certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the Management for its regulatory submissions which have been relied upon

by the Auditors.

(B} Detail of Loans transferred / acquired during the Year under the Master Direction - RBI (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions , 2021 as given below:

{i} Detaiis of Loans not in Default transferred / acquired through assignment :

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Transferred Acquired Transferred Acquired

Count of Loan accounts Assigned 3,989 3,810 2,138 9
Amount of Loan accounts Assighed 2,500.44 20317 2,732.84 38.01
Retention of beneficial economic interest (MRR) 428.75 - 277.10 -
Weighted Average Maturity (Residual Maturity in months} 137.40 202.50 106.89 246.86
Weighted Average Holding Period [in months] 277 12.68 4.97 48.08
Coverage of tangible securily coverage 1.00 - 1.00 1.00
Rating-wise distribution of raled loans Unrated - Unrated -

{ii} Details of stressed loans transferred during the year

Amount Rs. in crores

March 31, 2025

Particulars To Asset Reconstruction Companies (ARC)

NPA SMA Total
Number of accounts 18 - 18
Aggregate principal oulstanding of loans transferred (Rs. in crores) 845.25 - 895.25
Weighted average residual tenor of ihe loans fransferred (in months) 30.68 - 30.68
Net book value of loans transferred {at the time of transfer) (Rs. in crores) 84219 - 842.19
Aggregate consideration {Rs. in crores) 367.78 - 367.78

Additional consideration sealized in respect of accounts transferred in
earlier years

xcess provisions reversed to the Profit and Loss Account on account of
sale

Apart from above, the Company has assigned written off loans to ARC for a purchase consideration of  67.02 Crs during financial year 2024-25
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Note - 45 (continued...)

(ii) Details of stressed loans transferred during the year

March 31, 2024

Particulars To Asset Reconstruction Companies (ARC)

NPA SMA Total
Number of accounts 41,461 - 41,461
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred (Rs. in crores) 144 90 - 144.90
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred (in months) 5.24 - 524
Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer) (Rs. in crores) 108.67 - 108 67
Aggregate consideration (Rs. in crores) 92.85 - 92.85
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier
years B - i
Excess provisions reversed to the Profit and Loss Account on account of
sale ) & 3
Apart from above, the Company has assigned written off loans to ARC for a purchase consideration of # 22.20 Crs during financial year 2023-24.
(1) The Company has not acquired any stressed loan during the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: NIL)
(iv) Details of Security Receipts held and Credit rating during the year are as follows: Amount Rs. in crores
Recovery Rating Anticipated recovery as per recovery rating March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

RR1+

150% and above

RR1

100% - 150%

RR4

25% - 50%

Unrated

100% - 150%

Total

(C) Disclosures under Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India ( Securitisation of Standard Assets ) Directions , 2021

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

(1) No of SPEs holding assets for securitisation transactions originated by
the originator

14

33

(2) Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPEs

270.21

2,766.08

(3) Total amount of exposures retained by the originator to comply with MRR
as on the date of balance sheet

3478

a) Off-balance sheet exposures

First loss

Others

b) On-balance sheet exposures

First loss

Others

(4) Amount of exposures to securtisation transactions other than MRR

a) Off-balance sheet exposures

1) Exposure to own securtisations

First loss

Others

i) Exposure to third party securitisations

First loss

Others

b) On-balance sheet exposures

1) Exposure to own securitisations*

First loss

Others

ii) Exposure to third party securitisations

First loss

Others




Sammaan Finserve Limited

(Formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)

CIN: U65923DL2006PLC 150632

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note - 45 (continued...)

Disclosures under Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India ( Securitisation of Standard Assets ) Directions , 2021 (continued...);

Amount Rs. in crores

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Particulars e
5) (a) Sale consideration received for the securitised assets 686.02 3,399 21
(b) Gainfloss on sale on account of securitisation - -

(8) Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided by way of,

liquidity support, post-securitisation asset servicing, etc.

(7) Performance of facility provided: Credit enhancement

a) Amount paid = z
(b) Repayment received - -
¢) Outstanding amount # 31.03 33.66

(8) Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past

Loan against property/MSME

Mar-2023: 1.44%
Mar-2024: 2.00%
Mar-2025: 1.25%

Mar-2023: 1.44%
Mar-2024: 2.00%
Mar-2025: 1.25%

Wholesale loans

Mar-2023: 1.93%
Mar-2024: 1.99%

Amount and number of additionaltop up loan given on same underlying
asset. Please provide breakup separately for each asset class i.e. RMBS,
Vehicle Loans etc

Mar-2025: 2 01%

(9) Investor complaints (a) Directly/Indirectly received and; (b) Complaints
outstanding

* including instruments (in PTCs ) with pari passu rights of Rs. 14.00 Crores (previous year - Nil) and other than pari passu nghts of Rs. 17.03 Crores (previous year: Rs. 668.43 Crores)

# Credit enhancement given in form of fixed deposit and mutual funds.

Note - 46

(A) Disclosures in terms of Annex VI of the Master Direction ~ Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023;

1. Exposure
a) Exposure to Real Estate Sector Refer Note 45(v)(a)
b) Exposure to capital market Refer Note 45(v)(b)

c) Sectoral Exposure

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Total Exposure (includes
on balance sheet and off-
balance sheet exposure)

Sectors
(Amount Rs. In crores)

Gross NPAs (Amount
Rs. In crores)

Percentage of Gross NPAs to
total exposure in that sector

Total Exposure
(includes on
balance sheet and
off-balance sheet
exposure) (Amount
Rs. In crores)

Gross NPAs (Amount
Rs. In crores)

Percentage of Gross
NPAs to total
exposure in that
sector

1. Agriculture and Allied Activities - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
2. Industry

1 - - 0.00% = - 0.00%
ii) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
Others - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
Total of Industry - - - - - -

3. Services

1) Commercial Real Estate 36.91 2.07 5.61% 4,246.20 47 62 1.12%
i} Others 3.016.93 27.11 0.90% 4,852.21 139.90 2 88%
Total of Services 3,053.84 29.18 0.96% 9,098.42 187.52 2.06%
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Note - 46 (continued...}

¢) Sectoral Exposure (continued...)

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Total Exposure {includes

Gross NPAs (Amount

Percentage of Gross NPAs to |Total Exposure

Gross NPAs {Amount

Percentage of Gross

on balance sheet and off- |Rs. In crores) total exposure in that sector  [(includes on Rs. In crores) NPAs to total
Sectors balance sheet exposure) balance sheet and exposure in that
(Amount Rs. In crores) off-balance sheet sector
exposure) (Amount
Rs. In crores)
4. Personal loans
i} Personal Loan 3.17 3.11 98.11% 128.08 14.55 11.36%
i) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
Others - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
Total of Personal loan 317 311 28.11% 128.08 14.55 11.36%
5. Others, if any 180.16 0.04 0.02% - - -

d) Intra group Exposure

Amount Rs. in crores

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i)Total amount of intra-group exposures 1,115.00 25.00
(i) Total amount of tep 20 intra-group exposures 1,715.00 25.00
(i) Percentage of intra-group exposures to tolal exposure of the NBFC on borrowersicustomers 100.00% 100.00%

e) Unhedged foreign currency exposure

The Company does noi have any Unhedged fareign currency exposure Nil as at March 31, 2024 { Previous year: Nil)

2) Related Party Disclosure Refer Nole 37

3) Disclosure of Customer Complaints

a) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

Ombudsman

' As at As at
- March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers 126 44
No, of complaints pending at the beginning of the year MNIL NEL
No. of complaints received during the yaar 126 44
No. of complaints disposed during the vear 126 44
Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC NIL NIL
Number of complaints pending at the end of the year NI NIL
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombud b
Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of . a4
Ombudsman
Of 5, number of complaints resofved in favour of the NBFC by Office of ) o

Of 5, number of complaints resolved through
conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman

Of 5, number of complaints resclved after passing of Awards by Office of
Ombudsman against the NBFC

Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than
those agpealed)
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Note - 46 [continued...)

b} Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers

Grounds of complaints, {i.e. complaints |Number of complaints Number of % increaseldecrease in the Number of Of 5, number of
relating to} pending at the beginning of|complaints received |number of complaints complaints complaints pending
the year during the year received over the previous pending at the end |beyond 30 days
year* of the year
1 2 3 4 5 6
Year ended March 31, 2025
Closure NIL 66 39.20% NIL NIL
CIBIL NIL 13 - NIL NIL
ROI (ROI reset / Change in EMI / Change in
Tenure) NIL 11 57.14% NIL NIL
Legal NIL 10 80.00% NIL NIL
Refund NIL [:] 0.00% NIL NIL
|Others NIL 17 88.89% _NIL NIL
Total NIL 126 186.36% NIL NIL
Year ended March 31, 2024

ROI (ROI reset / Change in EMI/ Change in
Tenure) NIL 17 -5.00% NIL NIL
Closure NIL 7 -22.00% NIL NIL
Disbursement NIL 9 0.00%] _NIL NIL
EMI PEMI NIL 2 -66.00% NIL NIL
Refund NIL 1 66.67% NIL NIL
Others NIL 8 -33.33% NIL NIL
Total NIL 44 -23.00% NIL NIL
*Note:- percentage increase in number of complaints in current year is due to re-classification of Complaints/ Query.
4) Corporate Governance
{a) Composition of Board as on March 31, 2025

Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Non-Executive!/ Chairman/ _—

Promoter nominee! Independent) Humirofitoardimeting
Name of director Director since DN
Held Attended

Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal 30-08-2013 Non-Executive Chairman 02698115 8 7
Mr. Rajiv Gandhi 15-02-2021 Managing Director & CEQ 09063985 8 7
Mr. Naveen Uppal 12-11-2024 Nen-Executive Director 10813991 4 3
Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra 23-06-2022 Independent Director Q7488705 8 8
Mr. Satish Chand Mathuw 23-06-2022 Independent Director 038641285 8 7
Mr. Gorinka Jaganmohan Rao 0i-07-2023 Independent Director 06743140 8 8
Ms. Nikita Sureshchand Tulsian 23-10-2023 Independent Director (8628087 8 8
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Note - 46 {continued...)

4) Corporate Governance {continued...)

Remunerations .
No. of shares held in
. , . = and convertible
Name of director No. of other directorship |Salary & o::\er Sitting Fee Fommlsslonlmcent instruments held in the
compensation ive NBEC

Mr. Ajit Kumnar Mittal 2 - - 0.85 NIL

Mr. Rajiv Gandhi 0 5.75 - - NIL

M. Naveen Uppal i} = - - NIL

Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra 2 - 0.09 - NIL

Mr. Satish Chand Mathur 7 - 0.08 0.25 NIL

Mr, Gorinka Jaganmohan Rao 3 - 0.09 1.32 NIL

Ms. Nikita Sureshchand Tulsian 1 - 0.09 0.25 NA
I‘Totaf Eight Board Meetings held during the financial year 2024-25

{b} Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financiat year.

_ Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Non-Executive/ Nature of change .

Name of director Chairman/ Promoter nominee/ Independent) (resignation, appointment) Eftectiveldaty

Mr. Gorinka Jaganmohan Rao MNon-Executive - Independeni Director Appointed 01-07-2023

Ms. Nikita Sureshchand Tulsian MNon-Executive - Independent Director Appointed 23-10-2023|

Ms. Preetinder Virk Non-Executive Director Resigned 23-10-2023

Mr.Anil Malhan Non-Executive Director Resigned 12-11-2024

Mr. Naveen Uppal Non-Executive Director Appainted 12-11-2024

{¢) Committees of the Board and their compaosition
{1} Name of the commitiee of the Board : Audit Committee

Summarized terms of reference-

1. To oversee the financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information;

2. To review with management, quartedy, half yearly and annual financial statements and ensure their accuracy and correciness before submission to the Board;
3. To review with management and intemal auditors, the adequacy of internal conirol syslems, approving the internal audit plans/ reports and reviewing the efficacy of their function, discussion and review of
periodic audit reports including findings of intemal investigations;

4. To recomimend the appointment of the internal and statutory auditors and their remuneration;

5, To review and approve required provisions lo be maintained as per IRAC norms and wrile off decisions;

6. To held discussions with the Statutory and Internal Auditors;

7. Review and monitaring of the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

8, Examination of the auditors' report on financial statements of the Company (in addition to the financial statemenis} before submission to the Board;

9. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

40. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

11. Review of Credit Concurrent Audit Report! Concurrent Audit Report of Treasury,

12. Valuvation of underlakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

13. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters as and when such funds are raised and also reviewing with the management the utilisation of the funds so raised, for
purposes other than those stated in the relevant offer docuement, if any and making appropriate recommendations te the Board in this regard,
14. Evaluation of the risk management systems (in addition to the internal control systems);

15. Review and monitoring of the performance of the statutory auditors and effectiveness of the audit process;

16. To hold post audit discussions with the auditors to ascertain any area of concem;

17. To review the functioning of the whistie blower mechanism;

18. Approval to the appointment of the CFO after assessing the gualifications, experience and background ete, of the candidate;
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Note - 46 {continued...)

4} Corporate Governance {continued...)

(1} Name of the committee of the Board : Audit Commitiee

Summarized terms of reference (continued...)

9. Approval of Bad Debt Write off in terms of the Palicy;
20. Review of information system audit of the intemal systems and processes to assess the operational risks faced by the Cempany and also ensures that the information system audit of internal systems

and processes is conducted periodically, and

21. Reviewing the ulilisation of leans andfor advances and/or investment by the Company to its subsidiary companies, exceeding 100 crores or 10% of the assets side of the respective subsidiary
companies, whichever is lower, including existing loans / advances / investment existing as on April 01, 2019,

Compasition and other details

Name of director

Member of committee

Capacity {i.e., Executive/ Norn-Executive/ Chairman/
Promoter nominee/ Independent)

Number of board committee meeting

No. of shares held in

since NBFC
Held Attended

Mr, Rinabandhu Mohapatra 23-06-2022 Chairman Nen-Executive - lndependent 7 7 NiL
Director

Mr, Anil Malhan* 30-09-2021 Member MNon-Executive —Director 3 1 NIL

Mr. Gorinka Jaganmohan Rac** 23-12-2024 Member Hon-Executive - Independent 2 2 NIL
Director

Mr Satish Chand Mathur 23-06-2022 Member Non-Executive - Independent 7 6 NIL
Direclor

* Total Seven Audit Committee Meetings held during the financial year 2024-25

*Resigned from the board w.e.f, 12,11.2024
** Appainted as a member w.e.f. 23.12.2024

(i) Name of the committee of the Board : Nomination & Remuneration Cormmittee

Summarized terms of reference-

1. Formulation of the ¢riteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recornmend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors,
key managerial personnel and othar employees;
2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Direciors and the board of directors;
3, Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;
4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appoirted in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommiend to the board of directors their

appointment and removal;

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the report of periormance evaluation of Independent Directors;
8. To ensure “fit and proper’ status of proposed/ existing directors;
7. To recommend to the Board all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Directors, KMPs and senior management;

Name of director

Member of committee

Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Non-Executive/ Chairman/

Number of board committee meeting

No. of shares held in

since Promeoter nominee/ Independent) Held Attended NBFC
Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra 23-06-2022 Chairman Non-Executive - Independent 3 3 NIL
Mr. Anil Malhan* 30-09-2021 Member Non-Executive —Director 1 1 MNIL
Non-Executive - Independent 5
Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal** 23-12-2024 Member Director 1 NIL
Non-Executive - Independent 3
Mr Satish Chand Mathur 23-06-2022 Member Director 3 NIL

* Total Seven Audit Committes Meetings heid during the financial year 2024-25

*Resigned from the board w.e.f, 12.11.2024
** Appointed as a member w.e.f 23.12.2024
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Note -46 (continued...)

4) Corporate Governance {continued._.}

{iiiy Name of the committee of the Board : Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Summarized terms of reference-

1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related o transfer/iransmission of shares/Debenlures, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared
dividendsfinterest, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.,

2.

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders,

3. Review of adherence to the sefvice standards adopled by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by the Regisirar & Share Transfer Agent,
4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrantsfannual reportsistatutory notices
by the shareholders of the company.

Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Non-Executive/ Chairman/

. . . Number of board committee meeting No. of shares held in

Name of director Member of committee since| Promoter nominee/ independent) Held tended NBFC

Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal** 23-12-2024 Chairman Non-Executive —Director 1 1 NIL

Mr. Anil Malhan* 15-10-2018 Chairman Non-Executive -Director NIL

Mr, Dinabandhu Mohapatra 23-06-2022 Member Non-Executive - Independent 4 NIL
Diractor

Mr Satish Chand Mathur 23-06-2022 Member Non-Executive - Independent 4 4 NIL
Director

* Total Four Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings held during the financial year 2024-25
*Resigned from the board w.e.f. 12.11.2024
** Appoinfed as Chairman w.e.f. 23.12.2024

(iv) Name of the committee of the Board : Risk Managemeni Committee

Summarized terms of reference-

i
2
3
4
5
6]
7
8

9

. Review of Grievance Redressal Mechanism and Customers Services

. Approve the Credit/Operation Policy and its review/modification from time to time;

. Review of appticable regulatory requirements;

. Approve all the functional policies of the Company;

. Place appropriate mechanism in the system to cater Fraud while dealing with customers/approval of loans etc;
. Review of profile of the high loan Customers and periodical review of the same;

. Review of Branch Audit Report;

. Review Compliances of lapses;

. Review of implementation of FPCs, KYC and PMLA guidelines;

10. Define loan sanctioning autharities, including process of vetting by credit committee, for various types/values of loans as specified in Credit Policy approved by the Board;
11. Recommend Bad Debt Write Off in terms of the Policy, for approval to Audit Committee;

12. Ensure appropriate mechanisms fo detect customer fraud and cyber security during the loan approval process etc.;
13. Evaluation of the risk management systems (in addition to ihe internal control systems);

14, Recovery action on NPA cases 1o be approvediratified by the committee;

15. To act / decide / deliberate on such cases faliing with both SFL and SCL

16. Approval of waiver of charges accrued but nor recognized/bocked' For NPA cases;

17. Any other matler involving Risk to the asset/business of the Comgpany,
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Note - 46 {continued...)

4) Corporate Governance {continued...}

Name

Member of committee since|

Capacity (..e., Executive/ Non-Executivef Chairman/ [Number of board comtnittee meeting

Praomoter nominee/ Independent)

Hetd

Attended

Mo. of shares held in

NBFC

Mr, Dinabandhu Mohapatra® 23-12-2024 Chairman Non-Executive - Independent 5 5 NIL
Director

Mr. Anil Malhan** 30-08-2021 Chairman MNon-Executive Director 2 2 NIL

Mr. Ashish Jain 30-09-2021 Member Member of the Committee 5 5 NIl

M. Rajiv Gandhi 01-04-2023 Member Managing Director & CEQ 5 5 MIL

Mr. Kaushik Mukherjee™* 01-04-2023 Member Member of the Commiitee 3 3 NIL

* Total Five Risk Management Committee Meetings held during the financial year 2024-25

* Designated as Chairman w.e.f 23-12-2024
**Resigned from the board w.e.f. 12.11.2024

*** Ceased from the committee member w.e.f. 23-12-2024

{v} Name of the commitiee of the Board : Corporate Socia) Responsibility [CSR] Committee

Summarized terms of reference-

1. To recommend fo the Board, the CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company.
2. To approve the expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities.

3. To oversee and review the effective implementation of the CSR activities.
4. To ensure compliance of all related applicable regulatory requirements.

Name of director

Member of committee

Capacity {i.e., Executive/ Non-Executive/ Chairman/

Number of board commitiee meeting

No. of shares held in

since Promoter nominee/ Independent) Held Atfended NBFC
Mr. Rajiv Gandhi** 23-12-2024 Chairman Managing Director & CEQ 2 2 NIL
Mr. Anil Malhan* 19-03-2014 Chairman Non-Executive Director 1 1 NIL
Non-Executive - Independent 3
Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra 23-06-2022 Member Director 3 NIL
Non-Executive - Independent 3
Mr Satish Chand Mathur 23-06-2022 Member Director 3 MIL

* Total Three Corporate Social Responsibitity [CSR] Committee held during the financial year 2024-25

*Resigned from the board w.e.f. 12.11.2024
** Appointed as Chairman w.e.f. 23,12.2024
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Note - 46 (continued...)
4) Corporate Governance {continued...)

{d) General Body Meetings FY 2024-25

Type of meeting (Annual/Extra Ordinary)

Date and Place

Special resolutions passed

Extraordinary General Meeting

April 29, 2024 and 422B,
Udyog Vihar, Phase-lV,
Gurugram, Haryana-122018

Change in the Name of the Company to ‘Sammaan Finserve Limited’ and Consequential amendment to|
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company

Annual General Meeting

September 27, 2024 and 5th
Floor, Building No. 27, KG
Marg, Connaught Place, New
Delhi — 110001

Issue of Non — Canverlible Debentures/Bonds, of the Company, upto ¥ 5,000 crore, on private placement
basis

Extraordinary General Meeting

November 13, 2024 and One
International Cenire, Tower
1, 18th Floor, Senapati Bapat
Marg, Elphinstone Road,
Mumbai - 400013,
Mabharashtra

1. Approval for transfer of legacy, wholesale loans’ business of the company via business transfer|
agreement to the holding company

2. Approval of Sammaan Finserve Limiled- employee stock benefit scheme 2024 and grant of employee
stock aptions fo the employees f directors of the company

3. Approval to extend the benefits of Sammaan Finserve Limited - employee stock benefit scheme 2024
to the directors / employees of the holding company, its subsidianes/associate(s) (if any}

4. Approval for grant of employee stock options to the identified employees during any one year, equal to
or exceeding ona percent of the issued capital of the company at the time of grant of employee stock
options

5. For waiver of excess managerial remunaration paid to the Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, Managing Director & CEQ
[DIN: 02063985) of the company in terms of section 197 of companies act 2013 for the financial year|
2024-25.

6. For waiver of excess managerial remuneration paid to non-executive direclors of the company in|
terms of section 197 of companies act 2013 for the finangial year 2024-25

7. Approval for appointment of Mr. Naveen Uppal (DIN: 10813291) as a Non- Executive Director of the)|

company,

(e) Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013- None

(f) Details of penalties and strictures

Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators [FY25]- Nil

Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and ofher regulators [FY24]- Nil

5} Breach of covenant - None
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Note -47
Disclesures in terms of RBI circular vide reference no REN2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC}.CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 Dated as on March 13, 2020 ; Amount in Rs crores
March 31, 2025
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms Asset classification as per|Gross GCarrying|Loss Aliowances (Provisions)|Net Carrying|Provisions required as|Difference between
Ind AS 109 Amount as per Ind|as required under Ind AS 109 |Amount per IRACP nerms Ind AS 109
AS provisions and
IRACP norms
(1) (2} {3) {4) (5)=(3)-(8} (8} {7) = (4)-(6)

. Stage 1 3.119.67 28.30 3.091.37 12.48 15.82
Performing Assets Stage 2 85.16 4.04 81,12 0.34 3.79
Subtotal 3,204.83 32.34 3,172.49 6.82 19.52
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Substandard Stage 3 19.71 7.89 11.82 1.97 5,92
Doubful Stage 3 12.62 7.15 547 5.84 131
Loss Stage 3 -
Subtotal for NPA 32.33 15.04 17.29 7.81 7.23
Other items such as guarantees, loan|Stage a7.14 0.49 - - ~
cormnmitments, ete. which are in the scope of]
Ind AS 108 but not covered under current|> 28 2 - 3 : - -
Inceme Recognition, Asset Classification and
Previsioning ({RACP) norms{moratorium etc) Stage 3 - i " ) -
Subtotal 97.14 0.49 - - -
Stage 1 3.216.81 28.79 3.081.37 12.48 15.82
Total Stage 2 85.16 4.04 81.12 0.34 3.70
Stage 3 32.33 15.04 17.29 7.81 7.23
Total Provision 3,334.30 47.87 3,189.78 20.63 26.75
Amount in Rs crores
March 31, 2024
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms Assel classification as per(Gross Carrying|Loss Alowances (Provisions)|Net Carrying|Provisions required as|Difference between
Ind AS 109 Amount as per Ind|as required under Ind AS 109 |Amount per IRACP norms Ind AS 109
AS provisions and
IRACP norms
(1) (2) i (3) (4) (5)=(3)-4) 36(? (7) = (48}

. Stage 1 8.411.06 46.06 8,365.00 33, 12.42
Performing Assets Stage 2 613,35 12.09 601.26 2.45 9.64
Subtotal 9.024.41 58,15 8,966.26 36.09 22.06
Nen-Parforming Assets (NPA)}

Substandard Stage 3 102.42 39.65 62.77 10,24 28.41
Doubtful Stage 3 99.65 94.44 5.21 87.10 7.34
Loss Stage 3 - - - -
Subtotal for NPA 202,07 134.08 G7.98 97.34 36.75
Other items such as gearantees, loan|Stage 1 147.98 0.74 - - -
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of|Stage 2 E = = = -
Ind AS 109 but not covered under current|Stage 3 B X - 5 -
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Prowisioning (IRACP) norms{moratorium elc)
Subtotal 14798 0.74 - - -
Stage 1 8,559.04 46.80 8,365.00 33.64 12.42
Tatal Stage 2 613,35 12.09 601.26 245 9.64
Stage 3 202.07 134.09 §7.98 87.34 3I6.75
Total Provision 9,374.46 192.98 9.034.24 133.43 58.81
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Note -48

Disclosures in terms of Annex VI of the Master Direcfion — Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023,

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty

March 31, 2025
8 No Nao. of significantfAmount in Rs Crores |% of Total Deposits % of Total
counterparties Liabilities
4 14 2.502.14 NA 61.79%
March 31, 2024
S No No. of significant{Amount in Rs Crores |% of Total Deposits Y of Total
counterparties Liabilities
1 1 5,052.90 NA 60.51%
Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty {continued...)
| March 31, 2025 [ March 31, 2024
Top 20 large Deposits Not Applicable| Not Applicable
Ameount in Rs Crores*
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Top 10 borrowings (Crores) 2,286.84 4,990.10
Top 10 borrowings [% of Total borrowings] 70.57% 92.65%

* Represents contractual amount

Funding Ceoncentration based on significant instrument/product

Amount in Rs Crores*

Name of the instrumentioroduct March 31, 2025 farch 31, 2024

R T e e Amount % of Tolal Liabilitis Amount % of Total Liabilities
Term loans from banks and others 1,530.27 37.78% 981.78 11.76%
Secured non convertible debentures 1,069.59 26.41% 2.525.86 30.25%
Loan from Holding Company - 0.00% 1,330.00 15.93%
Subordinated debt 352.47 8.70% 351.37 4.21%
Cash credit {includes securitisation and lease liability) 345.17 B8.52% 2,316.81 27.74%

Stock Ratios:

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

.CP as % of fotal public funds 0.00% 0.00%
CP as % of total liabilities 0.00% 0.00%
|CP as % of total assets 0.00% 0.00%
NCD {original maturity of less than 1 year) as % of telal public funds 0.00% 0.00%
NCD (original maturity of fess than 1 year} as % of total liabilities 0.00% 0.00%
NCD {eriginal maturity of less than 1 year) as % of total assets 0.00% 0.00%
QOther short term liabilities as % of fotal public funds 22.75% 27.74%
Other short term liabilities as % of total liabilities 18.21% 17.89%
Other short term liabilities as % of fotal assels 10.35% 11.04%

* Total Liabilities = Total Balance Shest Size - Net Worth

Institutional set-up for llquidity risk management

The Company has constituted an Asset Liability Management Committee ('ALCQ'), a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, to oversee ALM on an ongoing basis. The meetings of ALCO are held at

pericdic infervals for reviewing the specific risks relating to liquidity fisk and interest rate sensitivity.
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Note - 49

There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) dwiing the year ended March 31,
2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs. Nil).

Note - 50

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has sold the “Legacy, Wholesale Loan Business” to its Holding Company through a Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) executed between the
Company and the Holding Company. The sale included a group of assets, primarily comprising the wholesale loan book (net of Expected Credit Losses), related liabilities, and business contracls associated
with the wholesale division. The transaction was carried out for a purchase consideration of Rs. 530 crores. As part of the transfer, total assets amounting to Rs, 6,744.59 crores and total liabilities of Rs.
6,214.59 crares were sold out to the Helding Company, based on an independent fair valuation report and duly approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Note - 51

The Company has been sanctioned / renewed working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crore in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of Securily by way of hypothecation over the Company's
loan receivables (present and future), other financial assets, and cash and cash equivalents (including bank batances and investments), excluding (i} receivables and investments specifically charged to
other parties, and (il) balances representing High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLAs) as at March 31, 2025 utilised for the purpose of computing the Liquidity Coverage Ratio, in accordance with the applicable
RBI guidelines, which shall remain unencumbered in accordance with The RBI LRM Framework. The quarterly returns / statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

Note -52
Disclosures in terms of Annex XX! of the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023;

From [ December 1, 2020 ] December 1, 2021 | December 1, 2022 [ December 1, 2023 | December 1, 2024 |
Minlmum LCR 50%| 650%] 70%]| 85%] 100%]
LCR disclosure Q4 FY 2024-25 | Q3 FY 2024-25
Total Unweighted|Total Weighted|Total Unweighted|Total Weighted
Value{average) Value{average) Value(average) Value{average)
High Quality Liguid Assets
1. Total High Quality Liguid Assets (HQLA) 141.76 141.76 175.80 175.90
Cash in Hand and Bank balance 141.76 141.76 175.90 175.90

Cash Outflow

2. Deposit for deposit taking companies NA NA| NA/ NA
3. Unsecured wholesale funding d - | 3
4. Secured wholesale funding 102.74 118.16 60.59 69.68

5 Additional Requirements, of which
(i) Cutilow related lo derivalive exposures and other collateral - - - -
{ii} Cutflow related fo loss of funding on debt products - - - |
fiii} Credit and Ligquidity facilities - - - g
6 Contractual funding Obligations 50.00 57.50 50.00 57.50|

7 Other Contingent funding Obligations - d - -
8. Total Cash Outfiow 152.74 175.66 110.59 127.18
|€ash Inflows

9. Secure Lending 51.36 38.52 89.80 67.35]
10. Infiow from fully performing exposure 150.00 112.50 150.00 112,50
11. Cther Cash inflows 104.54 78.40 113.97] 85.48
12. Total Cash Inflows 305.90 229.42 353.77 265.33

Total Adjusted value Total Adjusted value

13. Total HQELA 141.76 175.90
14. Total Net cash outflow over next 30 days 43.92 31.80
15. Liguidity Coverage Ratio* 323% 553%

* computed based on the simple daily average for the quarter.
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Note - 52 {continued...)

Disclosures in terms of Annex XX of the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023;

LCR disclosure Q2 FY 2024-25 Q1 FY 2024-25
Total Unwaeighted| Total Weighted|Total Unweighted|Total Weighted
Value(average) Value{average} Value{average) Value{average)
High Quality Liquid Assets
1. Total High Guality Liquid Assets {HQLA) 139.69 139.69 162.86 162.86
Cash in Hand and Bank balance 139.69 139.69 162.86 162.86
Cash Outflow
2. Deposit for deposit taking companies NA NA NA| NA
3. Unsecured wholesale funding - o - Z
4. Secured wholesale funding 124.48 143.15 50.76 58.37
5 Additicnal Requirements, of which
{i) Outflow related to derivative exposures and other collateral -] - -] -]
(i) Cutflow related to loss of funding on debt products - 3 . -
(iii) Credit and Liquidity facilities - - - -
6 Contractual funding Cbligations 50.00 57.650 50.00 57.50
7 Other Contingent funding Obligations - - - -
8, Total Cash Qutfiow 174,48 200.65 100.76 115.87
Cash Infiows
9. Secure Lending 122.81 92.11 146.26 109.70
0. Inflow from fully performing exposure 300.00 225.00 300.00 225.00
11. Other Cash inflows - E - -
12. Total Cash Inflows 422.81 317.11 446.26 334.70
Total Adjusted value Total Adjusted value
13. Total HQLA 139.69 162.86
14. Total Net cash outflow over next 30 days 50.16 28.97
15, Liquidity Coverage Ratio 278% 562%

RBI vide vide Circular No. RBIf201920/88 DOR_NBFC (PD) CC.No.102/63.10.001/2012-20 dated November 4, 2019 infroduced Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) guidelines for NBFCs,

The objective of the LCR is to promote an environment wherein Balance Sheet carries a strong liquidity for short term cash flow requirements. To ensure this NBFCs are required to maintain adequate pool
of unencumbered high-guality liquid assets (HQLA) which can be easily converted into cash to meet their siressed liquidity needs for next 30 calendar days. The LCR is expecied to improve the ability of
financial sector to absorb the shocks arising from financial andfor economic stress, thus reducing the risk of spill aver from financial sector to real economy.

The Liguidity Risk Management of the Company is managed by the Asset Liability Commitiee (ALCO) under the governance of Board approved Liguidity Risk Framework and Asset Liability Management
policy. The LCR levels for the Balance Sheet daie i1s derived by amnving the stressed expecied cash inflow and outflow for the next 30 days. To compute stiessed cash cutflow, all expected and contracted
cash outflows are considerad by applying a stress factor of 15%. Similarly, inflows for the Company are arrived at by considering all expected and centracted inflows by applying a haircut of 25%.

For the pupose of computing outflows, company considers: (1) all the contractual debt repayments, (2) committed credit facilities contracted with the customers, and (3) other expected or confracied cash
outflows. Inflows comprises: (1) expected receipt irom all performing loans, and (2) liquid investment [including Fixed Deposit, Mutual Funds etc] which are unencumbered and have not been considered as
part of HQLA.

The LCR is computed by dividing the stock of HOLA by its total net cash outflows for next 30 days,
LCR guidelines were made effective from 1 December 2020, requiring NBFCs to maintain minimum LCR of 50%, which was required to be increased to 100%, gradually by December 1, 2024. As on March

31,2025, NBFCs are required fo maintain LCR of 100%
Note: In computing the above information certain estimales, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the Management for its regulatory submission which have been relied upon by the audilars,
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note -52 {confinued...)

Disclosures in terms of Annex XXI of the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023;

LCR disclosure Q4 FY 2023-24 Q3 FY 2023-24
Total Unweighted| Total Weighted Unweighted | Total Weighted
Value(average) Value(average) Value(average) Value{average)
High Quality Liquid Assets
1. Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 129.17 129.17 69.97 69.97
Cash in Hand and Bank balance 129.17 129.17 69.97 69.97
Cash Outfiow
2. Deposit for deposit taking companies NA NA/ NA NA
3. Unsecured wholesale funding - - - -
4. Secured wholesale funding 28.27 32.51 8.40 9.66
5 Additional Requirements, of which - - - -
(i) Outflow related to derivalive exposures and other collateral . - -
requirements
(i) Outflow related to loss of funding on debt products - -
(iii) Credit and Liquidity facililies - - - ~
6 Contractual funding Obligations 50.00 57.50 50.00 57.50
7 Other Contingent funding Obligations - - - -
8. Total Cash Qutflow 78.27 90.01 58.40 67.16
Cash Inflows
9. Secure lending 51.57 38.68 21.82 16.44
10, Inflow from fully performing exposure 300.00 225.00 300.00 225.00
11, Other Cash inflows - - - -
12. Total Cash Inflows 351.57 263.68 321.92 241.44
Total Adjusted value Total Adjusted value
13. Total HQLA 129.17 69.97
14. Total Net cash outflow over next 30 days 22.50 16.79
{(Weighted value of total cash outflow= Minimum of weighted value of total
cash inflows, 75% of weighted value of total cash outfiow)
15. Liquidity Coverage Ratio 574.03% 416.76%
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Note - 52 (continued...}

Disclosures in terms of Annex XX of the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Finangial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023;

LCR disclosure

Q2 FY 2023-24 Q1 FY 2023-24
Total Unweighted|Total Weighted Unweighted|Total Weighted
Value(average) Value{average) Value{average} Value(average)
High Quality Liquid Assets
1, Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 144.28 144.28 148.98 148.98
Cash in Hand and Bank balance 144.28 144,28 148.98 148.98
Cash Qutflow
2. Deposit for deposit taking companies NA NA NA) NA|
3. Unsecured wiolesale funding - - - |
4, Secured wholesale funding 4.74 5.45 96.75 111.26
5 Addilional Requirements, of which B - = -
(1) Outflow related to derivative exposures and other collateral - = o o
requirements
(ii) Outflow related to logs of funding on deb! products - . - -
{iii} Credit and Liquidity facilities - - - -
& Contractual funding Obligations 50.00 57.50 50.00 57.50
7 Other Contingent funding Obligations n - . -
8. Total Cash Qutflow 54.74] 62.95 146,75 168.76
Cash Inflows
9. Secure Lending 34.96 26.22 31.40 23.55
10. Inflow from fully performing exposure 300.00 225.00 300.00 225.00
11, Dther Cash inflows 17.53] 13.15] 17.20 12.90]
12, Total Cash Inflows 352.49 264,37 348.60 261.45
Total Adjusted value Total Adjusted value
13. Total HQLA 144.28 1438.98
14. Total Net cash outflow over next 30 days 15.74 4219
(Weighted value of total cash outflow- Minimum of weighted value of total
cash inflows, 75% of weighted value of total cash outflow}
15. Liquidity Coverage Ratio 916.75% 353.12%)

The above represents the LCR as at March 31, 2024. The average LCR for Q4 FY 23-24 computed based on the average of the respective monthly LCRs for each of the months in Q4 FY 23-24 is

calculated at 142%.

Note: In computing the above information certain estimates, assumplions and adjustmenis have been made by the Management for its regulatory submission which have been relied upon by the auditors.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note -53

{A) Disctosures in terms of Annex IX of the Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023;

Detalls of dividend declared during the financial year 'fe™" "ot 212

Accounting period Net profit/{loss) for the Rate of dividend (%) |Amount of dividend (¥ crore) Dividend Pay Qut
accounting period (€ (B)* {C) Ratio (%) (C)/(A)
crore)(A)

Year ended March 31, 2025 (2,717.92)} 0.00% - 0.00%

Year ended March 31, 2024 413.00 62.00% 153.64 37.20%

* Amount of dividend per share as a percentage of face value per equity share.

(B) Disclosures in terms of Annex Xl of the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023;

Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and Relatives of Directors

Amocunt in Rs Crores

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Directors and their relatives

0.56

Entities associated with directors and their
relatives

Senior Officers and their relatives

Q.55

Note - 54

Major classes of assets in the form of immovable properties held for sale as below:

Amount Rs. in crores

Description As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Residential 401.85 324.01
Commercial 24.07 3592
Total 425.92 359.93
Note ~55

Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04,048/2020-21 dated 06 August 2020 and RBIf2024-22/31/DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 5 May 2021:

Disclosures of cases restructured under Resolution Framewaork for COVID-19-related Stress:

Amount Rs. in crores

For the half year ended March 31, 2025

Type of borrower

Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard
conseqguent to
impiementation of
resolution plan — Position
as at the end of the
previous half-year (A}

Of (A}, aggregate
debt that slipped into
NPA during the half-
year

Of (A} amount written off
during the half-year

Of (A) amount paid
by the borrowers
during the half-
year

Exposure to accounts
classified as Siandard
consequent te
implementation of
resolution plan -
Position as at the end of|
this half-year

Perschal Loans 1.01 - - 0.01 1.00
Corporale persons” - N 5 = -
Of which, MSMEs . B E - N
Others - - 3 B _
Tolal 1.01 - - 0.01 1.00

*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note - 55 (continued...}

Disclosures of cases restructured under Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress (continued...);

Amount Rs. in crores

For the half year ended September 30, 2024

Type of borrower

Exposure to accounts
classifled as Standard
conhsequent to
implementation of

Of {A), aggregate
debt that slipped into

Of (A) amount written off

Of {A) amount paid
by the borrowers

Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard
cansequent to
implementation of

) - NPA during the half- during the half-year during the half- y
resolution plan — Position resofution plan —
as at the end of the year year Position as at the end of
previous half-year (A) this half-year

Personal Loans 1.02 - - Q.01 1.01
Corporate persons* - - - - -
Of which, MSMEs - - - - -
Olhers - - - - -
Tatal 1.02 - - 0.01 1.01

*As defined in Section 3(7} of the Insolvency and Bankrupicy Code, 2016

Amount Rs. in crores

For the half year ended March 31, 2024

Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard

Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard

consequent to Of (A), aggregate Of(@)anioustipald consequent to
. 4 . debt that shipped inte|  Of (A) amount written off by the borrowers . sh=k
Type of borrower implementation of implementation of
n . NPA during the half- during the half-year during the half- .
resotution plan — Position - — resolution plan -
as at the end of the b 4 Position as at the end of

previous half-year {A) this half-year
Personal Loans 1.11 - - .09 1.02
Corporate persons* - - - - -
Of which, MGMEs - - - - -
Others - “ - - -
Total 111 - - 0.09 1.02

*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

Amount Rs. in crores

Far the half year ended September 30, 2023

Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard

Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard

consequent to Of{A), aggregate OfliA) amoulpdid consequent to
Tvoe of borrower imolementation of debt that slipped into| Of (A) amount written off by the borrowers implementation of
ype orho P ! | NPA during the half- during the half-year during the half- pleme
resolution plan ~ Position resofution plan —
as at the end of the year year Position as at the end of
previous half-year (A) this half-year
Personal Loans 1.18 - - 0.08 1.11
Corparate persons* 0.51 - - .51 -
Of which, MEMEs - - - - -
Others 0.51 - - 0.51 -
Total 1.70 - - 0.59 1.11
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note - 56

During the year, the Company has reported frauds in 1 foan account with amount involved of Rs. 0.88 crores (Previous year: Nil) in accordance with RBI Master Directions, 2023 issued by the Reserve Bank
aof India read with RBYDOS/2024-25/120 DOS.CO.FMG.SEC.N0.7/23,04.001/2024-25 dated July 15, 2024 on Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs.

Note -57
There are no borrowing costs to be capitalised as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs. Nil).

Note - 58

In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required to be credited 1o the nvestor Education and Protection Fund as on March 31, 2025 (March
31, 2024: Nil}.

Note - 59

The Company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 360 of Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended March 31, 2025
{March 31, 2024: Nil)

Note - 60

The Company has not advanced or loanad or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity{ies), including foraign entities {intermediaries) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Intermediaries shall;

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guaraniee, securify or the like to or on behalf of the Ulttmate Beneficiaries.

Note -61

The Company has not received any funds fram any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wiiling or otherwise) that the Company shall;
(a)directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Company {(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or un behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note - 62
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statufory period,

Note - 63

The Company did not enter into any transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year i the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961. (March 31, 2024 Rs. Nil).

Note - 64
The Company has not traded or invested in ¢rypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 {March 31, 2024 Rs. Nil).

Note -85

In terms of Circular no, RBI2014-15/458, DNBR{PD).CC.No 019/03.10.01/2014-15 dated February 06, 2015, every NBFC is required to become a member of all Credit mformation Companies, As of the
date of these financial statements, the Company has obtained the membership of Equifax Information Services Prvate Limited, CRIF High Mark Gredit Infermalion Services Private Limited, Experian Credit
Information Company of India Private Limited and Credit Information Bureau {India) Limited.

Note - 66

The Company is in comypliance with RBI Circular No. RBI/2021-2022/125 DOR.STR.REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22 dated November 12 2021, related to classification of NPA and up-gradation of accounts
classified as NPA.

MNote - 67
The Company has compfied with the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India {Nen-Banking Financial Company ~ Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 to the extent applicable.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note - 68
Prior year figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary, to conform to the current year presentation.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached of even date \—/

ForPARY & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Actountants Sammaan Finserve Limited {formerly known as Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited)
Firm Registration No. 007288C

s

Bhupinder Nath Mukhi Naveen Uppa

Partner i Non Executive cior
Membership No. 013794 DIN : 09063985 DiN : 10813991

New Delhi, May 15, 2025 Mumbai, May 15, 2025 New Deihi, May 15, 2028

Ashish Kuthar Jain
Chief Financial Officer
New Delhi, May 15, 2025
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